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COMPANY PROFILE

GREAT PrLaINS ENERGY INc. (NYSE: GXP), headquartered in
Kansas City, Missouri, pursues attractive total returns by managing

G Dfﬂ'i' Dtﬂ I H S diverse energy-related businesses to achieve stability, disciplined

growth and dividends for shareholders.

t”fDqT Three core holdings are building value for Great Plains Energy:
Kansas City POWER & LiGHT (KCP&L) is a leading regulated provider of
electricity in the Midwest. This integrated utility serves approximately 485,000 customers
in 24 counties in the Kansas City metropolitan area. KCP&L contributed 83 percent of
ezrnings in 2002 and sufficient cash flows to fund the Great Plains Energy dividend of
$1.66 per share.
STRATEGIC ENERGY L.L.C., headquartered in Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania, is a rapidly
growing contract manager of electricity in the competitive retail markets of California,
Massachusetts, New York, Ohio, Pennsylvania and Texas. More than 33,000 commercial,
government and manufacturing accounts outsource management of their power purchases
to Strategic Energy. The firm contributed 24 percent of 2002 earnings.
KLT Gas INC., headquartered in Houston, specializes in unconventional natural gas
resources through acquisition and development of coalbed methane projects. Currently,

the development portfolio consists of properties in five states.
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< e o Dedicated people working together to build a diversified
\//ﬂ@}_ Ome Tier | energy company that annually produces growth of
5 percent Earnings Per Share.

SATISFIED CUSTOMERS

L

SATISFIED SHAREHOLDERS SATISFIED ASSOCIATES

Build operationally
excellent Tier I businesses

Committed to superior
service through reliable and
affordable electricity and
energy management

Remain honest and fair in
all our transactions

Improve the quality of life in
the communities we serve,
enhancing the Company’s
reputation and protecting
the natural environment

Committed to long-term
profitability

Drive financial performances
through controlled growth
in a disciplined manner

Practice innovation in
capitalizing on energy
investments

Ensure safe and supportive
work environment

Emphasize performance-
based compensation to
promote accountability

Treat each other with
mutual respect and

fairness, and embrace
individual differences

TIER [ PERFORMANCE WILL BE ACCOMPLISHED BY DAILY EXERC SING OUR VALUES:
QUALITY. INTEGRITY. ACCOUNTABILITY. INNOVATION. COLLABORATION.

*To continuously improve our record of operational excellence, Great Plains Energy has set the goal to deliver
Tier | performance resuits in the top 25 percent in comparison to peer companies.




SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

(dollars in millions except per share amounts)

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31

LYdOddd TVANNY 7007

L2002 2001® 2000 1999 1998

GREAT PLAINS ENERGY
OPERATING REVENUES $1,862 $1,462 $1,116 $ 921 $ 973
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE EXTRAORDINARY
ITEM AND CUMULATIVE EFFECT OF
CHARGES IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES ‘@ $ 129 $ (40) $ 129 $ 82 $ 121
NET INCOME (LOSS) $ 126 $ (24) $ 159 $ 82 $ 121
BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS (LOSS)
PER COMMON SHARE BEFORE EXTRAORDINARY
ITEM AND CUMULATIVE EFFECT OF CHANGES

IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES $ 2.04 $(0.68) $ 2.05 $ 1.26 $ 1.89
BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS (LOSS)

PER COMMON SHARE $ 1.99 $(0.42) $ 254 $ 1.26 $ 1.89
TOTAL ASSETS AT YEAR-END $3,507 $3,464 $3,294 $2,990 $3,012
TOTAL MANDATORILY REDEEMABLE

PREFERRED SECURITIES $ 150 $ 150 $ 150 $ 150 $ 150

TOTAL REDEEMABLE PREFERRED STOCK
AND LONG-TERM DEBT (INCLUDING
CURRENT MATURITIES) $1,189 $1,195 $1,136 $ 815 $ 913

CASH DIVIDENDS PER COMMON SHARE $ 1.66 $ 1.66 $ 1.66 $ 1.66 $ 1.64

CONSOLIDATED KCP&L @

OPERATING REVENUES $1,071 $1,351 $1,116 $ 921 $ 973

INCOME BEFORE EXTRAORDINARY ITEM AND
CUMULATIVE EFFECT OF CHANGES IN

ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES © $ 99 $ 104 $ 129 $ 82 $ 121
NET INCOME $ g6 $ 120 $ 159 $ 82 $ 121
TOTAL ASSETS AT YEAR-END $3,139 $3,146 $3,294 $2,990 $3,012
TOTAL MANDATORILY REDEEMABLE

PREFERRED SECURITIES $ 150 $ 150 $ 150 $ 150 $ 150

TOTAL REDEEMABLE PREFERRED STOCK
AND LONG-TERM DEBT (INCLUDING
CURRENT MATURITIES $1,170 $1,164 $1,136 $ 815 $ 913

) Grear Plains Energy’s consolidated financial statements include consolidated KCP&L, KLT Inc., GPP and IEC. KCP&L’s consolidated financial statements include its wholly
owned subsidiary HSS. In addition, KCP&L's consolidated results of operations include KLT Inc. and GPP for all periods prior to the October 1, 2001 formation of the holding
company.

®) See Management's Discussion for explanations of 2002, 2001 and 2000 resulss.

() In 2002, this amount is before the $3 .0 million cumulasive effect of a change in accounting principle. For further information, see Note 6 to the consolidated financial state-
ments. In 2001, this amount is before the $15.9 million after tax extraordinary gain on early extinguishment of debt. For further information, see Note 19 to the consolidated
financial statements. In 2000, this amount is before the $30.1 million after tax cumulative effect of changes in pension accounting. For further information, see Note 7 to the
consolidated financial statements. .
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GREAT PLAINS ENERGY

GREAT PLAINS ENERGY BUSINESSES BUILD VALUE

Three core businesses are building value for Great Plains Energy shareholders. These complementary operations combine the reliable cash
flows of a strong electric utility with growth in competitive energy management and returns in natural gas development.

BLEGTRIG UTILITY = -

EREREY WANAGEMENT

—

ENEREY BEYELOPMENT

7\ | Kansas Ci
@ Power & Liglt"

v
/Strategic

KT

GAS IINC.

PRODYETS &

REGULATED ELECTRIC UTILITY

Kansas City Power & Light delivers
reliable, low-cost power to
approximately 485,000 customers
in 24 Missouri and Kansas counties.

GROWING ENERGY MANAGEMENT FIRWM

Strategic Energy manages electricity
under long-term outsourcing
contracts with 33,000 business and
government accounts.

COALBED NATURAL GAS DEVELOPER

KLT Gas uses technology to find
and extract methane trapped in
underground coal.

OPERATING ABEAS

aumx

soumscn ] ¢
kansaslmtssourl

Serving diverse customers in the
Kansas City metropolitan area.

O Markets Currently Served

Supplying electricity to customers in 6
states: CA, MA, NY, OH, PA, TX.

O Coalbed Methane Projects

Developing resources to serve
growing U.S. natural gas market.

Kansas City, MO

Pittsburgh, PA

Houston, TX

VAWE GREATION | 6k

Excellence in operations and customer
service at KCP&L builds our
shareholder value through a steady
stream of cash flows.

Strategic Energy has grown to
contribute one-fourth of earnings as it
penetrates new markets and expands

its diverse customer base.

KLT Gas realizes value by acquiring and
developing coalbed methane properties.

PERFORTIANGE

OUNIO.0;

KCP&L
Contribution to EPS
$2.00
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Strategic Energy
Contribution to EPS

$2.00
1.50
1.00

0.50

-0l

1998 1999 2000 2001 2002

KLT Gas
Contribution to EPS

$2.00

1.50

1.00 W
0.50 |
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KCP&L is expected to generate steady,
improving earnings. The utility
has a stable regulatory outlook
through 2006.

Strategic Energy is expected to
contribute significantly to 2003 cash
flow. Continued growth is expected
from penetrating current areas and
entering additional markets.

Five coalbed methane projects are in
early stages of development. Gains
are expected as properties are
developed and reserves proven.

’ page 2




2002 SHAREHOLDER LETTER:

TO OUR FELLOW SHAREHOLDERS

GT@@K PMZHS Eﬂ@?fg’y is delivering an attractive return for our shareholders.

Qur utility business is a reliable electric service provider in a diverse Midwestern economy,

generating stable cash flows and strong operational performance with our non-regulated businesses

adding growth opportunities to the total shareholder return.

n 2002, Great Plains Energy was tested —
2. and we proved our Company’s strength.

Great Plains Energy delivered reliable results
for shareholders and outstanding service for our
customers and communities, with $126 million
in net income and a record $1.9 billion in
revenues. Overcoming the effects of a national
economic slowdown and the largest ice storm in
Kansas City history, we implemented well and
took positive actions to create value.

The strengths highlighted in this report are
the very reasons to have confidence in Great
Plains Energy and our businesses:

e Stability of earnings based on the diverse
market and operational excellence of our
core integrated utility, Kansas City Power
& Light (KCP&L).

@ Disciplined growth in attractive markets with
our energy management business, Strategic
Energy, which has grown to contribute
approximately one-fourth of earnings.

® And a $1.66 per share dividend, which
was covered by operating cash flows
from KCP&L.

Stability. Disciplined growth. Dividends.

That's our story.

Our approach to building value focuses on
total shareholder return. We have set an annual
growth target of 5 percent in earnings per share,
an ambitious goal for an integrated utility-based
company. As stock prices generally move with
earnings over the long run, adding this growth
target to current dividend yield of approximately
7 percent suggests an attractive potential total
return for shareholders.

There are no guarantees of future results, but

* we are striving for first-rate performance. Before

reviewing specific businesses, we will offer an

overview of our efforts in value creation.

IMPLEMENTING A ‘TIER I’ VISION
After launching Great Plains Energy as a holding
company in 2001, our team spent nearly a year
evaluating the Company’s position in energy
markets and refining our vision.

Vision: Dedicated people working together
to build a diversified Tier I energy company that
annually produces growth of 5 percent earnings
per share.

Tier I performance will be accomplished by daily
exercising our values: Quality, Integrity,
Accountability, Innovation, Collaboration.

page 3
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GREAT PLAINS ENERGY

Measuring progress is essential to our vision.
The Company adopted the motto, “Think Tier
[,” meaning we strive to rank in the top 25
percent of our peers in the strategic objectives
we pursue. We are applying Tier [ metrics to all
operational and financial processes, and linking
incentive compensation to the achievement of
these goals.

In several ways, we already rank in the top tier:

® Kansas City Power & Light scores Tier |
for operational measures in reliability
of our distribution system and power
production costs.

e QOur growth drivers, Strategic Energy
and KLT Gas, are recognized leaders in

their fields.

o KCP&Ls Hawthorn #5 generating facility,
placed in service in 2001, was recognized
as the nation’s cleanest coal-fired power
plant in a 2002 visit by Christie Todd
Whitman, administrator of the U.S.
Environmental Protection Agency.

The Tier I concept aims to drive improvement.
Some examples in 2002: KCP&L designed a
more informative, easy-to-understand monthly
bill to enhance customer satisfaction and reduce
costs. The utility overhauled its call center,
upgraded training and installed software to
improve responsiveness to customer phone calls.
And KCP&L boosted productivity and cut line

repair costs by centralizing contract management

and redesigning a process for dispatching crews.

D

QAREAT PLAINS ENERATY

| Kansas City
Power & Light-

N fotraregio
%'N \ Energy

CGAS TNC.
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We foresee ongoing benefits as we continue to
implement the Tier [ strategy.

ACTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDER VALUE

Beyond managing operations for efficiency and
performance, we took several important steps
in 2002 to reduce uncertainties and build value
for shareholders.

The Board of Directors declared dividends
totaling $1.66 per share in 2002. Amid uncer-
tainties elsewhere in the industry, we affirmed
our commitment to the current dividend level.
Operating cash flow from KCP&L alone was adequate
to fund the dividends in 2002, and we expect that
to hold true in 2003.

Great Plains Energy achieved a return on
average equity of 14.5 percent in 2002, aided by
our non-regulared businesses — a performance measure
that positions us favorably in the industry.

We took a significant step to reduce debt
levels of Great Plains Energy and KCP&L,
raising $152 million in gross proceeds through an
equity offering in November 2002. This action
strengthened our balance sheet to help maintain
financial flexibility.

Also, KCP&L was able to establish regulatory
stability in its two states. Following the 2002 ice
storm, the Kansas Corporation Commission agreed
to stabilize KCP&L electric rates in Kansas through
2006 following a 3 percent reduction beginning
January 1, 2003, and allowed the utility to expense
2002 ice storm costs for Kansas customers. In
Missouri, the Public Service Commission staff
determined that KCP&L rate levels were appropriate
at this time and allowed the utility to amortize
costs of the storm over five years. These actions
will help KCP&L continue its reliable service and
deliver steady financial results.

The contributions of many people, throughout
the Great Plains Energy family, added up to a year
of achievement in 2002 that makes us proud.

MAY 13, 2002

It was a Saturday night on Main Street,
in a much younger Kansas City, when
a crowd gathered to be dazzled by a
pioneering technology. May 13, 1882,
Kawsmouth Electric Light Company
switched on power for 40 arc lights to
drive away the dark and serve its first
13 customers.

Exactly 120 years later, Great Plains
Energy Chairman Bernie Beaudoin
(right) and Kansas City Power & Light
Hawthorn Plant Manager Brent Davis
marked the anniversary by burying a
time capsule outside the Hawthorn
Generating Station. The container will

be opened on May 13, 2012.

From those first 13 businesses downtown,
KCP&L has grown to serve approximately
485,000 residential, commercial and
industrial customers. The integrated utility
produced revenues of $1.0 billion and
operating income of $252 million in 2002.

Our Company has paid dividends each
quarter since 1923, as KCP&L and now as
Great Plains Energy. We have delivered
for shareholders, customers and employees,
through boom times and recessions, wars
and peacetime, fluctuating energy markets
and technology advances.

That’s the kind of company we are.

page 5
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GREAT PLAINS ENERGY
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K&mS&LS CM@? POW@T @9 nghlt performed well in 2002, increasing earnings

and revenues despite a soft economy and a catastrophic ice storm. Operational excellence in generation

and customer service puts KCP&L in a strong position to continue delivering solid results.

KCP&L EARNINGS, REVENUES UP

Our electric utility business turned in a strong
financial performance in 2002, despite weakness
in the overall economy and the impact of the
January ice storm.

KCP&L contributed net income of
$103 million, an increase of 5 percent from
$98 million the previous year. Utility revenues
grew 4.4 percent to $1.0 billion in 2002,
from $970,000 in 2001, although demand
from manufacturing customers was less
than robust as a result of slow growth in
the economy.

Restoration costs from the January ice storm
amounted to $51.3 million, reducing KCP&Ls
contribution to earnings per share by $0.18.
Even absorbing the impact of storm costs, the
utility business contributed $1.64 per share.

Wholesale Revenues vs.
Purchased Power

We were able to overcome the challenges
and deliver increased earnings through aggressive
cost management and a record level of power
generation in 2002. Increased plant availability
and a full year of Hawthorn #5 operations
allowed KCP&L to dramatically increase wholesale
sales of electricity. Increased wholesale revenues
helped to offset the economic softness in the
retail business.

KCP&L emerged from 2002 with a more
positive regulatory environment after regulatory
commissions in both Missouri and Kansas agreed
to KCP&L rate stability at this time.

In addition, we have teamed with other
utilities in Missouri to build understanding
throughout state government of the importance
of utilities to the state’s economy and infrastructure.
We believe this effort will lead to even more

KCP&L Average

Retail Price Comparison

In millions

Hawthome #5 Outage
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constructive dialogue with state legislators and

regulators on current and future energy issues.

Day in and day out, KCP&L associates
focus on the fundamentals and doing them

well, which adds up to operational excellence.
QOur utility operations already benefit from low
fuel costs compared with peers in the industry.

Under the Tier I initiative, KCP&L plant

managers as a team are examining non-fuel
areas of plant operations to increase efficiency.

Other efforts focus on more efficient purchasing

and contracting, reducing overtime and improving

work quality.

Satisfying customers is a pillar of our

Tier [ vision. To augment current measures
of reliability and responsiveness, KCP&L has
retained J.D. Power and Associates, a well-

known expert in consumer satisfaction, to

assist in benchmarking future progress in serving

customers’ needs.

S KT@E@@TZC Eﬂ@?f’g’}’ is meeting a growing need for businesses

to save costs on electricity by outsourcing their management of energy purchases

in states chat allow retail choice.

STRATEGIC ENERGY SERVES GROWING NEED

Strategic Energy, the Pittsburgh-based energy
management company, supplies electricity in
the competitive retail markets of six states.

Great Plains Energy is the majority
owner of Strategic Energy.

As a growth engine, revenues
of Strategic Energy increased 92
percent to $789 million in 2002,
from $412 million the previous
year. Strategic Energy’s contribution
to net income was $30 million,
up 37 percent from $22 million in
2001. Strategic Energy turned free
cash flow-positive in 2002, and
we expect it to dividend cash to
Great Plains Energy for the first
time in 2003.

More than 33,100 business and government
accounts currently outsource management of

Strategic Energy
Megawatt Hours

their power purchases to Strategic Energy.

Delivered

12

10

In millions of MWh

a

]

1999 2000 2001 2002
——ACTuAL ——!

The diverse customer base includes energy
users such as school districts, office buildings,

restaurant chains, hotel operators
and manufacturers.

The success of Strategic
Energy derives from customer
need to manage energy costs in
markets with retail choice.
Strategic Energy saves customers
money through in-depth regulatory
understanding, efficient manage-
ment and aggregation of the
demand from many contracts,
which allow cost-effective purchases
in the wholesale market. The
firm limits its risk by matching
long-term contracts to buy

wholesale power with long-term contracts to
supply power to customers.

LYOdIdd TVANNY 7001




GREAT PLAINS ENERGY

A strong team of leaders at Strategic growth from entering additional states.
Energy is managing the rapid growth. We Long-term relationships and high levels of
expect this business to expand in its current customer satisfaction suggest a solid future for
markets, and we also envision substantial Strategic Energy.

KLT G&S is an investment in the promising field of coalbed methane development

— with a track record of developing and realizing significant value for shareholders.

DEVELOPING UNCONVENTIONAL NATURAL GAS gains totaling $131 million and net gains
RESOURCES ' totaling $1.29 per share (adjusted for shares
Contributing to the long-term growth strategy of outstanding) by developing and timely divesting
Great Plains Energy, KLT Gas, headquartered in coalbed methane properties.
Houston, specializes in unconventional natural gas As a result of divestitures in 2000 and
resources through acquisition and development 2001, the five current KLT Gas projects are in
of coalbed methane projects. The Company early stages. No material income was realized, or
focuses on extracting methane that is trapped in expected, in 2002. KLT Gas is a complementary
underground coal, exploring and drilling wells to business that we expect to contribute to
demonstrate production and reserve value. long-term earnings growth as properties are
Over the past three years, this investment further developed.

has been profitable. KLT Gas has realized pretax

GREAT PLAINS ENERGY - A BRIGHT FUTURE

The resilience of Great Plains Energy continues to prove itself. With a seasoned team of managers, we
were able to make 2002 a positive year. KCP&L provides the solid foundation while the diversified
non-regulated businesses provide even more added growth and value.

As we concentrate on stability, disciplined growth and dividends, we envision a bright future. I
want to thank you for your support as a shareholder of Great Plains Energy. We are working hard for
you to deliver on our promises in a Tier [ fashion.

Bernie Beaudoin
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer
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Exctraordinary Effort in lce Storm

On January 31, 2002, the most
devastating ice storm on record
struck the Kansas City metropolitan
area, destroying trees and power
lines on an unprecedented scale.

That morning, 305,000 customers
of Kansas City Power & Light — more than two-thirds
of the utility’s customers — lost power.

KCP&L went to work with a heroic spirit, and the
utility marshaled every resource. Crews worked 16-hour
shifts. Management took on emergency support duties.
Qutside crews from 12 states came to our aid.

Remarkably, by the end of the next day, service was
restored to nearly 200,000 customers. Clearing debris
and repairing lines and equipment posed enormous
challenges, but essentially all customers were back in
service by February 9.
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In recognition of this extraordinary effort, the Edison
Electric Institute presented KCP&L its “2002 EEI
Emergency Response Award” in January 2003.

“I want to extend my personal thanks to my co-workers,
our friends from other utilities and partners in local and
state governments for their dedicated response. Thanks,
too, to KCP&L customers who stayed in touch and
offered patience and moral support,” said Bernie
Beaudoin, Chairman and CEQ.
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“What we’ve seen today is a great
example of energy and the environment
working hand-in-hand.”

CHRISTIE TODD WHITMAN - EPA ADMINISTRATOR

Hawthorn #5, the nation’s cleanest coal-fired generating plant, drew acclaim on
a July 25, 2002, visit to Kansas Clty Power & Light by Cheistle Todd Whitman,
Administrator of the Envirconmental Protection Ageney.

Christie Todd Whitman,
! EPA administrator, learns

-~ \ about the clean-coal
Hawthorn #5 plant,
EXCELLENCE AFFIRMED ! touring the control room

I with Great Plains Energy
| CEQ Bernie Beaudoin.

The country’s top environmental
regulator sang the praises of
Kansas City Power & Light on
a July 25, 2002, visit to our
Hawthorn #5 power plant.
“This facility is the type of
clean-coal plant that will help
us attain clean air, better health
and improved environmental
conditions across America,”
Churistie Todd Whitman, EPA
administrator, said. She called Hawthorne #5 “a notable
example of how industry, state government and EPA
can work together.”

COAL - RELIABLE, LOW-COST AND CLEAN

“Preserving the diversity of fuel sources is essential to
providing affordable energy. And coal is an important part

Fuel Mix for U.S. Generation

Source: Edison Electric Institute

3%

of the U.S. energy mix. It supplies more than half of the 9% ol
nation’s electricity,” Christie Todd Whitman, EPA © Nuclear
administrator, said on her visit to Hawthorn #5. “Thanks O Gas

. , e . 16% O Hydro/Other Renewable
to the ingenuity of individuals and corporations across & Fuel 0

America, we've developed clean-coal technologies that
produce reliable, low-cost energy while significantly reducing
emissions of harmful pollutants. The Hawthomn plant is a

52%
great example of these technologies at work.” 20%
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2:55 p.m. July 25 — EPA administrator

tler ds d Clean? EOW’COSE) re]habﬁe Christine Todd Whitman cited Great Plains

Energy Inc.’s rebuilt Hawthorn power plant

prov:i_der of electric service.” in Kansas City as an example of government
and industry working to make cleaner
BERNIE BEAUDOIN - GREAT PLAINS ENERGY ' power generation. .
CHAIRMAN, PRESIDENT AND CEO Clean coal technology is very real and
cost-effective,” Whitman said.

She cited a streamlined permit process as
one of the ways Great Plains and the EPA
worked together to expedite Hawthorn’s

reconstruction.
lbernie Beaudoin, president and CEO of

ACHIEVING TOP-TIER STATUS

The environmental achievements of Hawthorn #5 are representative

of operational excellence throughout the Kansas City Power & Light

generating system. “KCP&L provides a high level of reliability for Great Plains, which is Kansas City Power &

customers, as well as low-cost power compared with other Midwestern Light's holding company, said the rebuilt

utilities,” says Bernie Beaudoin, chairman, president and CEO of Great gen.era‘tln g unit, Hawthorn No. 5, is the
nation’s cleanest coal-fired plant.

Plains Energy. “We are very proud that KCP&L is at the forefront of
environmental compliance, and we want to continue this stewardship
in the future. The KCP&L team will remain vigorous in pursuing and
attaining top-tier status in all areas of service and operations.”

Hawthorn #5 Highlights

o 565 Megawatts, a significant power source for KCP&L and the Midwest

o State-of-the-art technology to control air emissions

o Meets Limits for nitrogen oxides, sulfur dioxide and particulates

o Designed for low-sulfur Powder River Basin coal

o Started up in June 2001 after rebuilding on accelerated schedule

o Won Power magazine's 2001 Marmaduke Award for power plant excellence

o Praised for clean coal use in President’s National Energy Policy Report, 2001
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GREAT PLAINS ENERGY

GREAT PLAINS ENERGY INC.
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

OFFICERS

GREAT PLAINS ENERGY INC.

Bernie Beaudoin

Chairman, President and

Chief Executive Officer

Dr. David L. Bodde

Charles N. Kimball
Professor of Technology
and Innovation at the
University of Missouri-
Kansas City

an endowed university
chair concerned with
creating economic value
from technology

Mark A. Ernst

Chairman, President and
Chief Executive Officer,
H&R Block, Inc.

a global provider of tax
preparation, investment,
mortgage and accounting
services

Randall C. Ferguson, Jr.

Retired Senior Location
Executive — Midmarket
West, IBM Corporation
a leading creator and
manufacturer of advanced
information technologies,
including computer systems,
software, network
systems, storage devices
and micro electronics

Dr. William K. Hall

Co-founder, Chairman
and Chief Executive
Officer, Procyon
Technologies, Inc.

a holding company with
investments in the aerospace
and defense industries

Luis A. Jimenez

Senior Vice President and
Chief Strategy Officer,
Pitney Bowes, Inc.

a $4.1 billion global
provider of integrated mail
and document management
solutions headquartered in
Stamford, Connecticut.
The Company serves over
2 million businesses of all
sizes through dealer and
direct operations

James A. Mitchell

Executive Fellow —
Leadership, Center for
Ethical Business Cultures
a not-for-profit organization
assisting business leaders

in creating ethical and

profitable cultures

William C. Nelson

Chairman, George K.
Baum Asset Management
a leading provider of invest-
ment management services
to individuals, foundations
and institutions

Dr. Linda Hood Talbott

Chairman, Center for
Philanthropic Leadership
and President, Talbott &
Associates

consultants in strategic
planning, philanthropic
management and
development to foundations,
corporations and nonprofit
organizations

Robert H. West

Retired Chairman of the
Board and Chief
Executive Officer, Butler
Manufacturing Company
supplier of non-residential
building systems

Bernie Beaudoin
Chairman, President and

Chief Executive Officer
William H. Downey

Douglas M. Morgan
Vice President —
Information Technology
and Support Services

Executive Vice President Brenda Nolte
. Vice President —
Jeanie S. Latz Public Affairs

Executive Vice President —
Corporate and Shared
Services and Secretary

Andrea F. Bielsker
Senior Vice President —
Finance, Chief Financial
Officer and Treasurer

Andrew B. Stroud, Jr.
Vice President —
Human Resources

William G. Riggins
General Counsel

Lori A. Wright
Controller

KANSAS CITY POWER & LIGHT COMPANY

William P. Herdegen 111
Vice President —
Distribution Operations

Bernie Beaudoin
Chairman and Chief

Executive Officer

William H. Downey

President

Andrea F. Bielsker
Senior Vice President —
Finance, Chief Financial
Officer and Treasurer

Nancy J. Moore
Vice President —
Customer Services

Richard A. Spring
Vice President —
Transmission Services

Jeanie S. Latz Lori A. Wright

Corporate Secretary Controller
Stephen T. Easley

Vice President —

Generation Services
STRATEGIC ENERGY, L.L.C. KLT GAS INC.

Bruce B. Selkirk
President

Richard M. Zomnir
President and Chief

Executive Officer

page 12




FINANCIAL REPORT

PAQGE
Cautionary Statements Regarding Forward-Looking Information . ............... ... ... ... 14
Glossary of Terms . .. ..ottt et e e e 15
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditions and Results of Operations. . . . ... 17
Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risks . ............ ... . oL, 47
Financial Statements
Great Plains Bmergy. . o« o oottt ettt et e
Consolidated Statements of Income . ... ... e 49
Consolidated Balance Sheets. ... ...ttt e 50
Consolidated Statements of Capitalization . .. ......oov i 51
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows . . ... oottt 52
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income . ........... oo 53
Consolidated Statements of Retained Earnings. .. ......... ... i 53
Kansas City Power & Light Company. ... i
Consolidated Statements of Income . ... ... oo e 54
Consolidated Balance Sheets. .. ... ... .. i 55
Consolidated Statements of Capitalization .. ...t 56
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows . . ... ... o i et 57
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income .. ......... ... ... . . .. . 58
Consolidated Statements of Retained Earnings. .. .............. oo o il 58
Great Plains Energy
Kansas City Power & Light Company
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. . ... ... ovtin it 59
Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure. . . . . . 106
Independent Auditors’ Report — Deloitte & Touche LLP to the
Board of Directors and Shareholders of Great Plains Emergy ...................... . ... 107
Independent Auditors’ Report ~ Deloitte & Touche LLP to the
Board of Directors and Shareholders of KCP&L ... 108
Report of Independent Accountants — PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
to the Shareholders and the Board of Directors of Great Plains Energy. . .........ooou.... 109
Report of Independent Accountants — PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
to the Shareholder and the Board of Directors of KCP&L . ...t 110
Independent Auditors’ Report — Deloitte & Touche LLP to the
Board of Directors and Stockholders of DTI Holdings, Inco . . ..o vvv i, 111
CEQO and CFO Certifications ~ Great Plains Energy

and Kansas City Power & Light Company . ...ttt

page 13

190d3ad TVANNY 7007




CAUTIONARY STATEMENTS REGARDING CERTAIN FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION
Statements made in this report that are not based on historical facts are forward-looking, may involve
risks and unceriainties, and are intended to be as of the date when made. In connection with the safe
harbor provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, the registrants are providing a
number of important faciors that could cause actual results to differ materially from the provided
forward-looking information. These important factors include:

future economic conditions in the regional, national and international markets

market perception of the energy industry and the Company

changes in business sirategy, operations or development plans

state and federal legislative and regulatory actions or developments, including deregulation, re-

regulation and restructuring of the electric utility industry and constrainis placed on the Company’s

~actions by the 35 Act

o adverse changes in applicable laws, regulations, rules, principles or practices governing tax,

accounting and environmental matters inciuding, but not fimited to, air quality

financial market conditions including, but not limited to, changes in interest rates

ability to maintain current credit ratings

availability and cost of capital

inflation rates

effectiveness of risk management policies and procedures and the ability of counterparties to satisfy

their contractual commitments

impact of terrorist acts

increased competition including, but not limited to, retail choice in ihe eleciric utility industry and the

entry of new competitors

ability to carry out marketing and sales plans

weather conditions including weather-relaied damage

cost and availability of fuel

ability to achieve generation planning goals and the occurrence of unplanned generation outages

delays in the anficipated in-service dates of additional generating capacity

nuclear operations

ability to enter new markets successfully and capitalize on growth opportunities in non-regulated

businesses

o performance of projects underiaken by our non-regulated businesses and the success of efforts to
invest in and develop new opportunities, and

o other risks and uncertainties.

G o O o

o © 0 0 ©

(&}

o

O 0O 0 o O O ©

This list of factors is not all-inclusive because it is not possible to predict all factors.
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GLOSSARY OF TERMS

The following is a glossary of frequently used abbreviations or acronyms that are found throughout this

report:

Abbreviation or Acronym

35 Act

ABO

APB

ARB
Bracknell
CO,

CoLl

CellNet
Clean Alr Act
Compact
Consolidated KCP&L
DIP Loan
DOE

o7l

Digital Teleport
EIRR

ELC

EPA

EPS

ERISA

FASB

FERC

GAAPR

GPP

Great Plains Energy
HSS

Holdings

IBEW

IEC

IRS
KCC
KCP&L

KLT Gas

KLT Energy Services
KLT Inc.

KLT Investments
KLT Telecom

MAGC

MACT

MISO

MmBtu

Definition

Pubiic Utiiity Holding Company Act of 1835

Accumulated Benefit Obligation

Accounting Principles Board

Accounting Research Bulletin

Bracknell Corporation

Carbon Dioxide

Corporate Owned Life Insurance

CellNet Data Systems Inc.

Clean Air Act Amendments of 19280

Central Interstate Low-Level Radioactive Waste Compact

KCP&L and its subsidiary HSS

Debtor-in-Possession Financing

Department of Energy

DTl Holdings, Inc. and its subsidiaries Digital Teleport, Inc.
and Digital Teleport of Virginia, Inc.

Digital Teleport, Inc.

Environmental improvement Revenue Refunding

Environmental Lighting Concepts, Inc.

Environmental Protection Agency

Earnings per share

Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974

Financial Accounting Standards Board

Federal Energy Regulatory Commission

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles

Great Plains Power Incorporated, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Great Plains Energy

Great Plains Energy Incorporated

Home Service Soiutions Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of KCP&L

DTI Holdings, inc.

International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers

Innovative Energy Consultants inc., a whoily-owned subsidiary
of Great Plains Energy

Internal Revenue Service

The State Corporation Commission of the State of Kansas

Kansas City Power & Light Company, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Great Plains Energy

KLT Gas Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of KLT Inc.

KLT Energy Services Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of KLT Inc.

KLT inc., a wholly-owned subsiciary of Great Piains Energy

KLT Investments Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of KLT Inc.

KLT Telecom inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of KLT Inc.

Material Adverse Change

Maximum Achievable Control Technology

Midwest Independent System Operator

Million British Thermal Units
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MPSC

MW

MW

NEIL

NERC

NOy

NRGC

©Cl

RSAE

RTO

Reardon
Recelvables Company
SEC

SPP

SFAS

Strategic Energy
WCNOC

Wolf Creek
Worry Free

Missouri Public Service Commission

Megawaltt

Megawatt hour

Nuclear Electric Insurance Limited

North American Electric Reliability Council

Nitrogen Oxide

Nuclear Regulatory Commission

Other Comprehensive Income

R.S. Andrews Enterprises, [n¢., a subsidiary of HSS
Regional Transmission Organization

Reardon Capital, L.L.C.

Kansas City Power & Light Receivables Company
Securities and Exchange Commission

Southwest Power Pcol, Inc.

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
Strategic Energy, L.L.C, a subsidiary of KLT Energy Services
Wolf Creek Nuclear Operating Corporation

Wolf Creek Nuclear Operating Station

Warry Free, a wholly-owned subsidiary of HSS
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

The Management's Discussion and Analysis ¢f Financial Condition and Results of Operations that
foliow are a combined presentation for Great Plains Energy and KCP&L, both registrants under this
filing. The discussion and analysis by management focuses on those factors that had a material effect
on the financial condition and resulis of operations of the registrants during the periods presented. [t
should be read in conjunction with the accompanying consolidated financial statements and related
notes.

Great Plains Energy Incorporated
Effective October 1, 2001, Great Plains Energy became the holding company of KCP&L, GPP and KLT
Inc. As a diversified energy company, its reportable business segments include:

o KCP&L, an integrated electric utility in the states of Missouri and Kansas, provides reliable,
affordable electricity to retail customers;

e Strategic Energy provides power suppiy coordination services in several electricity markets offering
retail choice, including Pennsylvania, California, Ohio, New York, Massachusetis and Texas; and

o KLT Gas explores for, develops and preduces unconventional natural gas resources.

Effective October 1, 2001, all outstanding KCP&L shares were exchanged one for one for shares of
Great Plains Energy. The Great Plains Energy trading symbol “GXP” replaced the KCP&L trading
symbol “KLT” on the New York Stock Exchange.

During 2002, the Company's management revised its corporate business strategy. The goal is {0
become a premier diversified energy company that achieves annual growth in earnings per share in a
financially disciplined manner. To achieve this goal, Great Plains Energy intends to focus on its three
reportable segments of business:

o Stressing operational excelience in the utility operations of KCP&L,;
o Expanding Strategic Energy’'s business model into new markets; and
o Developing KLT Gas into a leading unconventional natural gas exploration company.

Critical Accounting Policies

Pensions

KCP&L incurs significant costs in providing non-contributory defined pension benefits. The costs are
ceveloped from actuarial valuations that are dependent upon numerous factors resuiting from actual
plan experience and assumptions of future plan experience.

Pension costs are impacted by actual employee demographics (including age, compensation levels and
employment periods), the level of contributions made to the plan, earnings on plan assets and plan
amendments. [n addition, pensicn costs are alsc affected by changes in key actuarial assumptions,
including anticipated rates of return on plan assets and the discount rates used in determining the
projected benefit obligation and pension costs.

In accordance with SFAS No. 87, “Emplovers’ Accounting for Pensions”, changes in pension
obligations associated with these factors may not be immediately recognized as pension costs on the
income statement. KCP&L generally recognizes gains and losses by amortizing over a five-year period
the rolling five-year average of unamortized gains and losses. The key assumptions used in
developing our 2002 pension disclosures were a 8.75% discount rate, a 9.0% expected return on plan
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asssets and a 4.1% compensation rate increase. These are consistent with the prior years’ assumptions
except that the discount rate was 7.25% and 8.00% in 2001 and 2000, respectively.

The following chart reflects the sensitivilies associated with a 0.5 percent increase or decrease in
certain actuarial assumptions. Each sensitivity refiects an evaluation of the change based soiely on a
change in that assumption.

=

Impact on impact on
Projected Impact on 2002
Change in Benefit Pension Pension
Actuarial assumption Assumption Obligation Liability Expense
(millions)
Discount rate 0.5% increase $ (20.2) $ (7.6) $ (1.0)
Rate of return on plan assets 0.5% increase - - (1.8)
Discount rate 0.5% decrease 20.6 9.4 1.1
Rate of return on plan assets 0.5% decrease - - 1.8

In selecting an assumed discount rate, fixed income security vield rates for 30-year Treasury bonds and |
corporate high-grade bond yields are considered. The assumed rate of return on plan assets is the
weighted average of long-term returns forecast for the type of investments heid by the plan.

In 2002, KCP&L recorded non-cash expense of approximately $5.5 million, a $17.7 miilion increase
from the previous year. Pension expense for 2003 is expected to be approximately $18.1 miilion, an
increase of $12.6 million over 2002. The increase is due primarily to lower returns on plan assets.

KCP&L's pension plan assets are primarily made up of equity and fixed income investments. The
market value of the plan assets has been affected by the sharp declines in equity markets since the
third quarter of 2000. During 2001, plan assets declined in value by approximately $170 million.
During 2002, the pian continued 1o experience losses as plan assets declined an additional $71 million
in market value. At December 31, 2002, the fair value of pension plan assets was $324.2 million.

As a result of the decline in the equity markets and lower discount rates in 2002, the total ABO of the
plans exceeded the fair value of plan assels at December 31, 2002. As prescribed by SFAS No. 87,
KCP&L has recorded a minimum pension liability of $63.1 million. This was offset by an intangible
asset of $19.2 million, the balance of unamortized prior service costs, with the remaining $43.9 million
charged to common equity through OCl. The impact on OCI, net of deferred tax, was $26.8 million.
However, there was no impact on net income. The impact on OCI could reverse in future periods to the
extent the fair value of trust assets exceeds the ABO.

Absent a substantia! recovery in the equity markets, pension costs, casn funding requirements and the
additional pension liability could substantially increase in future years.

Regulatory Matlers

As a regulated utility, KCP&L is subject to the provisions of SFAS No. 71, “Accounting for the Effects of
Certain Types of Regulation”. Accordingly, KCP&L has recorded assets and liabilities on its balance
sheet resulting from the effects of the ratemaking process, which would not be recorded under GAAP if
KCP&L was not regulated. Regulatory assets represent incurred costs that have been deferred
because they are probable of future recovery in customer rates. Regulatory liabilities generally
represent probable future reductions in revenue or refunds to customers. At December 31, 2002,
KCP&L's regulatory assets and liabilities totaled $128.9 millicn and $103.6 million, respectively.
KCP&L's continued ability to meet the criteria for application of SFAS No. 71 may be affected in the
future by competitive forces and restruciuring in the electric industry. In the event that SFAS No. 71 no
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longer applied to all, or a separable portion of KCP&L’s operations, the related regulatory assets and
liabilities would be written off unless an appropriate regulatory recovery mechanism is provided.
Additionally, these factors could result in an impairment of utility plant assets as determined pursuant to
SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-lived Assets.” See Note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements for a discussion of regulatory assets and liabilities.

At the end of January 2002, a severe ice storm occurred throughout large portions of the Midwest,
including the greater Kansas City metropolitan area. In the second guarter of 2002, the KCC approved
the stipulation and agreement that KCP&L had reached with the Commission staff and the Citizens
Utility Ratepayers Board with regard to treatment of the Kansas portion of the ice storm costs. Under
this stipulation and agreement, KCP&L received a rate moratorium until 2006 in exchange for KCP&L's
agreement to not seek recovery of the $16.5 million expense for the Kansas jurisdictional portion of the
storm costs and reduce rates by $12 - $13 million in 2003. Additionally, KCP&L agreed to determine
depreciation expense of Wolf Creek using a 60 year life instead of a 40 year life effective January 2003,
which results in a reduction of expense by approximately $8 million in 2003. KCP&L also agreed to file
a rate case by May 15, 2006. In December 2002, the KCC approved tariffs implementing the
stipulation and agreement, which resulted in a reduction of $12.4 million in annual Kansas retail
revenues, effective January 1, 2003.

Effective August 2002, the MPSC approved KCP&L'’s application for an accounting authority order
related to the Missouri jurisdictional portion of the storm costs. The order allows KCP&L to defer and
amortize $20.1 million, representing the Missouri impact of the storm, through January 2007. The
amortization began in September 2002 and totaled $1.5 million in 2002. KCP&L will amortize
approximately $4.6 million annually for the remainder of the amortization period. In October 2002, the
Staff of the MPSC conciuded its review of the Missouri jurisdictional earnings for KCP&L and
determined that the current rate levels did not warrant action.

Asset Impairment, including Goodwill and Other Intangible Assels

Long-lived assets and intangible assets subject to amortization are periodically reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be
recoverable as prescribed under SFAS No. 144. SFAS No. 144 reqguires that if the sum of the
undiscounted expected future cash fiows from an asset is less than the carrying value of the asset, an
asset impairment must be recognized in the financial statements. The amount of impairment
recognized is calculated by subtracting the fair value of the asset from the carrying value of the asset.
The adoption of SFAS No. 144 had no impact on Great Plains Energy and consolidated KCP&L.

Goodwil! is tested for impairment at least annually and more frequently when indicators of impairment
exist as prescribed under SFAS No. 142, "Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets". SFAS No. 142
requires that if the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying value including goodwill, the
implied fair value of the reporting unit goodwill must be compared with its carrying value 1o determine
the amount of impairment. See Note 6 to the consolidated financial statements for information
regarding the impact of adopting SFAS No. 142 on goodwill and goodwill amortization.

Goodwill of $15.9 million was recorded in conjunction with KLT Energy Services’ indirect ownership
acquisitions of Strategic Energy from 1999 through 2001. At December 31, 2001, the unamortized
balance of goodwill associated with Strategic Energy was $14.1 million. During 2002, additional
goodwill of $12.0 million was recorded at IEC related to its 6% indirect ownership acquisition of
Strategic Energy. Strategic Energy’s transition and 2002 annual impairment tests have been
completed and there was no impairment of the Strategic Energy goodwill. At December 31, 2002, the
unamortized balance of Strategic Energy goodwili on Great Plains Energy's balance sheet was $26.1
million.
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Goodwill has been recorded by RSAE at various times as it purchased property and businesses. At
December 31, 2002, the unamortized balance of RSAE goodwill was $20.0 million.

RSAE's gocdwill was reviewed for impairment as of January 1, 2002, as required under the
implementation provisions of SFAS No. 142. Based upon the results of a third party study and
budgeted 2002 revenue, RSAE recorded a $3.0 million impairment of gcodwill. The impairment is
reflected as a cumulative effect to January 1, 2002, of a change in accounting principle.

During September 2002, the Company conducted its first annual impairment test on RSAE's goodwill
based on a discounted cash flow model. The model assumed a discount rate of 6.8% and sales growth
of 3% for five years with revenues stable thereafier. The model indicated no additional impairment had
occurred.

Management believes that the accounting estimates related to impairment analyses required under
SFAS No. 142 and SFAS No. 144 are critical accounting estimates. The estimates are highly
susceptible to change from period to pericd because it requires company management to make
assumptions about future sales, operating costs and discount rates over an indefinite life. Historically,
actual margins and volumes have fluctuated and, tc a great extent, fluctuations are expected tc
continue. The estimates of future margins are based upon internal budgets, which incorporate
estimates of customer growth, business expansion and weather trends, among other items.

Related Party Transactions

In November 2002, the Board of Directors of the Company approved a merger of ELC into IEC.
Gregory J. Orman, former Executive Vice President — Corporate Development and Strategic Planning
of the Company was the majority sharehclder of ELC and received $10.1 million in Company common
stock and a note. See Note 9 to the consclidated financial statements.

In September 2000, KLT Energy Services exercised an option tc purchase shares of Brackneil common
stock owned by Reardon and received a majority of the shares in 2000 and a warrant to purchase the
remainder. In May 2001, KLT Energy Services exercised the warrant for 274,976 shares and sold
278,800 shares in June 2001. In November 2001, Bracknell common stock ceased trading and as a
result KLT Energy Services wrote off its remaining investment in Bracknell. Gregory J. Orman, former
Executive Vice President — Corporate Development and Strategic Planning of Great Plains Energy and
former President and CEQC of KLT Inc., owned 55% of the membership interests of Reardon and
approximately 1% of Bracknell. See Note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

page 20




Great Plains Energy Results of Operations

==

2002 2001 2000
(millions)

Operating revenues $1,861.9 $ 1,461.9 $1,115.9
Fuel (159.7) (163.8) (153.1)
Purchased power - KCP&L (48.2) (65.2) (105.7)
Purchased power - Strategic Energy (685.4) (329.0) (84.4)

Revenues, net of

fuel and purchased power 970.6 903.9 772.7

Other operating expenses (5627.4) (516.5) (447.1)
Depreciation and depletion (151.6) (158.8) (132.4)
Gain (loss) on property 0.1 (171.4) 99.1

Operating income 291.7 57.2 292.3
Loss from equity investments (1.2) (0.4) (19.4)
Non-operating income (expenses) (23.9) (29.5) (15.4)
Interest charges (89.1) (103.3) (75.7)
Income taxes (48.3) 35.9 (53.2)
Early extinguishment of debt - 15.9 -
Cumulative effects of changes

in accounting principles {3.0) - 30.1
Net income (loss) 126.2 (24.2) 158.7
Preferred dividends (1.7) (1.6) (1.6)

Earnings (loss) available for common stock § 124.5 $ (25.8) $ 157.1

2002 compared to 2001
Great Plains Energy’s 2002 earnings, as detailed in the table below, increased to $124.5 million, or

$1.98 per share, from a loss of $25.8 million, or $(0.42) per share, compared 1o the same period of
2001.

Earnings (Loss) Per

Earnings (Loss) Great Plains Energy Share
2002 2001 2000 2002 2001 2000
(millions)
KCP&L $ 102.9 $ 968 $ 5684 $ 1.64 $ 1.57 $ 0.91
Subsidiary operations (4.2) (5.5) (13.5) (0.08) (0.09) (0.22)
Cumulative effect of changes
in accounting principles (3.0) - 30.1 (0.05) - 0.49
Consolidated KCP&L 95.7 91.3 73.0 1.53 1.48 1.18
Strategic Energy 29.7 21.8 5.9 0.48 0.35 0.09
KLT Gas - 14.3 78.2 - 0.23 1.28
Other non-regulated operations (0.9) (189.1) (1.0) (0.02) (2.74) (0.01)
Eamings excluding extraordinary item 124.5 (41.7) 157.1 1.99 (0.68) 2.54
Early extinguishment of debt - 15.9 - - 0.26 -
Great Plains Energy $ 1245 $ (25.8) $ 157.1 $ 1.98 $(042) §$ 254

KCP&L’s increase in earnings is the result of warmer summer 2002 weather compared to 2001,
continued load growth and a 40% increase in wholesale MWh sales, which combined with other net
positive impacts of the return to service of Hawthorn No. 5 in mid-2001 to more than offset increased
expenses. The increased expenses included the January 2002 ice storm costs and increased
administrative and general expenses primarily from increased pension expenses.
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Strategic Energy's earnings increased $22.9 million, excluding earnings during 2601 of $15.0 million
from the sale of power purchased from one supplier under wholesale contracts that expired at the end
of 2001. The increase is due to continued growth in retail electric sales resulting from increases in
customer accounts and MWh's served. This was partially offset by increased salaries and benefits and
an increase in income taxes as a result of increased sales in states with higher income tax rates for the
current year.

During 2002, KLT Gas focused on the acquisition of additional leased acreage and the testing and
development of several unconventional natural gas properties. KLT Gas’ earnings in 2001 refiect the
$12.0 million after tax gain on the sale of its 50% equity ownership in Patrick KLT Gas, LLC.

Other non-regulated operations included, ameng other things, a $3.8 million increase in earnings
primarily due to lower reductions in affordable housing limited partnerships in 2002 compared to 2001.
Additicnally, 2001 reflects $173.8 million related to both DTI operating losses incurred in 2001 and the
$140.0 million net write-off following DTI's bankruptcy filings at the end of 2001. As a result of DTI's
filing for bankruptcy protection, DTl is not included in 2002 resulis of operations.

The 2002 cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles reflects RSAE's write-down of goodwil
due to the adoption of SFAS No. 142. In 2001, prior to KLT Telecom’s purchase of a majority
ownership in DTI, DTl completed a tender offer for 50.4% of its outstanding senior discount notes. This
transaction resulted in a $15.9 miilion extracrdinary gain on the early extinguishment of debt.

2001 compared to 2000
Great Plains Energy’s 2001 earnings decreased from $157.1 million or $2.54 per share in 2000, to a

loss of $25.8 million, or $(0.42) per share.

KCP&L's increase in earnings was primarily the result of the significant net positive impacts of the
return to service of Hawthorn No. B in mid-2001. A significant reduction in purchased power expense,
especially in the summer months, combined with reduced fuel cost per MWh generated more than
offset increased fuel costs primarily due to an increase in MWh's generated and increased operating
expenses including depreciation and interest charges. KCP&L recorded $12.7 million of income taxes
in 2000 for a proposed RS adjustment related to COLI. Additionally, subsidiary operations in 2000
included a $12.2 miilion write-down of the investiment in RSAE.

Strategic Energy’s earnings increased $15.8 million primarily due to growth in retail electric sales and
higher earnings during 2001 than in 2000 on wholesale sales of the power supplied under wholesale
contracts, particularly during the summer months of 2001.

KLT Gas’ earnings decreased $64.9 million primarily due to the sale in late 2000 of producing natural
gas properties for an after tax gain of $68.0 million. The 2000 gain and the loss of gas production
revenue were partially offset by the $12.0 miilion after tax gain on KLT Gas’ 2001 sale of its 50% equity
ownership in Patrick KLT Gas, LLC.

Cther non-regulated operations inciuded $173.8 miilion related to both DTI operating losses in 2001
and the $140.0 million net write-off following DTI’s bankruptey filing at the end of 2001 pantially offset by
$9.1 million of eguity losses in DTl in 2000. Also included was a $6.7 miliion decrease primarity
attributable to recording more reductions in affordable housing limited parinerships in 2001 than 2000.

In 2001, prior to KLT Telecom’s purchase of majority ownership in DTI, DTl completed a tender offer for

50.4% of its outstanding senior discount notes. This transaction resuited in a $15.9 miilion
extraordinary gain on the early extinguishment of debt. The cumulative effect to January 1, 2000,
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reflects KCP&L's change in methods of amortizing unrecognized net gains and losses and
determination of expected return related to its accounting for pension expense.

For further discussion regarding each segment’s resuits of operations, see its respective section below.

Consolidated KCP&L

The following discussion of consolidated KCP&L results of operations includes KCP&L, an integrated
electric utility and HSS, an unregulated subsidiary of KCP&L. References to KCP&L, in the discussion
that follows, reflect only the operations of the integrated electric utility. The discussion excludes the
results of operations for GPP and KLT Inc. and subsidiaries, which were transferred to Great Plains
Energy on Cctober 1, 2001.

Consolidated KCP&L Business Qverview
As an integrated electric utility, KCP&L engages in the generation, transmission, distribution and sale of
electricity.

KCP&L's power business will have over 4,000 megawatis of generating capacity following the
completion of five combustion turbine units that will add 385 megawatts of peaking capacity. During
2001, KCP&L entered into a $200 million, five-year construction and synthetic operating lease
transaction for the five combustion turbines. During 2002, the lease was amended to reduce the
amount financed from the previously estimated $200 million to $176 million to reflect changes in the
estimated cost for the purchase, instailation, assembly and construction of the five combustion turbines.
Construction began during the third quarter of 2002 with the expected commercial operation of the five
combustion turbines in the spring and summer 2003.

KCP&L'’s delivery business consists of transmission and distribution facilities that serve almost 485,000
customers as of December 31, 2002. KCP&L continues to experience load growth approximating the
historical average of 2.0% to 2.5% annualiy through increased customer usage and additional
customers. Rates charged for eiectricity are below the nationai average.

At the end of January 2002, a severe ice storm occurred throughout large portions of the Midwest,
including the greater Kansas City metropolitan area. At its peak, the storm caused over 300,000
customer outages throughout the KCP&L service territory, an unprecedented level in the KCP&L's 120-
year history. Crews from other utilities in numerous states were cailed in to assist in the restoration of
power and power was restored in nine days. Costs related to the January ice storm were
approximately $51.3 million of which $14.7 million were capital expenditures and therefore charged to
utility plant. KCP&L expensed $16.5 million for the Kansas jurisdictional portion of the storm costs and
deferred $20.1 million of the storm costs applicable to Missouri. In January 2003, Edison Electric
Institute honored KCP&L for exemplary performance and dedication in restoring power {0 customers
during the storm and recognized KCP&L by awarding it the association’s annual “Emergency Response
Award”.

Under the FERC Order 2000, KCP&L, as an investor-cwned utility, is strongly encouraged to join a
FERC approved RTO. RTOCs combine regional transmission operations of utility businesses into a
regional organization that schedules transmission services and monitors the energy market to ensure
regional transmission reliability and non-discriminatory access. During the first quarter of 2002, the
SPP and the MISO voted to consolidate the two organizations to create a larger Midwestern RTO, a
non-profit organization that will operate in twenty states and one Canadian province. KCP&L is a
member of the SPP. The consolidation is expecied to be completed during the second quarter of 2003
and has received FERC approvai. The FERC has already approved an RTO proposal submitied by the
MISO. Additionally, regulatory approvals would have to be received from the MPSC and the KCC prior
to KCP&L's participation in an RTO. During 2003, KCP&L expects to make filings with the MPSC and
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KCC seeking permission to participate in the RTO resuiting from the merger of SPP and MISO. During
February 2003, KCP&L submitted to MISO a conditional application to joining the RTO resulting from
the merger of SPP and MISO.

During the third quarter of 2002, the FERC issued a Notice of Propcsed Rulemaking to Remedy Undue
Discrimination through Open Access Transmission Service and Standard Electricity Market Design.
The proposed rulemaking is designed to establish a single non-discriminatory open access
transmission tariff with a single transmission service that is applicable to all users of the interstate
transmission grid. All public utilities that own, control or operate interstate transmission facilities would
be required to become independent transmission providers, turn cver the operation of their
transmission facilities to an RTO that meets the definition of an independent transmission provider or
contract with an entity that meets the definition of an independent transmission provider. KCP&L filed
comments with the FERC on the proposed rulemaking in November 2002. The FERC has recently
announced that it will issue a white paper on Standard Electricity Market Design in April 2008 and
accept comments on that paper before issuing a final rule, which is now expected in the third or fourth
quarter of 2008. KCP&L's participation in the RTO resulting from the merger of SPP and MISO would
fulfill the majority of the requirements of this proposed ruiemaking.

KCP&L has a wheliy-owned unregulated subsidiary, HSS, that holds investments in businesses
primarily in residential services. HSS is comprised of two direct subsidiaries, RSAE and Worry Free.
HSS is evaluating strategic alternatives concerning its investments, which could inciude a possible sale
of a portion or all of the business.

In 2001, HSS increased its ownership in RSAE, a consumer services company headquartered in
Atlanta, Georgia, from 49% 10 72%. Accordingly, HSS changed its method of accounting for RSAE
from the equity method to consolidation. During 2001, HSS recorded losses from its investment in
RSAE that resulted in a negative investment balance. As a result of these losses, the minority interest
in RSAE was reduced to zerc. Accordingly, as long as RSAE is consolidated, any future losses of
RSAE would be recorded by HSS at 100%, which will further decrease the investment below zero.
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Consolidaled KCP&L Results of Operations

The following table summarizes consolidated KCP&L's comparative results of operations. For
comparative purposes only, 2001 and 2000 presented below have been restated to exclude the resulis
of cperations for KLT [nc. and subsidiaries and GPP, which were transferred to Great Plains Energy on
Cctober 1, 2001. Therefore, 2001 and 2000 presented below do not agree with 2001 and 2000
presented in KCP&L's consolidated statements of income and should only be used in the context of the
discussion and analysis that foliows.

==

2002 2001 2000
(millions)

Operating revenues $1,071.3 $ 1,033.7 $ 0558
Fuel {159.7) (163.8) (153.1)
Purchased power (46.2) (65.2) (105.7)

Revenues, net of

fuel and purchased power 865.4 804.7 697.0

Other operating expenses (468.8) (435.9) (387.9)
Depreciation and depletion (147.9) (138.7) (126.0)
Loss on propeity - (1.6) (8.9)

Operating income 248.7 228.5 173.2
Loss from equity investments - (0.1) (6.6)
Non-operating income (expenses) (5.1) (4.9) (15.0)
interest charges (82.0) (79.8) (62.8)
income taxes (62.9) (51.3) (44.3)
Cumulative effect of a change

in accounting principle (3.0) - 30.1
Net income 95.7 92.4 74.6
Preferred dividends - (1.1) (1.6)
_ Earnings available for common stock $ 957 $ 913 $ 730

Consolidated KCP&L's earnings increased $4.4 million in 2002 compared to 2001, as a resuit of
warmer summer 2002 weather compared to 2001, continued load groewth, and a 40% increase in
wholesale MWh sales. These factors combined with other net positive impacts of the return to service
of Hawthorn No. 5 in mid-2001 to more than offset increased expenses. The increased expenses
included $18.0 million of January 2002 ice storm costs and $25.4 million in increased KCP&L
administrative and general expenses primarily attributable to increased pension expenses.

The Company adopted SFAS No. 142, effective January 1, 2002. In accordance with SFAS No. 142,
the Company completed its transition impairment test of RSAE goodwill and determined that a $3.0
miilion write-down of goodwill was required. As a result, KCP&L'’s consolidated 2002 net income
reflects the $3.C million cumulative effect to January 1, 2002, of a change in accounting principle.
Ongoing annual impairment tests are required by SFAS No. 142. RSAE completed its first annual
impairment test in September 2002. The test indicated no impairment.

Consolidated KCP&L's earnings increased $18.3 million in 2001 compared to 2000, primarily due to the
significant net positive impacts of the return to service of Hawthorn No. 5 in mid-2001. A $40.5 million
reduction in purchased power expense, primarily in the summer months, combined with reduced fuel
cost per MWh generated more than offset the increased KCP&L fuel cosis associated with increased
MWh's generated and increased operating expenses including a $12.7 million increase in depreciation
and a $17.0 millicn increase in interest charges. KCP&L recorded $12.7 miliion of additional income
taxes in 2000 for a proposed IRS adjustment related to COLIL. Additionally, in 2000, HSS recorded a
$12.2 miliion write-down of its investment in RSAE.
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Effective January 1, 2000, KCP&L changed its methods of amortizing unrecognized net gains and
losses and the determination of expected return related to its accounting for pension expense.
Accounting principles required KCP&L to record the cumulative effect of these changes, resulting in a
$30.1 million increase in 2000 earnings.

Comsolidated KCP&L Sales Revenues and MWh Sales

% %
2002 Change 2001 Change 2000
Retail revenues (millions)
Residential $ 3674 5 $ 348.8 (1) $ 352.1
Commercial 418.6 2 411.8 1 406.3
Industrial 23.7 (10} 103.9 (19) 127.6
Other retail revenues 8.6 3 8.3 2 8.1
Total retail 888.3 2 872.8 (2) 894.1
W holesale revenues 108.0 36 79.3 78 44.5
OCther revenues 13.6 (12) 15.4 15 13.4
KCP&L electric revenues 1,009.9 4 967.5 2 852.0
Subsidiary revenues 61.4 (7) 66.2 *NM 3.7
Consclidated KCP&L revenues $1,071.3 4 $1,033.7 8 $ 955.71

“NM -- Not meaningful due to 2001 consolidation of RSAE.

% %
2002 Change 2001 Change 2000

Retail MWh sales (thousands)
Residential 5,004 6 4,729 - 4,725
Commercial 6,902 2 6,798 2 6,687
Industrial 1,968 (8) 2,130 (21) 2,713
Other retail MWh sales 83 6 78 3 76
Total retail 13,957 2 13,735 (@) 14,201
Wholesale MWh sales 4,969 40 3,558 107 1,718
KCP&L electric MWh sales 18,926 9 17,293 9 15,919

Retail revenues impreved slightly in 2002 compared to 2001 due to warmer 2002 summer weather and
continued load growth which increased residential and commercial revenues $25.4 million mostly offset
by a reduction in industrial revenues. The reduction in industrial revenues was primarily due to a
weakened economy and the loss of $4.4 million in revenues from one of KCP&L’s major industrial
customers. Load growth consists of higher usage-per-customer and the addition of new customers.
The average number of both residential and commercial customers increased approximately 2% in
2002 as compared to 2001. Less than 1% of revenues include an automatic fuel adjustment provision.

Excluding the impact of the loss cf $22.9 million in revenues from one of KCP&L's major industrial
customers, retail revenues and MWh sales remained relatively consistent in 2001 compared {o 2000.
Extremely mild weather during the second half of 2001 mostly offset the colder winter and warmer
spring and early summer weather experienced in the first half of 2001 and continued load growth. The
average number of both residential and commercial customers increased approximately 2% in 2001 as
compared o 2000.

The major industrial customer declared bankruptcy on February 7, 2001, and closed its Kansas City,
Missouri facilities cn May 25, 2001. KCP&L has continued to be able to mitigate the effect of the loss
with cther sales.
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Bulk power sales, the major component of wholesale sales, vary with system requirements, generating
unit and purchased power availability, fuel cosis and requirements of other electric systems. Wholesale
MWh sales increased 40% in 2002 compared to 2001 and 107% in 2001 compared to 2000 due to
increased bulk power MWh's sold. Additionally, wholesale sales revenue increased $1.7 million in
2002 compared to 2001 and $2.5 million in 2001 compared to 2000 due to additional capacity sales
beginning in the last half of 2001.

KCP&L Fusl and Purchased Power

The fuel cost per MWh generated and the purchased power cost per MWh have a significant impact on
the results of operations for KCP&L. Generation fuel mix can change the fuel cost per MWh generated
substantially. Nuclear fuel costs per MWh generated remain substantially less than the cost of coal per
MWh generated. Replacement power costs for planned Wolf Creek outages are accrued evenly over
the unit's operating cycle. KCP&L expects its cost of nuclear fuel to remain fairly constant through the
year 2008. Coal has a significantly lower cost per MWh generated than natural gas and oil. KCP&L's
procurement strategies continue to provide delivered coal costs below the regional average. The cost
per MWh for purchased power is still significantly higher than the fuel cost per MWh of coal and nuclear
generation. KCP&L continualiy evaluates its system requirements, the availability of generating units,
availability and cost of fuel supply, availability and cost of purchased power and the requirements of
other electric systems to provide reliable power economicaily. Fossil plants averaged 74% of total
generation and the nuclear plant the remainder over the last three years.

Fuel costs decreased $4.1 million in 2002 compared to 2001, despite a 12% increase in generation.
Lower fuel cost per MWh generated due to additional coal and iess natural gas and oil in the generation
fuel mix was the primary reason for the decline in fuel costs. The return to service of Hawthorn No. 5, a
low cost coal-fired unit, in mid-2001 contributed to the change in generation fuel mix. Significantly
lower naturai gas prices and a reduction in the cost of uranium during 2002 also contributed to the
lower fuel cost. Fuel costs increased $10.7 million in 2001 compared to 2000 primarily due to a 13%
increase in MWh’s generated partially offset by a reduction in the fuel cost per MWh generated. The
increase in MWh's generated was primarily due to Hawthorn No. 5, a coal-fired unit, returning to
operation in mid-2001 and the impact of the scheduied 2000 outage at Wolf Creek, a nuclear unit. The
additional avaiiability of these two low fuel cost units in 2001 changed the generation fuel mix and
lowered the cost per MWh generated.

Purchased power expenses decreased $19.0 million in 2002 compared to 2001. Cost per MWh
purchased decreased approximately 31% in 2002 compared to 2001 due to regional energy availability,
a less volatile energy market and decreased MWh purchases during peak hours. Also contributing to
the decrease was a 15% decrease in MWh's purchased due to the increased availability of KCP&L
generating units. Purchased power expenses decreased $40.5 million in 2001 compared to 2000
primarily due 0 a 38% decrease in MWh's purchased in 2001 compared to 2000. The decrease in
MWHh'’s purchased was primarily due to the increased availability of KCP&L's generating units during
2001 compared to 2000. increased availability also allowed KCP&L to reduce its cost of purchased
capacity by $7.6 million in 2001 as compared to 2000. [n addition, the cost per MWh was down 4% in
2001 compared to 2000.
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Consolidated KCP&L Other Operating Expenses (including operating, maintenance and general
taxes)
KCP&L's other operating expenses increased $43.0 million in 2002 compared tc 2001 primarily due to
the following:
o expensing the $16.5 million Kansas jurisdictional portion of the January 2002 ice storm and
amortizing $1.5 million of the Missouri jurisdictional portion of the ice storm
o increased administrative and general expenses:
o $17.7 million increased pension expense due to a significant decline in the market value of plan
assets
o $3.3 million increased injuries and damages expenses resulting from additional claims and the
settlement of outstanding claims
o $8.2 millionincreased general taxes primarily due to increases in property tax levy rates

HSS' other expenses decreased $10.1 million in 2002 compared to 2001 due to the closure of some
RSAE locations and the implementation of cost saving sirategies at RSAE.

KCP&L's other cperating expenses decreased $17.3 million in 2001 compared to 2000 primarily due to
the following:
o $3.7 million decreased operating expenses for replacement power insurance because of the
availability of Hawthorn No. 5
o decreased administrative and general expenses including:
o  $2.0 million of additional customer information system scftware consulting in 2000
o $2.7 million of advertising not continued in 2001
o  $4.5 million decrease in pension expense due to strong returns on plan assets

HSS’ other expenses increased $65.3 miilion primarily due to the consolidation of RSAE following HSS’
increase in its ownership from 49% to 72% in 2001.

Consolidated KCP&L Depreciation

Consolidated KCP&L's depreciation expense increased $2.2 million in 2002 compared to 2001 and
$12.7 million in 2001 compared to 2000. The primary reason for the increases was increased capital
additions relating to Hawthorn No. 5, which was returned to service mid-2001. Additicnaily, KCP&L
paid $40.8 million to exercise its purchase option on the previously leased Hawthorn No. 6 unit in late
2001 and Hawthorn Nos. 7, 8 and 9 units were placed in service in mid-2000.

Consoclidated KCP&L Interest Charges

Consolidated KCP&L's interest charges increased $2.2 million in 2002 compared to 2001 and $17.0
million in 2001 compared tc 2000 primarily because of increased interest expense on long-ierm debt
and decreased allowance for borrowed funds used to finance construction, partiaily ofiset by a
decreased interest expense on short-term debt. A portion of the proceeds from long-term debt
issuances has been used {o pay down short-term debt.

Long-term debt interest expense
KCP&L's long-term debt interest expense increased $3.0 million in 2002 compared to 2001, primarily

due to higher average levels of long-term debt outstanding. Lower average rates on variable rate long-
term debt partially offset the higher average levels of fong-term debt. The higher average leveis of debt
outstanding primarily refiect the issuances of long-term debt in 2001 and the 2002 issuance of $225.0
million of unsecured, fixed-rate senior notes partiaily offset by $227.0 miilion of scheduled debt
repayments during 2002.

KCP&L's long-term debt interest expense increased $12.3 million in 2001 compared to 2000 reflecting
nigher average levels of long-term debt outstanding, partially offset by the impact of decreases in
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variable interest rates. The higher average levels of debt primarily reflect the issuances of long-term
debt in 2000 and $150.0 million of unsecured, fixed-rate senior notes issued in November 2001,
partially offset by $80.0 million of scheduled debt repayments.

Shori-term debt interest expense
KCP&L'’s short-term debt interest expense decreased $7.7 million in 2002 compared to 2001. Average

interest rates were down more than 50% and average levels of outstanding commercial paper were
down more than 70% in 2002 compared o 2001. KCP&L had no commercial paper outstanding at
December 31, 2002.

KCP&L'’s short-term debt interest expense decreased $2.2 million in 2001 compared to 2000 primarily
due to lower average interest rates on commercial paper, partially offset by higher average levels of
outstanding commercial paper during 2001 compared to 2000. KCP&L had $62.0 million and $55.6
million of commercial paper outstanding at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Capitalized interest

Allowance for borrowed funds used to finance construction decreased $8.2 million in 2002 compared to
2001 and $3.0 million in 2001 compared tc 2000 because of decreased construction work in progress
primarily due to the return to service of Hawthorn No. 5 in mid-2001.

Wolf Creek

Wolf Creek, a nuclear unit, represents about 15% of KCP&L's generating capacity. This percentage
will decline slightly with KCP&L's expected 2003 addition of five ieased combustion turbines. Wolf
Creek’s operating performance has remained strong over the iast three years, contributing an average
of 26% of KCP&L's annual MWh generation while operating at an average capacity of 92%. Wolf
Creek has the lowest fuel cost per MWh generated of any of KCP&L's generating units.

KCP&L accrues the incremental operating, maintenance and replacement power costs for planned
outages evenly over the unit's operating cycle, normally 18 months. As actual cutage expenses are
incurred, the refueling liability and related deferred tax asset are reduced. Wolf Creek returned to
service on April 27, 2002, foilowing a 35-day refueling and maintenance outage that began on March
23, 2002. During the outage, a complete inspection of the reactor vessel head indicated no corrosion
or other problems of the type experienced at the Davis-Besse nuclear plant in Chio. The next outage is
scheduled for the fall of 2003 and is estimated to be a 35-day outage.

Wolf Creek's assets represent about 33% of KCP&L'’s assets and its operating expenses represent
about 19% of KCP&L's operating expenses. An exiended shut-down of Wolf Creek could have a
substantial adverse effect on KCP&L's business, financial condition and results of operations because
of higher replacement power and other costs. Although not expected, the NRC could impose an
unscheduled plant shut-down, reacting to safety concerns at the plant or other similar nuclear units. If a
long-term shut-down occurred, the state regulatory commissions could reduce rates by excluding the
Wolf Creek investment from rate base.

There has been significant opposition and delays to, development of a low-levei radioactive waste
disposal facility. See Note 10 to the consolidated financial statements for additional information. An
inability to complete this project would require KCP&L to write-off its net investment in the project,
which was $7.4 million at December 31, 2002. KCP&L, and the other owners of Wolf Creek, could also
still be required to participate in development of an alternate site.

Ownership and operation of a nuclear generating unit exposes KCP&L to risks regarding
decommissioning costs at the end of the unit’s life and to potential retrospective assessments and
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property losses in excess of insurance coverage. These risks are more fully discussed in the related
sections of Notes 1 and 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

Montrose No. 3

Montrose No. 3, a 176 MW unit, returned to service at the end of the third quarter 2002 following a
forced cutage due tc damage to the turbine blades in the combined high and intermediate pressure
section of the turbine. Additional maintenance, including replacing blades in the low pressure section of
the turbine to mitigate a long outage in the next few years and maintenance originally scheduled for
October 2002, was also completed during the three-month cutage. The unanticipated outage costs
were approximately $4.3 miilion of capital expenditures, $0.8 million in additional operations and
maintenance expense and $4.0 million in net fuel and purchased power expense in 2002. These
amounts do not reflect the $1.0 million expected to be recovered from insurance in 2003.

Hawthorn No. 5

On June 20, 2001, Hawthorn No. 5 was returned to commercial operation. The ccal-fired unit has a
capacity of 565 megawatts and was rebuilt foliowing a February 1999 explosion that destroyed the
boiler. Hawthorn No. 5 has been nationally recognized in the 2001 National Energy Policy Report for
its use of best available pollution control technology. Under KCP&L's property insurance coverage,
KCP&L received an additional $30 million in insurance recoveries in 2001, increasing the total
insurance recoveries received tc date to $160 millicn. The recoveries have been recorded as an
increase in accumulated depreciation on the consolidated balance sheet. Expenditures, excluding
capitalized interest and insurance proceeds, for rebuilding Hawthorn No. 5 were $35.6 million in 1989,
$207.6 miilion in 2000, and $72.2 million in 2001.

KCP&L Projected Utility Capital Expenditures

Total utility capital expenditures, excluding allowance for funds used to finance construction, were
$132.0 million, $262.0 million and $401.0 million in 2002, 2001, and 2000, respectively. Utility capital
expenditures projected for the next five years are as follows:

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 Total
(millions)
Generating facilities $ 36.6 $ 42.2 $ 46.9 $ 285 $ 18.9 $173.1
Nuclear fuel 20.5 21.0 0.7 23.1 25.0 80.3
Distribution and transmission facilities 73.8 75.8 73.1 74.0 71.5 368.2
General facilities 6.3 5.8 2.8 2.7 1.1 18.7
Total $137.2 $144.8 $123.5 $128.3 $116.5 $650.3

This utility capital expenditure plan is subjectto continual review and change. KCP&L is currently evaluating
various purchase and censtruction options to meet capacity and energy requirements in 2005 through 2010.
Consequently, the tabie does not reflect utility capital expenditures for new capacity.

Peaking capacity totaling 385 megawatts is being added pursuant to a $176 millien construction and
operating lease transaction as discussed in the KCP&L Business Overview.

Strategic Energy

Strategic Energy Business Overview

Strategic Energy provides power supply coordination services by entering into long-term contracts with
its customers to supply electricity that Strategic Energy purchases under long-term contracts to manage
its customers electricity needs. In return, Strategic Energy receives an ongoing management fee,
which is included in the contracted sales price for the electricity. Strategic Energy operates in several
electricity markets offering retail choice, including Pennsylvania, California, Ohio, New York,
Massachusetts and Texas. Strategic Energy is targeting expansion intc two additional states in 2003,
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which would expand its operations into eight of the sixteen states that offer retail choice. Strategic
Energy also provides sirategic planning and consulting services in the natural gas and electricity
markets.

In the normal course of business, Great Plains Energy and KLT Inc. enter into various agreements
providing financial or performance assurance to third parties on behalf of Strategic Energy. Such
agreements include, for example, guarantees, stand-by letters of credit and surety bonds. These
agreements are entered into primarily to support or enhance the creditworthiness otherwise attributed
to Strategic Energy on a stand-alone basis, thereby facilitating the extension of sufficient credit to
accomplish Strategic Energy’s intended business purposes.

in 2001, KLT Energy Services exchanged its ownership of $4.7 million of preferred stock in another
energy service company for additional ownership in Strategic Energy. This transaction increased KLT
Energy Services’ indirect ownership in Strategic Energy from 72% to 83%. During the fourth quarter of
2002, IEC acquired a 6% indirect ownership position in Strategic Energy in exchange for $15.1 million

in common stock and notes issued by Great Plains Energy and IEC. As of December 31, 2002, Great

Plains Energy’s indirect ownership in Strategic Energy totals 89%.

In 2000, Strategic Energy also provided retail gas services to commercial, institutional and small
manufacturing customers. Strategic Energy elected to exit this business in the first quarter of 2001 to
focus on power supply coordination services and had phased out of retail gas services at the end of
2001. Strategic Energy made this decision after evaluating the organizational demands, growth
prospects and relative levels of profitability of both businesses. As the marketplace and Strategic
Energy's business evolves, Strategic Energy may elect to re-enter the market for retail gas services.

At December 31, 2002, Strategic Energy provided power supply coordination services on behalf of
approximately 33,100 commercial, institutional and small manufacturing accounts. Strategic Energy's
customer base is very diverse. Strategic Energy served over 5,200 customers, inciuding numerous
Fortune 500 companies, smalier companies, and governmental entities. Based solely on current
signed contracts and expected usage, Strategic Energy anticipates future MWh sales of 14.0 million,
8.2 million, 5.3 millicn, and 1.2 miilion for the years 2003 through 2006, respectively. Stirategic Energy
expects 1o also supply additional MWh saies in these years through growth in existing markets by re-
signing existing customers and signing new cusiomers as well as through expansion into new markets.

Strategic Energy enters into forward contracts with multiple suppliers. At December 31, 2002, Strategic
Energy's five largest suppliers under forward supply coniracis represented 69% of the total future
commitied purchases. In the event of supplier non-delivery or default, Strategic Energy’s results of
operations could be affected to the extent that the cost of replacement power exceeded the
combination of the contracted price with the supplier and the amount of collateral held by Strategic
Energy to mitigate its market risk with the supplier. Strategic Energy’s results of operations could also
be affected, in a given period, if it was required to make a payment upon termination of a supplier
contract to the extent that the contracted price with the supplier exceeded the market value of the
contract. Strategic Energy monitors its counterparty credit risk by evaluating the credit quality and
performance of its suppliers on a routine basis and by, among other things, adjusting the amount of
collateral required from its suppliers, as part of its risk management policy and practices.

Strategic Energy maintains a commodity-price risk management strategy that uses forward physical
energy purchases and derivative instruments to minimize significant, unanticipated earnings
fluctuations caused by commodity-price voiatility. As a resuli of supplying electricity to retail customers
under fixed rate contracts, Strategic Energy’s policy is to maich customers' demand with fixed price
purchases. In certain markets where Strategic Energy operates, entering into forward fixed price
contracts is cost prohibitive. By entering into swap contracts for a portion of its forecasted purchases in

page 31




these markets, the future purchase price of electricity is effectively fixed under these swap contracts.
The swap contracts limit the unfavorable effect that price increases will have on electricity purchases.
Under SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities”, ail of the swap
agreements are currently designated as cash flow hedges resulting in the difference between the
market value of energy and the hedge value being recorded as comprehensive income (loss). At
December 31, 2002 and 2001, the accumulated comprehensive gain (loss), net of income taxes and
minority interest, reflected in Great Plains Energy's consoclidated statements of capitalization included a
$0.8 million gain and $11.7 million loss, respectively, related to such cash flow hedges. However,
substantially all of the energy hedged with the swaps has been sold to customers through contracts at
prices different than the fair market value used {o value the swaps. Therefore, Strategic Energy does
not anticipate realizing the gain (loss) represented in comprehensive income.

During the third quarter of 2002, the FERC issued a Notice of Proposed Rulemaking tc Remedy Undue
Discrimination through Open Access Transmission Service and Standard Electricity Market Design.
The proposed rulemaking is designed to establish a single non-discriminatory cpen access
transmission tariff with a single transmission service that is applicable to all users of the interstate
transmission grid. Strategic Energy has evaluated the impact of the proposed rulemaking on its
operations and provided comments to the FERC that are generally supportive of the provisions of the
proposal, but suggested some changes tc the proposed rule. The FERC has recently announced that it
wili issue a white paper on Standard Electiricity Market Design in April 2003 and accept comments on
that paper before issuing a final rule, which is now expected in the third or fourth quarter of 2003.

Strategic Energy Resulls of Operations
The foliowing table summarizes Strategic Energy's comparative resuits of operations.

—

2002 2001 2000
{(millions)
Operating revenues $ 789.5 $ 4119 $ 129.6
Purchased power (685.4) (329.0) (84.4)
Revenues, net of
purchased power 104.1 82.9 45.2
Other operating expenses (37.8) (38.7) (30.9)
Depreciation {0.9) {0.3) (0.4)
Operating income 865.6 43.9 13.9
Non-operating income (expenses) (10.4) (6.4) (4.2)
Interest charges (0.3) (0.5) (0.2)
Income taxes (25.2) (15.2) (3.6)
Net income $ 297 $ 218 $ 5.9

—

Strategic Energy’'s net income increased $22.9 million in 2002 compared ¢ 2001, excluding earnings
during 2001 of $15.0 million from the sale of power purchased from one supplier under wholesale
contracts that expired at the end of 2001. The increased net income in 2002 compared to 2001 is
primarily due to continued growth in retail electric saies from the expansion into new markets and
continued sales efforts in existing markets, partially offset by increased labor and benefits as well as
other general and administrative expenses and income taxes due o increased sales in states with
higher income tax rates. Strategic Energy’s net income increased $15.9 million in 2001 compared o
2000, primarily due to growth in retail electric sales and higher earnings during 2001 than in 2000 on
wholesale sales of the power supplied under the wholesale contracts discussed above.
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Strategic Energy Operating Revenues
Operating revenues from Strategic Energy increased $377.6 million in 2002 compared {0 2001 and
$282.3 million in 2001 compared to 2000. The following table reflects Strategic Energy's operating

revenues.

% %
2002 Change 2001 Change 2000
(millions)
Electric - Retail $ 759.5 142 $ 313.3 446 $ 574
Electric - Wholesale 28.8 (65) 82.7 58 52.3
Gas and other 1.2 (92) 15.9 (20) 19.9
Total Operating Revenues $ 789.5 92 $ 411.9 218 $ 128.6

At December 31, 2002, Strategic Energy served over 5,200 customers, an increase from approximately
3,400 customers and 2,000 customers at the end of 2001 and 2000, respectively. These customers
represented approximately 33,10C accounts at the end of 2002, compared to about 19,500 accounts
and 7,000 accounts &t the end of 2001 and 2000, respectively. Strategic Energy may provide periodic
billing credits to its customers resulting from its power supply coordination efforts. The amounts
credited back to the customer are treated as a reduction of retail electric revenues when determined to
be payable.

Retail electric revenues increased $448.2 million in 2002 compared to 2001 primarily due to increased
retail MWh sales, partially offset by an 8% decrease in average retail revenues per MWh. Retail MWh's
sold increased 162% to 11.8 million in 2002 from 4.5 million in 2001, primarily from continued growth in
existing markets and expansion into new markets during 2002. Growth in existing markets came
primarily from strong sales efforts in re-signing existing customers as well as signing new customers.
Expansion into new markets contributed 2.8 million in MWh sales and approximately $168 million of
retail electric revenues during 2002. Several factors contribute to changes in the average retail
revenues per MWh, inciuding the underlying price of the commodity, the nature and type of products
offered and the mix of sales by geographic market.

Retail electric revenues increased $255.9 million in 2001 compared to 2000 primarily due to an
increase in retail MWh sales and an increase in average retail revenues per MWh. Retail MiVh's sold
increased 221% from 1.4 million in 2000, primarily from growth in existing markets and expansion into
new markets during 2001. The increase in average retail revenues per MWh in 2001 compared to
2000 is due to higher bundied product sales in 2001 and expansion into new markets, which had higher
average commodity prices than the average for Strategic Energy’s existing markets.

Wholesale electric revenues decreased $53.9 miliion in 2002 compared to 20071 and increased $30.4
million in 2001 compared to 2000 primarily due to the sale of power during 2001 purchased from one
supplier under wholesale contracts that expired at the end of 2001.

During the third quarter of 2001, Strategic Energy began to phase out its natural gas retail supply
service, which was completely phased out during the fourth quarter of 2001. This is the primary reason
for the decrease in gas and other sales revenues in 2002 compared to 2001.

Strategic Energy Purchased Power

To supply its retail contracts, Strategic Energy purchases long-term blocks of electricity under forward
contracts in fixed quantities at fixed prices from power suppliers based on projected usage. Strategic
Energy sells any excess retail supply of electricity back into the wholesale market. The proceeds from
the sale of excess supply of eleciricity is recorded as a reduction of purchased power. The gross
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amount of excess retail supply sales that reduced purchased power was $128.4 million, $95.6 million
and $29.5 million in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

As previously discussed, Strategic Energy operates in several retaii choice electricity markets. The
cost of supplying electricity to retail customers can vary widely by geographic market. This variability
can be affected by many factors including, among other items, geographic differences in the cost per
MWh of purchased power and capacity charges due {c regional purchased power availability and
requirements of other eleciricity providers and differences in transmission charges. However, Strategic
Energy has mitigated the effects of higher supply costs by entering into long-term, full-requirements
contracts with customers that are priced to the customers based on the cost of the associated supply
contract.

Purchased power increased $3586.4 million in 2002 compared to 2001 and $244.6 million in 2001
compared to 2000 primarily due to the increases in electric MWh sales discussed above. Additionally,
purchased power expense as a percentage of electric revenues increased in 2002 compared {o 2001
primarily due to purchases of power from one supplier during 2001 under wholesale contracts that
expired at the end of 2001. Purchased power expense as a percentage of electric revenues also
increased in 2001 compared to 2000. The 2001 increase in purchased power as a percentage of
electric revenues was due to a significant increase in the percentage of Strategic Energy’s total MWh
sales derived from retail MWh sales compared to 2000. Strategic Energy’s wholesale electric MWh
sales in both 2001 and 2000 had a higher gress margin (revenues less cost of energy supplied) than its
retail eleciric MWh sales.

Strategic Energy Other Operating Expenses

Strategic Energy’s other operating expenses as a percentage of operating revenues decreased ¢ 4.8%
in 2002 from 9.4% and 23.8% in 2001 and 2000, respectively, due to Strategic Energy’s efforts in
leveraging its infrastructure and the effects of achieving economies of scale. Strategic Energy
continued to experience increased labor and benefits as well as other general and administrative
expenses during 2002, following the growth in retail electric sales, expansion into new markets and
increased fuel management and consulting activities. Other operating expenses in 2001 include the
cost of commercial gas sales of about $15.5 million, from Strategic Energy’s natural gas retail supply
service, which was phased out by the end of 2001. As a resuit, other operating expenses (excluding
the cost of commercial gas sales) increased $14.4 million in 2002 compared to 2001. Contributing to
this increase were higher labor and benefit costs from the addition of employees and increasing health
care related costs, higher profit sharing and deferred compensation expense which are tied to earnings
and financial performance, and higher other general and administrative expenses associated with
higher sales volumes, geographic market expansion, and regulatory and market development
initiatives. Operating expenses increased $7.8 million in 2001 compared to 2000 primarily due to
increased labor and benefits costs from the addition of emplcyees during 2001 as well as increased
other general and administrative expenses during 2001, foliowing the pattern of growth in sales and
expansion of activities discussed above.

Strategic Energy Non-operating Income (Expenses)

Non-operating income (expenses) includes non-operating income less minority interest expense and
non-operating expenses. In 2002 compared tc 2001, non-operating income (expenses) increased $4.0
million primarily due to a gain of $1.4 million recognized on the sale of gas contracts during the second
quarter of 2001 and an increase in minority interest expense of $2.8 million, which represents the share
of Strategic Energy’s net income not attributable to Great Plains Energy’s indirect ownership interest in
Strategic Energy. In 2001 compared to 2000, non-operating income (expenses) increased $2.2 million
primarily due to an increase in minority interest expense of $3.6 million, offset by the gain of $1.4 million
recognized on the sale of gas contracts during the second quarter of 2001.
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KLT Gas

KLT Gas Business Overview

KLT Gas is focused on exploring for, developing and producing unconventional natural gas resources,
including coalbed methane properties. KLT Gas believes that unconventional natural gas resources
provide an economically attractive aliernative source of supply o meet the growing demand for natural
gas in North America. Additionally, KLT Gas’ management team has experience and expertise in
identifying, testing and producing unconventional natural gas properties and, as a result, it believes its
expertise provides a competitive advantage in this niche of the exploration and production sector.
Because it has a longer, predictable reserve life and lower development cost, management believes
unconventional natural gas exploration is inherently lower risk than conventional gas exploration.

Although gas prices have been volatile historically, KLT Gas continues to believe that the long-term
future price scenarios for natural gas appear strong. Environmental concerns, especially air quality,
and the increased demand for natural gas for new electric generating capacity are contributing to this
projected growth in demand.

KLT Gas' properties are located in Colorado, Texas, Wyeming, Kansas, and Nebraska. These leased
properties cover approximately 255,000 undeveloped acres. The testing of this acreage is in
accordance with KLT Gas' exploration plan and capital budget. KLT Gas estimates capital
expenditures of approximately $3C million to $40 million annually for the years 2003 through 2005. The
timing of the testing may vary from current plans based upon obtaining the required environmental and
regulatory approvals and permits and future changes in market conditions. KLT Gas continues to seek
and identify new prospects in addition to its existing portiolio of properties.

In 2002, KLT Gas focused on the acquisition of additional ieased acreage and the testing and
development of several unconventional natural gas exploration projects. KLT Gas is in the early stages
of testing a new prospect in Colorado and continuing pilot development at a Powder River Basin project
and two additional projects in the Rocky Mountain region. KLT Gas continued production at its South
Texas property.

KLT Gas Results of Operations
The following table summarizes KLT Gas' comparative results of operations.

[

2002 2001 2000
(millions)
Operating revenues $ 1.1 $ 0.3 $ 30.5
Other operating expenses (9.8) (9.4) (22.3)
Depreciation and depletion (2.5) (1.8) (6.0)
Gain on property 0.2 23.8 107.9
Operating income (loss) (10.8) 12.9 110.1
Income from equity investments - 1.0 3.6
Non-operating income (expenses) 0.8 0.3 5.3
Interest charges {0.3) - (3.5)
Income taxes 10.3 0.1 (36.3)
Net income $ - $ 14.3 $ 79.2

KLT Gas is currently testing gas properties following its most recent sale of property during the second
quarter of 2001. KLT Gas’ 2001 net income included its second quarter Patrick KLT Gas, LLC sale
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which resuited in a $12.0 million after tax gain. KLT Gas’ 2000 net income included its third and fourth
quarter sales of producing natural gas properties, resuiting in a $88.0 million after tax gain.

KLT Gas Operating Revenues

Operating revenues increased $0.8 million in 2002 compared to 2001 primarily due to the effect of gas
hedging activities during 2001, partially offset by declining production at KLT Gas’ South Texas
property during 2002. Operating revenues decreased $30.2 million in 2001 compared to 2000 primarily
due to the saie of preducing natural gas properties in the third and fourth quarters of 2000 and the
effect of gas hedging activities. KLT Gas unwound the majority of its gas hedge derivatives with an
offsetling swap transaction during the second quarter of 2001. The fair market value of the swap was
recerded in gas revenues.

KLT Gas Income Taxes

KLT Gas recorded tax credits related to its investment in natural gas properties of $6.5 million, $6.0
million and $7.1 miliion in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. The law that allowed substantially ail of
these credits expired at the end of 2002.

Other Non Regulated Activities

Investment in Affordable Housing Limited Partnerships - KLT Investments

KLT Investments’ earnings in 2002 totaled $10.4 million (including an after tax reduction of $5.7 million
in its affordable housing investment) compared to earnings of $6.6 million in 2001 (including an after tax
reduction of $8.6 million in its affordable housing investment) and earnings of $13.3 million in 2000
(including an after tax reduction of $1.5 million in its affordable housing investment).

Pretax reductions in affordable housing investments were $2.0 million, $13.5 million and $2.4 million in
2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. Pretax reductions in its affordable housing investments are
estimated to be $13 million, $7 million, $7 million, and $6 miliion for the years 2003 through 2008,
respectively. The reductions in 2002, 2001 and 2000 and estimated future reductions are based on
comparisons of the cost fcr those properties accounted for by the cost method to the total projected
residual value of the properties and remaining tax credits o be received. These projections are based
on the latest information available but the ultimate amount and timing of actual reductions could be
significantly different frcm the above estimates. The properties underlying the partnership investment
are subject to certain risks inherent in real estate ownership and management. Even after the
estimated reductions, earnings from the investments in affordable housing are expected to be positive
for the next four years.

KLT Investments accrued tax credits related to its investments in affordable housing limited
partnerships of $19.3 million, $19.2 million and $19.2 miltion in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Subsidiary of KLT Telecom Files for Bankruptcy — DTl

The accounting treatment related to DT and its 2001 bankruptcy is complex and is addressed in
greater detail in Note 19 to the consclidated financiat statements; consequently, Note 19 in its entirety
is incorporated by reference in this portion of Management's Discussion and Aralysis and should be
read as a component of this discussion.

In 1997, KLT Telecom originally purchased, for $45 miilion, a 47% equity cwnership of DTI, a facilities-
based telecommunications company headquartered in St. Louis. DTl's operating losses reduced this
original equity investment to zero by June 2000. In February 2001, KLT Telecom increased its
ownership to 83.6% by purchasing additicnal shares at a cost of approximately $40 million, and in
conjunction with such purchase made a $24 million loan tc Holdings. Also in February 2001, KLT
Telecom made a commitment to obtain or arrange a $75 millicn revolving credit facility for Digital
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Teleport Inc. KLT Telecom loaned Digital Teleport Inc. $47 million during 2001 under this and other
arrangements. DTl intended to refinance part of these loans. However, a new senior credit facility from
bank lenders was not obtained due to, among other things, the downturn in the telecommunications
industry.

Starting in the second quarter of 2001, DT! conserved cash by more narrowly focusing its strategy to
providing connectivity in secondary and tertiary markets in a five state region. DTi actively explored its
strategic alternatives inciuding a merger, sale of asseis and all other types of recapitalization including
bankruptcy. DTI originally thought that the industry downturn would be only temporary. However,
during the fourth quarter the combination of a lack of additional financing, continued decline of the
telecommunication industry, and the cash requirements of maintaining its long-haui assets resulted in
DTt making the decision to abandon certain of its long-haul assets and file for reorganization under
Chapter 11 of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code.

On December 31, 2001, a subsidiary of KLT Telecom, Holdings and its subsidiaries, Digital Teleport
and Digital Teleport of Virginia, Inc., filed separate voluntary petitions in Bankruptcy Court for the
Eastern District of Missouri for reorganization under Chapter 11 of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code. These
cases have been consolidated for joint procedural administration. Holdings and its two subsidiaries are
collectively called “DT1". The filings enable DT} o continue to conduct its business operations while
attempting to resolve its financial obligations. KLT Telecom agreed to provide up to $5 million in a DiP
Loan to Digital Teleport for a term of 18 months during the bankrupicy process if it achieves certain
financial goals. The Bankruptcy Court approved the DIP Loan on February 18, 2002, but no advances
have been made under the DIP Loan to date.

In December 2002, Digital Teleport entered into an agreement to sell substantially ail of its assets
(Asset Sale) to CenturyTel Fiber Company il, LLC (Century Tel}, a nominee of CenturyTel, Inc. (Asset
Purchase Agreement). The Asset Sale was approved by the Bankruptcy Court on February 13, 20083,
but the Asset Purchase Agreement contains conditions to closing which include among other items the
receipt of all necessary regulatory approvals, which must either be satisfied or waived by July 15, 2008.

In the Digital Teleport bankruptcy case, KLT Telecom, KLT Inc., KCP&L, Great Plains Energy, Digital
Teleport and the Official Unsecured Creditors Committee of Digital Teleport entered into a Settlement
Agreement as of December 23, 2002 (Teleport Settiement Agreement). The Teleport Settlement
Agreement, if approved by the Bankruptcy Court, resoives all material issues and disputes among the
parties to that agreement. The Teleport Settlement Agreement does not resolve any claims that
Holdings or its creditors may have against the Company; however, as discussed below, settlement
discussions have commenced in the Holdings bankruptcy case. Digital Teleport and Digital Teleport of
Virginia have prepared a Chapter 11 plan (Chapter 11 Plan) and disclosure statement reflecting the
Asset Sale and the terms of the Teleport Setilement Agreement and expect that a confirmation hearing
will be held by the Bankruptcy Court in May 2003. The Chapter 11 Plan contemplates that Digital
Teleport and Digital Teleport of Virginia will be liquidated after distribution of those companies’ assets to
their creditors pursuant to the Chapter 11 Plan and the Teleport Setilement Agreement.

In an obijection to a motion by Digital Teleport for an extension of time in which to propose a Chapter 11
plan, the largest creditor of Holdings (the Creditor) asserted that Holdings, Digital Teleport and their
creditors have claims against KLT Telecom, KLT Inc., KCP&L and Great Plains Energy based on
theories of breach of contract, fraudulent conveyance, recharacierization of debt, subordination and
breach of fiduciary duty. Among other things, the Creditor asserted that certain tax benefits should
have been paid to Hoidings and Digital Teleport, rather than to KLT Telecom as provided in the October
1, 2001 Great Plains Energy tax allocation agreement. The Creditor has not otherwise pursued these
claims at this fime, and the Company believes that it has meritorious defenses to these claims. Further,
Holdings, the principal creditors of Holdings (including the Creditor), KLT Teiecom, KLT inc., KCP&L,
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and Great Plains Energy are in the process of negotiating a separate settlement agreement which, if
finalized and approved by the Bankruptcy Court, is anticipated to resolve the Holdings bankruptcy case
and any claims that might be asserted in the Holdings bankruptcy case against the Company, and to
provide payment o the creditors of Holdings from a portion of the proceeds KLT Telecom otherwise
would receive from the Asset Sale. If the separate settlement agreement is finalized, it is anticipated
that the Chapter 11 Plan will be modified tc add Holdings as a proponent and to include the terms of
the Holdings Settiement Agreement. For further information regarding the DT! bankruptcy proceedings,
see Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

The operating resulis of DT! have been included for the period February 8, 2001 (date of acquisition)
through September 30, 2001, for consolidated KCP&L and through December 31, 2001, for Great
Plains Energy. Because of DTI's bankruptey filings, KLT Telecom no lenger has control over nor can it
exert significant control over DTI. As a consequence, as of December 31, 2001, DTI was de-
consolidated and is presented on the cost basis. Consequently, KLT Telecom did not include in its
financial results the ongoing results of operations, earnings or losses incurred by DT! during 2002 and
will not do so during the remaining period of the DTI bankruptcy proceedings.

Because of the bankruptey filings, a $195.8 million net write-off was included in (Gain) Loss on Property
in operating expenses on Great Plains Energy’s 2001 Consolidated Statement of Income. A
corresponding tax benefit of $55.8 million was included in income taxes. The net impact of the
bankruptcy to income was a $140.0 miliion reduction.

Income taxes reported in 2001 do not reflect the entire effect of the net write-off because of the
uncertainty of recognizing future tax deductions while in the bankruptcy process. [f additional DT
assets are abandoned or sold during the bankruptcy process, or additional tax losses not already
reflected are incurred by DTI, future tax benefits will be recorded.

Other

During 2001, KLT Energy Services wrote off its $6.2 million investment in the common stock of
Bracknell due tc a decline in its share price and the bankruptey filing of one of Bracknell's subsidiaries.
In 2000, KLT Inc. realized losses on its investment in CellNet of $3.1 million after tax.

Significant Balance Shest Changes
(December 31, 2002 compared to Decemiber 31, 2001)

o Creat Plains Energy's receivables increased $48.9 million primarily due to a $48.4 million
increase in Strategic Energy’s receivables as a result of the sirong growth in its power supply
coordination services and a $7.7 miliion increase in consolidated KCP&L's receivables pariially
offset by a $4.7 million decrease in KLT Gas’ receivables. Consolidated KCP&L's receivables
increased primarily due to a $7.3 million increase in KCP&L's receivables due to an increase in
bulk power sales.

o Great Plains Energy's affordable housing limited partnerships decreased $12.5 million primarily
due tc a reduction in the valuation of the properties heid by KLT Investments.

o Great Plains Energy’s goodwill increased $8.0 miilion due to an increase of $12.0 million related
to IEC’s purchase of a 6% indirect ownership interest in Strategic Energy partially ofiset by a
decrease in consolidated KCP&L goodwill of $3.0 million due to the cumulative effect write-
down of goodwill at RSAE.

o Great Piains Energy’s other deferred charges increased $8.6 million primarily due to an $8.5
million increase in consolidated KCP&L's other deferred charges. Consolidated KCP&L's other
deferred charges increase was primarily due to a $4.3 million increase in KCP&L's fair value of
interest rate hedging derivatives and a $3.8 million increase in intangible assets at RSAE
reflecting the purchase of a trademark and logo and the extension of an employment contract
and non-compete agreement with a key empioyee.
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Great Plains Energy's notes payable decreased $93.7 million primarily due to Great Plains
Energy paying down $110.0 million of its short-term credit facility with proceeds from the
November 2002 equity offering. This decrease was partially offset by Great Plains Energy
borrowings in 2002 primarily used to make a capital contribution to KCP&L and a $3.4 million
increase in consolidated KCP&L's notes payable due to additional borrowing by RSAE on its
shori-term credit faciiity for general corporate purposes.

o Great Plains Energy's and consolidated KCP&L's commercial paper decreased $62.0 million
primarily due to KCP&L paying down commercial paper with cash flow from operations and a
capital contribution from Great Plains Energy.

o GCreat Plains Energy's current maturities of long-term debt decreased $104.7 million primarily
due to a $102.5 million decrease in consolidated KCP&L's current maturities of long-term debt.
Consolidated KCP&L's decrease was primarily due to refinancing $200.0 million of maturing
KCP&L medium-term notes with the issuance of KCP&L unsecured senior notes and a $27.0
million decrease due to KCP&L retiring medium-term notes partially offset by a $124.0 million
increase in the current portion of KCP&L’s medium-term notes.

o Great Plains Energy’s and consolidated KCP&L's EIRR bonds classified as current decreased
$96.5 million due to the remarketing of $146.5 Series 1998 A, B and D bonds to a five-year term
offset by $50.0 million of Series 1998 C bonds classified as current due to the scheduled
remarketing in August 2003.

o Great Plains Energy's accounts payabie increased $1.6 million primarily due to a $42.5 million
increase in Strategic Energy's accounts payable as a resuit of the strong growth in its power
supply coordination services, mostly offset by a $35.4 million decrease in consolidated KCP&L's
accounis payable and a $5.4 million decrease in KLT Gas' accounts payable. Consolidated
KCP&L's accounts payabie decreased primarily due to the timing of cash payments by KCP&L.

e Great Plains Energy’s and consolidated KCP&L'’s pension liability increased $44.6 million
primarily due to KCP&L's $42.2 million additional minimum pension liability as a result of a
significant decline in the market value of pension plan assets.

o Great Plains Energy’'s combined accrued taxes liability and current income tax asset increased
$46.0 miilion to a liability of $29.3 million primarily due to a $49.6 million increase in
consolidated KCP&L's accrued tax. Consolidated KCP&L'’s increase is primarily due to a $50.4

million increase in KCP&L's accrued tax due to the timing of income tax payments.

Capital Requirements and Liguidity

Great Plains Energy operates through its subsidiaries and has no material assets other than the stock
of its subsidiaries. Great Plains Energy’s ability to make payments on its debt securities and its ability
to pay dividends is dependent on its receipt of dividends from its subsidiaries and proceeds from the
sale of its securities.

Great Piains Energy’s capital requirements are principally comprised of KCP&L'’s utility capital
expenditures, KLT Gas' capital expenditures, and KCP&L’s pension benefit plan funding requirements
discussed below. Capital expenditures are discussed in Management's Discussion and Analysis
consolidated KCP&L and KLT Gas sections. Additional cash and capita! requirements for the
companies, including long-term debt requirements, are discussed below.

Great Plains Energy's liquid resources at December 31, 2002, included cash flows from operations of
subsidiaries, $65.3 million cash on hand and $367.0 million of unused bank lines of credit. The unused
lines consisted of $126.0 million from KCP&L's short-term bank lines of credit, $30.0 million from
Strategic Energy’s bank line of credit, and $211.0 million from Great Plains Energy's revolving credit
facilities.

Great Plains Energy terminated its $128 million bridge revolving credit facility in the first quarter of 2002
and replaced it with a $205 million 364-day revolving credit facility syndicated with a group of banks.
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Also during 2002, Great Plains Energy entered into a $20 million 364-day revolving credit facility with a
bank. The $205 million facility contains a MAC clause that requires Great Plains Energy tc represent,
prior to receiving any funding, that no MAC has occurred. The $20 million facility does not contain a
MAC ciause. Great Plains Energy's available liquidity under these facilities is not impacted by a decline
in credit ratings unless the downgrade occurs in the context of a merger, consclidation or sale. The
Company is currently negotiating the renewal and consolidation of these facilities.

Strategic Energy increased its bank line of credit in 2002 to $30 miilion from 10 milicn. The line of
credit contains a MAC clause. This agreement requires Strategic Energy tc represent, pricr to
receiving any funding, that no MAC has cccurred.

KCP&L's primary sources of liquidity are cash flows from operations and bilateral credit lines totaling
$126.0 million with six banks (as of December 31, 2002). KCP&L uses these lines to provide support
for its issuance of commercial paper, which had all been repaid at December 31, 2002. These bank
facilities are each for a 364-day term and mature at various times throughout the year. Four of the
facilities totaling $76.0 million can be extended for one year under their term out provisions. KCP&L
has MAC clauses in two agreements covering $50.0 million of available bilateral credit lines. These two
agreements require KCP&L tc represent, prior to receiving any funding, that no MAC has occurred.
KCP&L's available liquidity under these facilities is not impacted by a decline in credit ratings unless the
downgrade occurs in the context of a merger, consolidation or sale. A default by KCP&L on other
indebtedness is a default under these bank line agreements. Under the terms of cerfain bank fine
agreements, KCP&L is required to maintain a consclidated indebtedness o consclidated capitalization
ratio not greater than 0.85 to 1.0 at all times. At December 31, 2002, the consglidated indebtedness to
consolidated capitalization ratio calculated in accordance with the covenant was 0.60 to 1.0; therefore,
the Company was in compliance with the covenant.

Under the indenture relating to KCP&L'’s 8.3% Junior Subordinated Deferrable Interest Debentures, due
2037 (Debentures), which are held by KCP&L Financing |, KCP&L may not declare or pay any
dividends on any shares of its capital stock if at the time (i) there is an event of default (as defined in
the indenture), (i) KCP&L is in default with respect to its payment of any obligations under its guaraniee
of preferred securities issued by KCP&L Financing I, or (jii) KCP&L has elected t¢ defer payments of
interest on the Debentures.

Great Plains Energy has agreements with KLT Investments associated with notes KLT Investments
issued to acquire its affordable housing investments. Prior to forming Great Plains Energy, KCP&L had
these agreements. Great Plains Energy agreed not o take certain actions including, but not limited to,
merging, dissolving or causing the dissoiution of KLT Investments, or withdrawing amounts from KLT
Investments if the withdrawals would resuit in KLT Investments to not be in compliance with minimum
net worth and cash balance requirements. The agreements also give KLT Investments’ lenders the
right to have KLT Investments repurchase the notes if Great Plains Energy’s senior debt rating falls
below investment grade, or if Great Plains Energy ceases {o own at least 80% of KCP&L's stock. At
December 31, 2002, KLT nvestments had $19.7 million in outstanding notes, including current
maturities.

Pursuant o agreements with the MPSC and the KCC, KCP&L maintains its common equity at not less
than 35% of total capitalization. Additionally, Great Plains Energy maintains its consolidated common
equity at nc less than 30% of total consoclidated capitalization.

KCP&L's consolidated statements of cash flows include KLT Inc. and GPP for all the periods prior to
the October 1, 2001 formation of the helding company. The presentation of the prior years statements
of cash flows for Great Plains Energy is provided for comparative purposes and is identical to the
statements of cash flows for consolidated KCP&L, prior to the formation of the holding company. The
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effect of DT on the statements of cash flows is detailed in Note 19 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Great Plains Energy and consolidated KCP&L generated positive cash flows from operating activities
for all periods presented. The increase for Great Plains Energy and consolidated KCP&L in 2002
compared to 2001 is due to the changes in working capital detailed in Note 2 to the consolidated
financial statements. The individual components of working capital vary with normal business cycles
and operations. Also, the timing of the Wolf Creek outage affects the refueling outage accrual, deferred
income taxes and amortization of nuciear fuel. The increase for Great Plains Energy and consolidated
KCP&L in 2001 compared to 2000 is due to increased net income before non-cash expenses. The
increased net income before non-cash expenses was partially offset by the changes in working capital
detailed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements.

Great Plains Energy’s and consolidated KCP&L's cash used for investing activities varies with the
timing of utility capital expenditures and purchases of investments and nonutility property. Investing
activities are offset by the proceeds from the sale of properties and insurance recoveries. With
KCP&L's mid-2001 compietion of the rebuild of Hawthorn No. 5, utility capital expenditures and the
allowance for borrowed funds used during construction decreased $139.1 million in 2002 compared to
2001 and $142.0 million in 2001 compared to 2000. The decreases in 2002 compared to 2001 would
have been greater if not for $14.7 million of KCP&L capital expenditures as a result of the January 2002
ice storm. Cash used for purchases of investments and nonutility property in 2002 compared to 2001
decreased primarily reflecting KLT Telecom's 2001 investments in DTl and DTI's 2001 purchases of
telecommunications property. The increase in 2001 compared to 2000 for the DTI investments and
purchased property was partially offset by KLT Gas’ investments in gas progerties during 2000.
Proceeds from the sale of properties decreased significantly in 2002 compared to 2001 because of KLT
Gas’ 2001 sale of its equity ownership in Patrick KLT Gas, LLC. Proceeds from the sale of properties
also decreased significantly in 2001 compared to 2000 because the proceeds from the sale of KLT Gas
properties in 2000 more than offset the 2001 saie.

Great Plains Energy completed a public offering of 6.9 million of Great Plains Energy common shares
at $22 per share, raising $151.8 miilion in gross proceeds in iate 2002. Expenses to issue the stock
totaled $6.1 million, which is included in other financing activities. Great Plains Energy repaid $178.8
million of debt balances in 2002 compared tc net borrowings in 2001 of $187.2 million. Inciuded in the
Great Plains Energy's amounts, consolidated KCP&L repaid $57.2 miilion of debt balances in 2002
compared to net borrowings of $171.0 million in 2001. The repayments in 2002 compared to the
borrowings in 2001 reflect decreased investing activities in utility capital expenditures, nonutility
property and investments discussed above. Cash from Great Plains Energy financing activities
increased in 2001 compared to 2000 primarily because short-term borrowings increased $140.7 million
in 2001 compared to a $183.1 million decrease in 2000. However, this change in short-term
borrowings was partially offset by a $264.1 million decrease in long-term debt issuances, net of
repayments. Cash from consolidated KCP&L financing activities increased similarly in 2001 compared
to 2000, but exclude the fourth quarter 2001 $29.5 million repayment of KLT Inc.’s bank credit
agreement and a fourth quarter 2001 $124.0 million increase in short term borrowings by Great Plains
Energy.

On November 7, 2002, Great Plains Energy eniered into an Agreement and Pian of Merger
(Agreement) with ELC, the ELC shareholders and IEC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Great Plains
Energy. The ELC Shareholders received $15.1 million in merger consideration. As part of the merger
consideration, on November 7, 2002, Great Plains Energy issued 387,596 additional shares of its
common stock to the ELC Shareholders. The Agreement valued such shares at approximately $8
million. The remainder of the merger consideration was in short-term notes, which were paid in
January 2003.
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In early 2003, KCP&L received a total of approximately $100 millicn as an equity contribution from
Great Plains Energy. KCP&L repaid $104.0 million of medium-term notes included in current maturities
on its December 31, 2002, balance sheet.

The Company’s commen dividend payeout ratio was 81% (excluding the cumulative effect of a change in
accounting principle) in 2002, 104% (excluding the extraordinary item and the DT! net write-off) in 2001,
and 81% (excluding the cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles) in 2000. See the
Resulis of Operations sections for discussion of significant factors impacting earnings in 2002, 2001
and 2000.

KCP&L expects to meet day-to-day operating requirements including interest payments, construction
requirements (excluding new generating capacity) and dividends with internally-generated funds.
However, it might not be able tc meet these requirements with internally-generated funds because of
the effect of inflation on operating expenses, the level of MWh sales, regulatory actions, compliance
with future environmental regulations and the availability of generating units. The funds Great Plains
Energy and consolidated KCP&L need fc retire maturing debt (detailed below) will be provided from
operations, the issuance ¢f long and short-term debt and/or the issuance of equity or equity-iinked
instrumenis. In addition, the Company may issue debt, equity and/or equity-linked instruments to
finance growth or take advantage of new opportunities.

Great Plains Energy filed a registration statement in April 2002 for the issuance of an aggregate
amount up to $300 million of any combination of senicr debt securities, subordinated debt securities,
trust preferred securities, convertible securities, or common stock. The registration statement became
effective in November 2002 and Great Plains Energy issued $151.8 million of common stock. The
proceeds were used for repayment of debt and general corporate purposes.

As a registered public utility company, Great Plains Energy must receive authorization frem the SEC
under the 35 Act to issue equity or debt. Great Plains Energy is currently authorized to issue up to
$450.0 million of debt and equity. Great Plains Energy has utilized $423.8 million of this amount as
follows: (i) $39.0 million in preferred stock issued in connection with the Cctober 1, 2001,
reorganization; (i) $225.0 million in revolving credit facilities and (iii) $159.8 million in common equity
issued in a public offering and in connection with IEC’s acquisition cf an indirect ownership interest in
Strategic Energy. Great Plains Energy is seeking an additional $750 million in authorization from the
SEC and anticipates the SEC will act on the application in 2003.

In 2002, KCP&L issued $225 million of 6.0% unsecured senicr notes, maturing in 2007. The procesds
from the issuance were primarily used to refinance maturing unsecured medium-term notes.

KCP&L plans to file a registration statement in 2003 for up to $255 million in debt securities. This will
preserve KCP&L's flexibility to access the capital markets for long-term debt if required.

KCP&L has entered into a revolving agreement, which expires in October 2003, to sel! all of its right,
title and interest in the majority of its customer accounts receivable tc Receivables Company, which in
turn sells most of the receivables to outside investors. KCP&L expecis the agreement to be renewed
annually. See Note 3 to the censolidated financial statements.

Pensions

KCP&L maintains defined benefit plans for substantially all of its employees. Cur policy is to fund the
plan on an actuarial basis tc provide assets sufficient to meet benefits to be paid tc plan participants
consistent with the funding requirements of the ERISA. Contributions of $1.8 million and $1.0 million
were made in 2002 and 2001, respectively.
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Due to sharp declines in the debt and equity markets since the third quarter of 2000, the value of asseis
held in the trusts tc satisfy pension plan obligations has decreased significantly. As a result, under the
minimum funding requirements of ERISA, KCP&L will be required to fund approximately $2.7 million
and $20.9 million during 2003 and 2004, respectively. Management believes KCP&L has adequate
access to capital resources through cash flows from operations or through existing lines of credit to
support this funding.

Participants in the plans may request a lump-sum cash payment upon termination of their employment,
which couid result in increased cash requirements from pension plan assets and KCP&L being required
to accelerate future funding. While it is difficult to estimate future cash requirements due to uncentain
market conditions and other factors, additional funding may be required in future years.

Under the terms of the pension plans, KCP&L reserves the right to amend or terminate the plans, and
from time to time benefits have changed. See Note 7 to the consolidated financial statements for
further discussion.

Credit Ratings
At December 31, 2002, the major credit rating agencies rated the Companies’ securities as follows:

b=

Moody's Standard
Investors Senvice and Poor's
Great Plains Energy
Qutlook Negative Stable
Corporate Credit Rating - BBB
Bank Credit Facility Baa2 -
Preferred Stock Bat BB+
Senior Unsecured Debt Baa2 (preliminary) BBB- (preliminary)
Subordinated Debt Baa3 (preliminary) BBB- (preliminary)
KCP&L
QOutlook Negative Siable
Senior Secured Debt A1 BBB
Senior Unsecured Debt A2 BBB
Commercial Paper P-1 A2

—

These ratings reflect the current views of these rating agencies and no assurances can be given that
these ratings will continue for any given pericd of time. The Companies view maintenance of strong
credit ratings as being extremely important; however, and to that end, an active and ongoing dialogue is
maintained with the agencies with respect to the Companies’ results of operations, financial position,
and future prospects.

None of the Companies’ outstanding debt, except for the notes associated with affordable housing
investments discussed above, is impacted by a decline in credit ratings, which would cause the
acceleration of interest and/or principal payments in the event of a ratings downgrade, unless the
downgrade occurs in the context of a merger, consolidation, or sale. However, in the event of a
downgrade the Companies and/or their subsidiaries may be subject to increased interest costs on their
credit facilities. Additionally, in one bond agreement, KCP&L has agreed to limits on its ability to issue
additional mortgage bonds based on the bond’s credit ratings. See Note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Suppiemental Capital Requirements and Liquidity Information
The following information is provided to summarize cash obligations and commercial commitments.

Great Plains Energy Contractual Cash Obligations ’ -
Payment due by period 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007  After 2007 Total
(millions)

Long-term debit,
including current maturities $134.1 § 606 $2542 $ 26 $2270 $ 507.6 $1,186.1
Lease obligations 30.1 33.8 36.1 37.2 14.7 114.7 266.7
Other long-term obligations, net 588.2 360.8 267.5 68.5 20.9 160.4 1,466.3
Total contractual obligations  $752.4 $455.3 $557.8 $108.3 $2626 $ 782.7 $2,919.1

=

Consolidated XCP&L Contractual Cash Qbligations

“Payment due by period 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 After 2007  Total
{millions)

Long-term debt,
including current maturities $1249 $ 558 $2508 $ 09 $2265 $ 507.3 §$1,166.3
Lease obligations 29.2 33.2 35.6 36.8 14.3 114.3 263.4
Qther long-term obligations, net 87.8 61.3 45.4 18.4 12.3 148.8 374.0
Total contractual obligations  $241.9 $150.3 $331.¢ $ 56.1 $253.1 $ 7704 §$1,803.7

[=

Long-term debt, including current maturities excludes $0.9 million discount on senior notes and the $4.3
million fair value adjustment to the EIRR bonds related to SFAS No. 133. EIRR bonds ciassified as
current liabilities of $81 million due 2017 are included here on their final due date. See Note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Lease obiligations includes capital and operatling lease cbligations; capital lease obligations are less
than 5% of the total. Lease obligations aiso includes leases for railcars to serve jointly-owned
generating units where KCP&L is the managing partner. KCP&L will be reimbursed by the other
owners for about $1.9 million per year ($24.4 million total). Lease obligations excludes a commitment
to either purchase leased combustion turbines at termination of the construction leasing agreement for
a price equal to amounts expended by the Lessor or sell the turbines on behalf of the Lessor while
guaranteeing the Lessor's receipt of an amount equal to 83.21% of the amounts expended. See Note
10 to the consolidated financial statements for additional information.

Other long-term obligations include commitments for KCP&L's share under contracts for acquisition of
coal, and nuclear fuel including the DOE assessment; and capacity purchases for KCP&L. KCP&L has
capacity sales agreements not included above that total $12.8 million for 2003, $711.8 miliion per year
for 2004 through 2007, and $48.3 million after 2007. Great Plains Energy also inciudes Strategic
Energy's purchased power commitments of $500.4 million, 289.5 million, $222.1 million, $50.1 million,
$8.6 million and $11.6 million for 2008 through 2007 and after 2007, respectively.

Guarantees

In the normal course of business, Great Plains Energy and certain of its subsidiaries enter into various
agreements providing financial or performance assurance to third parties on behaif of certain
subsidiaries. Such agreements inciude, for example, guarantees, stand-by letters of credit and surety
bonds. These agreements are entered into primarily to support or enhance the creditworthiness
otherwise attributed to a subsidiary on a stand-alcne basis, thereby facilitating the extension of
sufficient credit to accomplish the subsidiaries’ intended business purposes.

As prescribed in FASB Interpretation No. 45, “Guarantor’'s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for
Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others”, the Company will begin
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recording a liability for the fair value of obligations it undertakes for guarantees issued after December
31, 2002. The interpretation does not encompass guarantees of the Company’s own future
performance, such as Great Plains Energy’s guarantees to support Strategic Energy power purchases
and regulatory requirements; however, these guarantees are included in the presentation below.
KCP&L will record an immaterial amount for the fair value of guarantees expected to be issued in 2003
for the residual value of vehicles and heavy equipment under an operating lease.

Other Commercial Commitments Outstanding
Amount of commitment expiration per period
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 After 2007 Total
(millions)
Consolidated KCP&L Guarantees $ 18 ¢ 18 $ 18 $ 15 & 15 $ 44 ¢ 128
Great Plains Energy Guarantees,
including consolidated KCP&L $1780 $ 18 $ 114 $ 15 $ 24 $ 459 $ 241.0

Great Plains Energy and KLT Inc. have provided $202.3 million of guarantees to support Strategic
Energy power purchases and regulatory requirements. Strategic Energy’s current power supply
coniracts end in 2010; however, 84% expire by the end of 2005. As of December 31, 2002, guarantees
related to Strategic Energy are as follows:

e Creat Plains Energy direct guarantees to counterparties totaling $68.7 miilion and KLT inc.
direct guarantees to counterparties totaling $80.4 million, with varying expiration dates

s Great Plains Energy indemnifies the issuers of surety bonds totaling $61.2 million, of which
$51.6 miilion expire in 2003 and $9.6 million expire in 2005

s Great Plains Energy guarantees related o letters of credit totaling $11.9 million, all of which
expire in 2003

RSAE has a $25 million line of credit with a commercial bank, which Great Plains Energy supports
through an agreement that ensures adequate capital to operate RSAE. KCP&L is contingently liabie for
guaranteed energy savings under agreements with several customers.

KLT Inc. issued a letter of credit, currently $0.9 million, related to the saie of demand side management
credits by Custom Energy, LLC, which renews annually and has five years remaining.

KCP&L has entered agreements guaranteeing an aggregate value of approximately $12.8 million over
the next eight years. In most cases a subcontractor would indemnify KCP&L for any payments made
by KCP&L under these guarantees.

The table above does not include the foliowing guarantees because they do not require a future cash
payment:
e Custom Energy, LLC has guaranteed construction performance bonds totaling $9.7 million
which are secured by KLT Energy Services’ ownership interest in Custom Energy. These
bonds are expected to expire in 20083.
o RSAE and its subsidiary, R. S. Andrews of Maryland, have secured notes to an individual and a
company totaling $4.1 million. The security for the notes includes a pledge of RSAE stock in R.
S. Andrews of Maryland and a security interest in all of R. S. Andrews of Maryland assets. In
the event of default on either of the notes, RSAE’s investment in R. S. Andrews of Maryiand
would be at risk to satisfy the notes.

The table above does not include the following guarantees:

KCP&L Financing |, a trust, has issued $150.0 million of preferred securities. In connection with the
issuance of the preferred securities, KCP&L issued a preferred securities guarantee, which guarantees
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the payment of any accrued and unpaid distributions, the redemption price and payments upon
dissolution, winding-up or termination of the trust, all to the extent that the trust has funds available
therefore. At December 31, 2002, there were no accrued and unpaid distributions.

In December 2002, KCP&L obtained bond insurance policies as a credit enhancement to its Series
1893A and 1993B EIRR bonds, which totai $79.5 million. The insurance agreement between KCP&L
and the issuer of the bond insurance policies, provides for reimbursement by KCP&L for any amounts
the insurer pays under the bond insurance policies.

Environmental RMatters

KCP&L's operations are subject to regulation by federal, state and local authorities with regard to air
and other environmental matters. The generation and transmission of electricity produces and requires
disposal of certain hazardous products which are subject to these laws and regulations. [n addition to
imposing continuing compliance obligations, these laws and regulations autherize the imposition of
substantial penalties for noncompliance, including fines, injunctive relief and cother sanctions. Failure to
comply with these laws and regulations could have a material adverse effect on KCP&L.

KCP&L operates in an environmentally responsible manner and seeks to use current technology to
avoid and treat contamination. KCP&L regularly conducts environmental audits designed to ensure
compliance with governmental regulations and to detect contamination. Covernmentai bodies,
however, may impose additional or more restrictive environmental regulations that couid require
substantial changes tc operations or facilities at a significant cost. See Note 10 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISKS

Great Plains Energy and consolidated KCP&L are exposed to market risks associated with commodity
price and supply, interest rates and equity prices. Market risks are handled in accordance with
established policies, which may include entering into various derivative transactions. In the normal
course of business, Great Plains Energy and consolidated KCP&L aiso face risks that are either non-
financial or non-quantifiable. Such risks principally include business, legal, operational and credit risks
and are not represented in the following analysis.

Commodity Risk
KCP&L and Strategic Energy engage in the wholesale and retail marketing of electricity and
accordingly, are exposed to risk associated with the price of electricity.

KCP&L's wholesale operations include the physical delivery and marketing of power obtained through
its generation capacity and long, intermediate and short-term capacity/energy contracts. KCP&L
maintains a capacity margin of at least 12% of its peak summer demand. This net positive supply of
capacity and energy is maintained through its generation assets and capacity and power purchase
agreements to protect it from the potential cperational failure of one of its owned or contracted power
generating units. The agreements contain penalties for non-performance to protect KCP&L from
energy price risk on the contracted energy. KCP&L also enters into additional power purchase
agreements with the objective of obtaining the most economical energy to meet its physica! delivery
obligations to its customers. KCP&L continually evaluates the need for additional risk mitigation
measures in order to minimize its financial exposure to, among other things, spikes in wholesale power
prices during periods of high demand.

KCP&L's sales include the sales of electricity to its retail customers and bulk power sales of electricity
in the wholesale market. KCP&L continually evaluates its system requirements, the availability of
generating units, availability and cost of fuel supply, the avaiiability and cost of purchased power and
the requirements of other electric systems; therefore, the impact of the hypothetical amounts that follow
could be significantly reduced depending on the system and market prices at the time of the increases.
During 2002, approximately 75% of KCP&L'’s net MWh's generated was coal-fired. A hypothetical 10%
increase in the market price of coal could have resulted in a $2.9 million decrease in pretax earnings for
2002. KCP&L currently has approximately 95% of its coal requirements for 2003 under contract.
Approximately 10% of the 2003 expected delivered cost of coal is subject to the market price of coal,
which is approximately one-half of the amounts subject to the market price of coal in 2002. KCP&L has
implemented price risk mitigation measures to reduce its exposure tc high natural gas prices. A
hypotheticai 10% increase in natural gas and cil market prices would have resulted in a decrease of
less than $1.0 million in pretax earnings. Approximately 75% of KCP&L's summer 2003 projected gas
generation requirements for retail and firm wholesale sales are price protected through its hedging
program, which is consistent with the percentages hedged in 2002. A hypothetical 10% increase in the
cost of purchased power could have resulied in a $2.8 miliion decrease in pretax earnings for 2002.

Strategic Energy maintains a commodity-price risk management strategy that uses forward physical
energy purchases and derivative instruments to minimize significant, unanticipated earnings
fluctuations caused by commodity-price volatility. As a resuit of supplying electricity to retail customers
under fixed rate contracts, Strategic Energy’s policy is to match customers' demand with fixed price
purchases. In certain markets where Strategic Energy operates, entering into forward fixed price
contracts is cost prohibitive. By entering into swap contracts for a portion of its forecasted purchases in
these markets, the future purchase price of electricity is effectively fixed under these swap contracts.
The swap contracts limit the unfavorable effect that price increases will have on electricity purchases.
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KLT Gas is exposed to commodity price risk on the natural gas it produces. Financial hedge
instruments can be used to mitigate its exposure to market price fluctuations on appreximately 85% of
its daily gas saies in accordance with its risk management policy. Currently, KLT Gas is producing an
insignificant volume of gas and the price risk is minimal.

KCP&L and Strategic Energy are not required tc record energy fransactions at fair value.
Commitments to purchase and sell energy and energy-related products except for derivatives that
qualify as cash flow hedges are currently carried at cost. KCP&L and Strategic Energy report the
revenue and expense associated with all energy contracts at the time the underlying physical
transaction closes consistent with industry practice and the business philosophy of
generating/purchasing and delivering physical power to customers.

Interest Rate Risk

Great Plains Energy manages interest expense and short and long-term liquidity through a combination
of fixed rate and variable rate debt. Generally, the amount of each type of debt is managed through
market issuance, but interest rate swap and cap agreements with highly rated financial institutions may
be used to achieve the desired combination. Using outstanding balances and annualized interest rates
as of December 31, 2002, a hypothetical 10% increase in the interest rates associated with variable
rate debt would have resulted in a decrease of less than $1.0 million in pretax earnings for 2002.
Additionally, interest rates impact the fair value of long-term debt. A change in interest rates would
impact the Company tc the extent it redeemed any of its outstanding debt. At December 31, 2002,
stated values approximate fair vaiue.

Equity Price Risk :

KCP&L maintains trust funds, as required by the NRC, to fund certain costs of decommissioning its
Wolf Creek nuclear power plant. KCP&L does not expect Wolf Creek decommissioning to start before
2025. As of December 31, 2002, these funds were invested primarily in domestic equity securities and
fixed income securities and are reflected at fair value on the KCP&L's balance sheets. The mix of
securities is designed to provide returns tc be used ¢ fund decommissioning and to compensate for
infiationary increases in decommissioning costs; however the equity securities in the trusts are exposed
to price fluctuations in equity markets, and the value ¢f fixed rate fixed income securities are exposed to
changes in interest rates. Invesiment performance and asset aliocation are periodically reviewed. A
hypothetical increase in interest rates resulting in a hypothetical 10% decrease in the value of the fixed
income securities would have resuited in a $3.8 million reduction in the value of the decommissioning
trust funds. A hypothetical 10% decrease in equity prices would have resulted in a $2.3 million
reduction in the fair value of the equity securities as of December 31, 2002. KCP&L's exposure to
equity price market risk associated with the decommissioning trust funds is in large part mitigated due
to the fact that KCP&L is currently allowed to recover its decommissioning costs in its rates.

KLT Investments has affordable housing notes that require the greater of 15% of the outstanding note
balances or the next annual installment to be held as cash, cash equivalents or marketable securities.
A hypothetical 10% decrease in market prices of the securities held as collateral would have resulied in
a decrease of less than $1.0 million in pretax earnings for 2002.
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GREAT PLAINS ENERGY
Consolidated Statements of income

Year Ended December 31 2002 2001 2000
(thousands)

Operating Revenues

Electric revenues - KCP&L $ 1,009,888 $ 967,479 $ 951,960

Electric revenues - Strategic Energy 788,278 396,004 111,844

Other revenues 63,736 98,435 52,064

Total 1,861,882 1,461,918 1,115,868

Operating Expenses

Fuel 159,665 163,846 153,144

Purchased power - KCP&L 48,214 65,173 105,722

Purchased power - Strategic Energy £885,370 329,003 84,449

Gas purchased and production expenses 3,531 16,932 30,398

Other 332,650 323,663 249,926

Maintenance 91,844 77,802 74,466

Depreciation and depletion 151,593 158,771 132,378

General taxes 898,351 98,060 82,228

(Gain) Loss on property (22) 171,477 (99,118)

Total 1,570,227 1,404,727 823,591

Operating income 291,853 57,181 292,277
Loss from equity investments {1,173} {376) (19,441)
Minority interest in subsidiaries {10,753) (2,899) (4,376)
Non-operating income 6,383 12,348 21,643
Non-operating expenses (20,055) (38,889) (32,620)
Interest charges 89,094 103,332 75,686
income (loss) before income taxes, extraordinary item and

cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles 177,473 (75,957) 181,797
Income taxes 48,285 (35,814) 53,166
Income (loss) before extraordinary item and cumulative effect

of changes in accounting principles 129,188 (40,043) 128,631
Early extinguishment of debt, net of income taxes (Note 19) - 15,872 -
Cumulative effect to January 1 of changes in

accounting principles (Note 6 and 7) {3,000) - 30,073
Net income (loss) 126,188 (24,171) 158,704
Preferred stock dividend requirements 1,848 1,647 1,649
Earnings (Loss) available for common stock $ 124,542 $ (25818) $ 157,055
Average number of common shares outstanding 62,823 61,864 61,864
Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per common share

before extraordinary item and cumulative effect of

changes in accounting principles $ 2.04 $ (088 $ 2.05
Early extinguishment of debt - 0.26 -
Cumulative effect to January 1 of changes in

accounting principles {0.05) - 0.49
Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per common share $ 1.89 $ (0.42) $ 2.54
Cash dividends per common share $ 1.68 $ 1.66 $ 1.66

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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GREAT PLAINS ENERGY
Consolidated Balance Sheets

Cecember 31 December 31
2002 2001
(thousands)
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 65,302 $ 29,034
Receivables 200,872 152,114
Fuel inventories, at average cost 21,311 22,246
iaterials and supplies, at average cost 50,800 50,696
Current income taxes - 31,031
Deferred income taxes 3,233 5,061
Other 19,543 19,167
Total 361,161 309,349
Nonutility Property and Investments
Affordable housing limited partnerships 68,844 81,136
Gas property and investments 45,419 43,385
Nuclear decommissioning trust fund 63,283 61,766
Other 63,864 63,616
Total 244,310 249,903
Utility Plant, at Original Cost
Electric 4,428,433 4,332,464
Less-accumulated depreciation 1,885,389 1,793,786
Net utility plant in service 2,543,044 2,538,678
Construction work in progress 39,519 51,265
Nuclear fuel, net of amortization of $121,851 and $127,101 21,506 33,771
Total 2,804,069 2,623,714
Deferred Charges
Regulatory assets 128,901 124,406
Prepaid pension costs 85,945 88,337
Goodwill 45,058 37,066
Other deferred charges 39,293 30,724
Total 300,199 280,533
Total $ 3,508,739 $ 3,463,499
LIABILITIES AND CAPITALIZATION
Current Liabilities
Notes payable $ 44,679 $ 144,404
Commercial paper - 62,000
Current maturities of long-term debt 134,092 238,767
EIRR bonds classified as current 81,000 177,500
Accounts payable 175,547 173,956
Accrued taxes 29,257 14,324
Accrued interest 16,407 13,262
Accrued payroll and vacations 28,000 26,422
Accrued refueling outage costs 8,292 12,979
Other 32,816 35,810
Total 580,080 899,424
Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities
Deferred income taxes 593,169 594,704
Deferred investment tax credits 41,585 45,748
Accrued nuclear decommissioning costs 64,584 83,040
Pension fiability 73,251 28,692
Other 81,275 85,393
Total 853,844 817,577
Capitalization (see statements) 2,102,805 1,746,498
Commitments and Contingencies (Note 10}
Total $ 3,506,739 $ 3,463,499

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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GREAT PLAINS ENERGY

Consolidated Statements of Capitalization

December 31

December 31

2002 2001
(thousands)
Long-term Debt {excluding current maturities)
General Mortgage Bonds
Medium-Term Notes due 2004-07, ‘
7.55%" and 7.28%"" weighted-average rate $ 55,000 $ 179,000 )
2.48%" and 2.71%** EIRR bonds due 2012-23 158,768 158,768 1
EIRR bonds classified as current liabilities (31,000) (31,000)
Senior Notes
7.125% due 2005 250,000 250,000
6.500% due 2011 150,000 150,000
6.000% due 2007 225,000 -
Unamortized discount {813} (660)
EIRR bonds
2.41%* and 3.25%"" Series A & B due 2015 108,607 106,500
4.50%"** Series C due 2017 50,000 50,000
2.41%"* and 3.25%"* Series D due 2017 41,183 40,000
EIRR bonds classified as current liabilities {50,000) (146,500)
Subsidiary Obligations
R.S. Andrews Enterprises, Inc. long-term debt
5.70%" and 8.14%"* weighted-average rate due 2004-16 6,128 2,832
Affordable Housing Notes
7.84%* and 8.16%"** weighted-average rate due 2004-08 10,564 19,746
Total 874,335 778,686
Company-obligated Mandatorily Redeemable Preferred Securities
of a trust holding sclely KCP&L Subordinated Debentures 150,000 150,000
Cumuiative Preferred Stock
$100 Par Vaiuve
3.80% - 100,000 shares issued 10,000 10,000
4.50% - 100,000 shares issued 10,000 10,000
4.20% - 70,000 shares issued 7,000 7,000
4.35% - 120,000 shares issued 12,000 12,000
Total 39,000 39,000
Common Stock Equity
Common stock-150,000,000 shares authorized without par value
69,196,322 and 61,908,726 shares issued, stated value 609,497 449,697
Capital stock premium and expense (7,744) (1,656)
Retained earnings (see statements) 363,579 344,815
Treasury stock 4) (903)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Income (loss) on derivative hedging instruments 927 (12,110)
Minimum pension obligation {26,785) {1,031)
Total 936,470 778,812
Total $ 2,102,805 $ 1,746,408

* Weighted-average rate as of December 31, 2002
** Weighted-average rate as of December 31, 2001
***  Weighted-average rate as of December 31, 2002 and 2001
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GREAT PLAINS ENERGY
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31 2002 2001 2000

(thousands)

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net income (loss) $ 126,188 $ (24,171) $ 158,704
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash

from operating activities:

Early extinguishment of debt, net of income taxes - (15,872) -
Cumulative effect of changes in accounting priciples 3,000 - (30,073)
Depreciation and depletion 151,583 158,771 132,378
Amortization of:
Nuclear fuel 13,108 17,087 15,227
Other 12,496 16,755 11,940
Deferred income taxes (net) 15,594 (301) (29,542)
Investment tax credit amortization (4,183) (4,289) (4,298)
Loss from equity invesiments 1,173 376 19,441
(Gain) Loss on property (92) 171,477 (92,118)
Allowance for equity funds used during construction (289) (3,616) (4,001)
Deferred storm costs {20,149) - -
Minority interest 10,733 2,899 4,376
Cther operating activities (Note 2) 28,022 (40,255) 18,837
Net cash from operating activities 337,205 278,861 193,873
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Utility capital expenditures {131,158) (262,030) (401,041)
Allowance for borrowed funds used during construction (879) (9,197) (12,184)
Purchases cf investments {7,134} (46,105) (55,531)
Purchases of nonutility property {12,603) (66,119) (25,466)
Proceeds from sale of assets 7,821 86,460 225,958
Hawthorn No. 5 partial insurance recovery - 30,000 50,000
Loan to DTI prior to majority cwnership - (84,000) -
Other investing activities {6,853) 10,306 18,967
Net cash from investing activities {151,008) (370,685) (198,297)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Issuance of common stock 151,800 - -
Issuance of long-term debt 228,876 249,597 500,445
Repayment of long-term debt {238,897) (193,145) (179,858)
Net change in short-term borrowings {168,805) 140,747 (183,099)
Dividends paid (107,424) (104,335) (104,335)
Cther financing activities (15,479) (6,883) (5,925)
Net cash from financing activities {149,929) 85,981 27,228
Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents 36,268 (5,843) 21,804
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 29,034 34,877 13,073
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year $ 865,302 $ 29,034 $ 34877

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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GREAT PLAINS ENERGY
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive income

Year Ended December 31 2002 2001 2000
(thousands)
Net Income (Loss) $ 128,188 $ (24,171) $ 158,704
Other comprehensive loss:
Gain (ioss) on derivative hedging instruments 17,584 (43,708) -
Income tax (expense) benefit {7,138) 18,136 -
Net gain (loss) on derivative hedging instruments 10,446 (25,570) -
Minimum pension obligation (42,218) (1,691) -
Income tax benefit 16,464 860 -
Net minimum pension obligation (25,754) (1,031) -
Reclassification to revenues and expenses, net of tax 2,591 (3,883) 2,337
Comprehensive income (loss) before cumulative
effect of a change in accounting principles,
net of income taxes 113,471 (54,755) 161,041
Cumulative effect to January 1, 20C1, of a change
in accounting principles, net of income taxes - 17,443 -
Comprehensive income (Loss) $ 113,471 $ (37,312) $ 161,041
The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
GREAT PLAINS ENERGY
Consolidated Statements of Retained Earnings
Year Ended December 31 2002 2001 2000
(thousands)
Beginning Balance $ 344,815 $ 473,321 $ 418,952
Net Income (Loss) 126,188 (24,171) 158,704
471,003 449,150 577,656
Dividends Declared
Preferred stock - at required rates 1,848 1,647 1,649
Common stock 105,778 102,688 102,686
Ending Balance $ 363,579 $ 344,815 $§ 473,321

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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KANSAS CITY POWER & LIGHT COMPANY
Consolidated Statements of income

Year Ended December 31 2002 2001 2000
(thousands)

Cperating Revenues

Electric revenues $ 1,009,868 $ 1,256,121 $ 1,063,804

QOther revenues 61,445 94,773 52,064

Total 1,071,313 1,350,884 1,115,868

Operating Expenses

Fuel 159,666 163,846 153,144

Purchased power 48,214 304,882 190,171

Gas purchased and producticn expenses - 17,454 30,396

Other 279,207 304,704 248,926

Maintenance 91,858 77,172 74,466

Depreciation and depletion 147,925 152,883 132,378

General taxes 97,699 97,288 92,228

(Gain) Loss on property 59 (22,026) {99,118)

Total 822,628 1,096,193 823,591

Operating income 248,685 254,701 292,277
Loss from equity investments - (501) (19,441)
Mincrity interest in subsidiaries - (1,276) (4,378)
Non-operating income 4,838 11,996 21,643
Non-operating expenses (9,937) (33,160) (32,620)
Interest charges 82,020 87,653 75,686
Income before income taxes, extraordinary item and

cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles 161,566 134,107 181,797
Income taxes 62,867 30,288 53,168
Income before extracrdinary item and cumuiative

effect of changes in accounting principles 98,699 103,818 128,631
Early extinguishment of debt, net of income taxes (Note 19) = 15,872 -
Cumulative effect to January 1 of changes in accounting

principles (Note 6 and 7) (3,000) - 30,073
Net income 95,699 119,691 158,704
Preferred stock dividend reguirements - - 1,098 1,649
Eamings available for common stock $ 95699 $ 118,583 $ 157,055

The disclosures regarding KCP&L included in the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an

integral part of these statements.
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KANSAS CITY POWER & LIGHT COMPANY
Consoclidated Balance Sheets

December 39 December 31
2002 2001
(thousands)
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 179 $ 962
Receivables 70,170 62,511
Fuel inventories, at average cost 21,311 22,246
Materials and supplies, at average cost 50,800 50,696
Deferred income taxes 3,233 5,061
Other 10,844 11,484
Total 156,337 152,960
Nonutility Property and Investments
Nuclear decommissioning trust fund 3,283 61,766
Other 41,414 40,797
Total 104,697 102,563
Uttlity Piant, at Original Cost
Electric 4,428,433 4,332,464
Less-accumulated depreciation 1,883,389 1,793,786
Net utility plant in service 2,543,044 2,538,678
Construction work in progress 39,519 51,265
Nuclear fuel, net of amortization of $121,951 and $127,101 21,508 33,771
Total 2,604,069 2,623,714
Deferred Charges
Regulatory assets 128,801 124,406
Prepaid pension costs 83,9458 88,337
Goodwill 19,852 22,952
Other deferred charges 39,256 30,724
Total 274,054 266,419
Total $ 3,139,157 $ 3,145,656
LIABILITIES AND CAPITALIZATION
Current Liabilities
Notes payable $ 23,850 $ 20,404
Commercial paper - 62,000
Current maturities of long-term debt 124,911 227,383
EIRR bonds classified as current 84,000 177,500
Accounts payable 77,618 113,029
Accrued taxes 65,453 15,895
Accrued interest 15,462 11,327
Accrued payroll and vacations 24,538 22,581
Accrued refueling outage costs 8,292 12,979
Other 12,630 14,562
Total 433,756 677,660
Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities
Deferred income taxes 615,867 630,699
Deferred investment tax credits 41,583 45,748
Accrued nuclear decommissioning costs 4,584 63,040
Pension liability 73,251 28,692
Other 51,230 46,494
Total 848,597 814,673
Capitalization (see statements) 1,858,804 1,663,323
Commitments and Contingencies (Note 10)
Total $ 3,139,157 $ 3,145,656

The disclosures regarding KCP&L included in the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an

integral part of these statements.
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KANSAS CITY POWER & LIGHT COMPANY
Consolidated Statements of Capitalization

December 31 December 31
2002 2001
(thousands)
Long-term Debt (excluding current maturities)
General Mortgage Bonds
Medium-Term Notes due 2004-07,

7.55%* and 7.28%™** weighted-average rate $ 55,000 $ 179,000
2.48%* and 2.71%* EIRR bends due 2012-23 158,768 158,768
EIRR bonds classified as current liabilities (31,000) (31,000)

Senior Notes ‘
7.125% due 2005 250,000 250,000
6.500% due 2011 150,000 150,000
8.000% due 2007 225,000 -
Unamortized discount (915) (660)
EIRR bonds
2.41%"* and 3.25%™* Series A & B due 2015 108,607 106,500
2.41%* and 3.25%™* Series D due 2017 41,183 40,000
4.50%*** Series C due 2017 50,000 50,000
EIRR bonds classified as current liabilities {50,000) (146,500)
Subsidiary Obligations
R.S. Andrews Enterprises, Inc. long-term debt
5.70%"* and 8.14%** weighted-average rate due 2004-16 6,128 2,832
Total 983,771 758,940
Company-obligated Mandatorily Redeemable Preferred Securities
of a trust holding solely KCP&L Subordinated Debentures 150,000 150,000
Common Stock Equity
Common stock-1,000 shares authorized without par value
1 share issued, stated value 562,041 526,041
Retained earnings (see statements) 209,808 219,524
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)
Income (loss) on derivative hedging instruments 171 (151)
Minimum pension ¢bligation (28,785) (1,031)
Total : 745,033 744,383
Tetal $ 1,858,804 $ 1,653,323

*  Weighted-average rate as of December 31, 2002
**  Weighted-average rate as of December 31, 2001
***  Weighted-average rate as of December 31, 2002 and 2001

The disclosures regarding KCP&L included in the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an
integral part of these statements.
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KANSAS CITY POWER & LIGHT COMPANY
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Year Ended Decembar 31 2002 2001 2000
(thousands)
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net income $ 956%9 $ 119,631 $ 158,704
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
from operating activities:
Early extinguishment of debt, net of income taxes - (15,872) -
Cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles 3,000 - (30,073)
Depreciation and depletion 147,925 152,883 132,378
Amortization of:
Nuclear fuel 13,909 17,087 15,227
Cther 9,589 15,717 11,940
Deferred income taxes (net) 11,358 12,867 (29,542)
investment tax credit amortization (4,183) (4,289) (4,296)
Loss from equity investments - 501 19,441
(Gain) Loss on property 59 (22,026) (99,118)
Allowance for equity funds used during construction (299) (3,616) (4,001)
Deferred storm costs (20,149) - -
Other operating activities (Note 2) 19,204 (35,322) 23,213
Net cash from operating activities 275,301 237,631 193,873
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Utility capital expenditures (132,039) (262,030) (401,041)
Allowance for borrowed funds used during construction {379) (9,197) (12,184)
Purchases of investments (3,421) (41,548) (55,531)
Purchases of nonutility property (1,279) (49,254) (25,466)
Proceeds from sale of assets - 64,072 225,958
Hawthorn No. 5 partial insurance recovery - 30,000 50,000
Loan to DT! prior to majority ownership - (94,000) -
Other investing activities (7,289) 8,087 18,987
Net cash from investing activities {145,007) (353,870) (199,297)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Issuance of long-term debt 228,878 249,597 500,445
Repayment of long-term debt {227,513) (93,099) (179,858)
Net change in short-term borrowings (58,554) 14,524 (183,089)
Dividends paid - (78,248) (104,335)
Dividends paid to Great Plains Energy (108,617) (25,677) -
Cash of KLT Inc. and GPP dividended to
Great Plains Energy - (19,115) -
Equity contribution from Great Plains Energy 36,000 39,000 -
Other financing activities {4,289) (4,660) (5,925)
Net cash from financing activities {131,077) 82,324 27,228
ket Chenge in Cash and Cash Equivaients (783) (33,215) 21,804
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 962 34,877 13,073
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year $ 179 § 962 $ 34,877

The disclosures regarding KCP&L included in the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an

integral part of these statements.
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KANSAS CITY POWER & LIGHT COMPANY
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive lncome

Year Ended December 31 20902 2001 2000
(thousands)
Net income $ 0958692 $ 119,691 $ 158,704
Other comprehensive income {loss):

Income {loss) on derivative hedging instruments 702 (39,952) -
Income tax (expense) benefit (274) 16,590 -
Net income (loss) on derivative hedging instruments 428 (23,362) -
Minimum pension obligation (42,218) (1,691) -
Income tax benefit 16,484 660 -
Net minimum pension obligation (25,754) {1,031) -
Reclassification 0 revenues and expenses, net of ax (108) (7,687) 2,337

Compgrehensive income before cumulative

effect of a change in accounting principles,

net of income taxes 70,267 87,611 161,041
Cumulative effect to January 1, 2001, of a change

in accounting principles, net of income taxes - 17,443 -
Comprehensive Income $ 70,267 $ 105,054 $ 161,041

The disclosures regarding KCP&L included in the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an
integral part of these statements.

KANSAS CITY PCWER & LIGHT COMPANY
Consolidated Statements of Retained Earnings

Year Ended December 31 2002 2001 2000
(thousands)
Beginning Balance $ 218,524 $ 473,321 $ 418,952
Net Income 85,689 119,691 158,704
315,223 593,012 577,656
Dividends Declared
Preferred stock - at required rates - 824 1,649
Cemmon stock - 77,011 102,686
Common stock held by Great Plains Energy 105,617 25,677 -
Equity dividend of KLT Inc. and GPP
to Great Plains Energy - 269,976 -
Ending Balance $ 209,606 $ 219,524 $ 473,321

The disclosures regarding KCP&L included in the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an
integral part of these statements.
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GREAT PLAINS ENERGY INCORPORATED
KANSAS CITY POWER & LIGHT COMPANY
Netes to Consolidated Financial Statements

The notes tc consolidated financial statements that follow are a combined presentation for Great Plains
Energy and consolidated KCP&L, both registrants under this filing.

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization

Great Plains Energy, a Missouri corporation incorpcrated in 2001, is a public utility holding company
registered with and subject to the regulation of the SEC under the 35 Act. Through a corporate
restructuring, which was consummated on October 1, 2001, Great Plains Energy became the parent
company and soie owner of the common stock of KCP&L. This restructuring was implemented through
an agreement and plan of merger whereby KCP&L merged with a wholly-owned subsidiary of Great
Plains Energy, with KCP&L continuing as the surviving company and wholly-owned subsidiary of Great
Plains Energy. Each outstanding share of KCP&L stock was exchanged for a share of Great Plains
Energy stock. As a result, Great Plains Energy replaced KCP&L as the listed entity on the New York
Stock Exchange, with the trading symbol GXP. In connection with the reorganization, KCP&L
transferred to Great Piains Energy its interest in two whoily-owned subsidiaries, KLT inc. and GPP.
Great Plains Energy does not own or operate any significant assets other than the stock of its
subsidiaries.

Great Plains Energy currently has four direct subsidiaries:

o KCP&L is an integrated electric utility company that serves retail customers in the states of
Missouri and Kansas. KCP&L is one of Great Plains Energy’s three reportabie segments.
KCP&L has one wholly-owned subsidiary, HSS. HSS has invested in two companies, RSAE
and Worry Free. RSAE and Worry Free provide energy-reiated residential and commercial
services.

e KLT inc. is an investment company that primarily holds interests in Strategic Energy, KLT Gas,
DT and affordable housing limited partnerships. Strategic Energy and KLT Gas are the other
two reportable segments of Great Plains Energy. DT! has filed voluntary bankruptcy petitions.
See Note 19 for additiona! information concerning DTl's bankruptcy petitions.

o GPP focuses on the development of wholesale generation. During 2002, management decided
to limit the operations of GPP until market conditions improve or the Company makes further
changes in its business strategy. GPP has made no significant investments to date.

o [|EC was formed to acquire and hold an interest in Strategic Energy. See Note 9 for additional
information concerning IEC’s acquisition of an indirect interest in Strategic Energy. {EC does
not own or operate any assets other than its indirect interest in Strategic Energy.

The operations of Great Plains Energy and its subsidiaries are divided into three reportable segments:
KCP&L, Strategic Energy and KLT Gas. Great Plains Energy’s legal structure differs from the
functional management and financial reporting of its reportable segments. Other activities not
considered reportable segment primarily inciude the operations of HSS and GPP, all KLT Inc.
operations other than Strategic Energy and KLT Gas and holding company operations.
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Cash and Cash Egquivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months
or less. For Great Plains Energy this includes Strategic Energy’s cash held in trust of $11.4 million at
December 31, 2002 and $2.2 million at December 31, 2001.

Strategic Energy has entered into collateral arrangements with selected electricity power suppliers that
require selected customers to remit payment to lockboxes that are held in trust and managed by a
Trustee. As part of the trust administration, the Trustee remits payment to the supplier for electricity
purchased by Strategic Energy. Any excess remittances into the lockboxes are remitted back to
Strategic Energy after the disbursement to the supplier has been made.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments
The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial
instruments for which it is practicable to estimate that value:

investments and Nonutifity Properiy—Consolidated KCP&L's investments and nonutiity property
includes the nuclear decommissioning trust fund recorded at fair value. Fair value is based on quoted
market prices of the investments held by the fund. In addition to consolidated KCP&L's investments,
Great Plains Energy’s investments and nonutility property include KLT Investments’ affordable housing
limited partnerships and trading equity securities. The fair value of KLT Investments' affordable
housing limited partnership total perifolio, based on the discounted cash flows generated by tax credits,
tax deductions and sale of properties, approximates book vaiue. KLT Investments’ other trading equity
securities are recorded at fair value based on qucted market prices of the investments heid. The fair
values of cther varicus investments are not readily determinable and the investments are therefore
stated at cost.

Long-term debt—The incremental borrowing rate for similar debt was used o determine fair value if
quoted market prices were not avalilable. The stated values approximate fair market values.

investments in Affordable Housing Limited Parinerships

At December 31, 2002, KLT Investments had $68.6 million in affordable housing limited parinerships.
About 67% of these investments were recorded at cost; the equity methed was used for the remainder.
Tax expense is reduced in the year tax credits are generated. The investments generate future cash
flows from tax credits and tax losses of the parinerships. The investments alsc generate cash flows
from the sales of the properties. For most investments, tax credits are received over ten years. KLT
Investments projects tax credits to run through 2009. A change in accounting principle relating to
investments made after May 19, 1985, requires the use of the equity method when a company owns
more than 5% in a limited partnership investment. Of the investments recorded at cost, $44.2 miilion
exceed this 5% leve! but were made before May 19, 1985. KLT Investments’ management does not
anticipate making additional investments in affordable housing limited parinerships at this time.

On a quarterly basis, KLT investments compares the cost of those properties accounted for by the cost
method to the total of projected residual vaiue of the properties and remaining tax credits to be
received. Estimated residual values are based on studies performed by an independent firm. Based
on the latest comparison, KLT Invesiments reduced its investments in affordable housing limited
partnerships by $8.0 million, $13.5 million and $2.4 million in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.
Projected annual reductions of the beok cost for the years 2003 through 20086 total $13 million, $7
million, $7 million and $6 million, respectively. Even after these reductions, earnings from affordable
housing are expected to be positive for the years 2003 through 2008.

These projections are based on the latest information available but the ultimate amount and timing of
actual reductions made could be significantly different from the above estimates.
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Securities Available for Sale

In 2000, CeliNet completed a sale of its assets to a third party causing KLT inc.’s investment in CeliNet
to beccme worthless. Accordingly, in March 2000, KLT Inc. realized iosses on its investment in CeliNet
of $3.1 million after tax.

Utllity Plant

KCP&L's utility plant is stated at historical costs of construction. These cosis include taxes, an
allowance for the cost of borrowed and equity funds used to finance construction and payroll-related
costs, including pensions and other fringe benefits. Replacements, improvements and additions to
units of property are capitalized. Repairs of property and replacements of items not considered to be
units of property are expensed as incurred (except as discussed under Wolf Creek Refueling Outage
Costs). When property units are retired or otherwise disposed, the original cost, net of salvage and
removal, is charged to accumulated depreciation. Substantially all utility plant is pledged as coilateral
for KCP&L's mortgage bonds under the General Mortgage Indenture and Deed of Trust dated
December 1, 1888, as supplemented.

The balances of utility plant in service with a range of depreciable lives are listed in the table below:

December 31

Utility Plant In Senvice 2002 2001
(thousands)
Production (23 - 42 years) $ 2,712,170 $ 2,681,060
Transmission (27 - 76 years) 282,117 247,626
Distripution (8 - 75 years) 1,218,606 1,180,056
General (5 - 50 years) 215,540 223,722
Total $ 4,428,433 $ 4,332,464

Through December 31, 2002, KCP&L has received $160 miliion in insurance recoveries related to
property destroyed in the February 17, 19989, explosion at the Hawthorn No. 5§ generating unit.
Recoveries received have been recorded as an increase in accumulated depreciation.

As prescribed by the FERC, AFDC is charged to the cost of the plant. AFDC is included in the rates
charged to customers by KCP&L over the service life of the property. AFDC equity funds are included
as a non-cash item in non-operating income and AFDC borrowed funds are a reduction of interest
charges. The rates used to compute gross AFDC are compounded semi-annually and averaged 4.4%
in 2002, 6.8% in 2001 and 7.5% in 2000.

Natural Ges Properties

The Company does not have significant oil and gas producing activities based on the resuits of the
significance tests preformed as prescribed in SFAS No. 69, “Disclosures About Oil and Gas Producing
Activities.” KLT Gas follows the fuli cost method of accounting for its natural gas properties,
substantially all of which were undeveloped at December 31, 2002. The full cost method requires that
all costs associated with property acquisition, exploration and development activities be capitalized.
Any excess of book value over the present value (10% discount rate) of estimated future net revenues
(at year-end prices) from the natural gas reserves is expensed. All natural gas property interests
owned by KLT Gas are located in the United States.

Natural gas property and equipment included in gas property and investments on Great Piains Energy’s

consolidated balance sheets totaled $45.0 million, net of $8.5 million of accumulated depreciation, in
2002 and $39.9 million, net of $5.0 million of accumulated depreciation, in 2001.
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Other Nonutility Property

Great Plains Energy’s and consclidated KCP&L'’s other nonutility property includes land, buildings,
vehicles, general office equipment and software and is recorded at historical cost, net of accumulated
depreciation, and has a range of depreciable lives of 3 to 43 years.

Depreclation, Depletion and Ameortization

Depreciation of KCP&L'’s utility plant cther than nuclear fuel is computed using the straight-line method
over the estimated lives of depreciable property based on rates approved by state regulatory
authorities. Annual depreciation rates average about 3%. Depreciation of nonutility property is
computed using the straight-line method. Excluding DT1, annual depreciation rates for the years 2002,
2001 and 2000 were 19.3%, 15.3% and 13.3%, respectively.

KCP&L amortizes nuclear fuel to fuel expense based on the quantity of heat produced during the
generation of electricity. Regulatory assets and liabilities are amortized consistent with the recovery
period. '

Prior to adoption of SFAS No. 142 on January 1, 2002, Great Piains Energy and consolidated KCP&L
amortized gocdwill using the straight-line methed over a 15 and 40 year life. See Note 6 for additional
information concerning the adoption of SFAS No. 142.

Depletion, depreciation and amortization of natural gas properties are calculated using the units of
production method. The depletion per mmBtu was $4.61 in 2002, $1.35 in 2001, and $0.63 in 2000.
The depletion per mmBtu in 2002 reflected downward revisions in reserve estimates. Unproved gas
properties are not amortized but are assessed for impairment either individually or on an aggregated
basis.

Nuclear Fuel

Under the Nuclear Waste Policy Act of 1982, the DOE is responsible for the permanent disposal of
spent nuclear fuel. KCP&L pays the DOE a quarterly fee of one-tenth of a cent for each kilowatt-hour
of net nuclear generation delivered and scld for the future disposal of spent nuclear fuel. These
disposal costs are charged to fuel expense. [n 2002, the U.S. Senate approved Yucca Mountain,
Nevada as a long-term geologic repository. The DOE is currently in the process of preparing an
application to obtain the NRC license to proceed with construction of the repository. Management
cannot predict when this site may be available. Under current DOE policy, cnce a permanent site is
available, the DOE will accept spent nuclear fuel first from the owners with the cldest spent fuel. Wolf
Creek has completed an con-site storage facliity that is designed to hold ali spent fuel generated at the
plant through the end of its 40-year licensed life in 2025.

Wolf Creek Refueling Outage Costs

KCP&L accrues forecasted incremental costs to be incurred during scheduled Wolf Creek refueling
outages monthly over the unit's cperating cycle, normally about 18 months. Estimated incremental
costs, which include operating, maintenance and replacement power expenses, are based on budgeted
outage costs and the estimated outage duration. Changes tc or variances from these estimates are
recorded when known or are probable.

Nuclear Plant Decommissioning Costs

The MPSC and the KCC require KCP&L and the other owners of Wolf Creek to submit an updated
decommissioning cost study every three years. The most recent study was submitted to the MPSC and
the KCC on August 30, 2002, and is the basis for the decommissioning cost estimates in the table
below. The MPSC has since approved continuation of funding at the previcusly approved level. The
KCC is expected to rule on the new deccmmissicning cost estimate and the associated escalaticn and
earnings assumptions in the spring of 2003. The escalation rates and earnings assumptions shown in
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the table below are those that were last explicitly approved by the MPSC and the KCC. The
decommissioning cost estimates are based on the immediate dismantlement method and include the
costs of decontamination, dismantiement and site restoration. KCP&L does not expect plant
decommissioning {o start before 2025.

KCC —_MPSC_

Future cost of decommissioning:

Total Station $1.1 billion $1.3 billion

47% share $487 miliion $608 million
Current cost of decommissioning (in 2002 dollars):

Total Station $488 million $468 million

47% share $220 million $220 million
Annual escalation factor 3.60% 4.50%

_Annual return on trust assets 8.93% 7.66%

-]

KCP&L contributes about $3 million annually to a tax-qualified trust fund to be used to decommission
Woif Creek. These costs are charged to other operating expenses and recovered in billings o
customers. These funding levels assume a centain return on trust assets. [f the actual return on trust
assets is below the anticipated level, KCP&L believes a rate increase would be allowed ensuring full
recovery of decommissioning cosis over the remaining life of the station.

The trust fund balance, including reinvested earnings, was $63.3 million at December 31, 2002, and
$61.8 million at December 31, 2001. The related liabilities for decommissioning are included in
Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities — Cther.

The Company adopted SFAS No. 143, "Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations” on January 1,
2003. See Note 12 for discussion of asset retirement obligations including those associated with
nuclear plant decommissicning costs.

Regulatory Matters

KCP&L is subject to the provisions of SFAS No. 71. Pursuant to SFAS No. 71, KCP&L defers items on
the balance sheet resulting from the effects of the ratemaking process, which wouid not be recorded
under GAAP if KCP&L was not reguiated. See Note 4 for additional information concerning reguiatory
matters.

Revenue Recognition

KCP&L and Strategic Energy recognize revenues on sales of electricity when the service is provided.
KLT Gas records natural gas sales revenues based on the amount of gas sold to purchasers on its
behalf. Receivables recorded at December 31, 2002 and 2001, include $27.2 million and $28.9 million,
respectively, for electric services provided but not yet billed by KCP&L, and $57.3 million and $48.5
million, respectively, for electric services provided, but not vet billed by Strategic Energy. See Note 3
for additional information on receivables.

To supply its retail contracts, Strategic Energy purchases long-term blocks of electricity under forward
contracts in fixed quantities at fixed prices from power suppliers based on projected usage. Strategic
Energy sells any excess retail supply of electricity back into the wholesale market. The proceeds from
the saie of excess supply of electricity are recorded as a reduction of purchased power. The gross
amount of excess retail supply sales that reduced purchased power was $126.4 million, $95.6 million
and $29.5 million in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.
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Property Gains and Losses

Net gains and losses from the sales of assets, businesses, and net asset impairments are recorded in
cperating expenses. See Note 19 for additional information regarding the net impairment of DT
assets.

Asset Impairments

Long-lived assets and intangible assets subject to amortization are periodically reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be
recoverable as prescribed under SFAS No. 144. SFAS No. 144 requires that if the sum of the
undiscounted expected future cash flows from an asset to be held and used is less than the carrying
value of the asset, an asset impairment must be recognized in the financial statements. The amount of
impairment recognized is the excess of the carrying value of the asset over its fair value.

Goodwill is tested for impairment at least annually and more frequently when indicators of impairment
exist as prescribed under SFAS No. 142. SFAS No. 142 requires that if the fair value of a reporting unit
is less than its carrying value inciuding goodwill, an impairment charge for goodwill must be recognized
in the financial statements. To measure the amount of the impairment loss to recognize, the implied
fair value of the reporting unit goodwill would be compared with its carrying value. See Note 6 for
information regarding the impact of adopting SFAS No. 142 on goodwill and goodwill amortization.

Income Taxes

Great Plains Energy and its subsidiaries file consolidated federal and combined and separate state
income tax returns. Income taxes for consolidated or combined subsidiaries are ailocated to the
subsidiaries based on separate cecmpany computations of taxable income or loss. [n accordance with
35 Act requirements, the holding company ailocates its own net income tax benefits to its direct
subsidiaries based on the positive taxable income of each company in the consolidated federal or
combined state returns. KCP&L uses the separate return method to compute its income tax provision.
For the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, there were no differences between the separate
return method used to compute KCP&L's tax provision and the formula to compute the amount it owed
to Great Plains Energy under the aliocation previcusly described.

The consolidated balance sheets include deferred income taxes for ail temporary differences between
the tax basis of an asset or liability and that reported in the financial statements. These deferred tax
assets and liabiiities are determined by using the tax rates scheduled by the tax law to be in effect
when the differences reverse. A tax valuation allowance is recorded when it is more likely than not that
a deferred tax asset will not be realized. See Note 13 for additional information concerning the
valuation allowance related to DTi.

Regulatory Asset — Recoverable taxes reflects the future revenue requirements necessary to recover
the tax benefits of existing temporary differences previously passed through to KCP&L customers.
KCP&L records operating income tax expense based on ratemaking principles.

Tax credits are recognized in the vear generated except for certain KCP&L investment tax credits that
have been deferred and amortized over the remaining service lives of the related properties.

Environmental Matters
Environmental costs are accrued when it is probable a liability has been incurred and the amount of the
liability can be reasonably estimated.

Basic and Diluted Earnings (Loss) per Common Share Calculation

There was ne dilutive effect on Great Plains Energy’s earnings per share from other securities in 2002,
2001 or 2000. To determine earnings (loss) per common share, preferred stock dividend requirements
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are deducted from both income before extraordinary item and cumulative effect of changes in
accounting principles and net income before dividing by average number of common shares
outstanding. The earnings (loss) per share impact of the extraordinary item and the cumulative effect
of changes in accounting principies is determined by dividing each by the average number of common
shares outstanding.

Earnings per share for KCP&L and Great Plains Energy are the same in 2000 prior to the formation of
the holding company. The following table reconciles Great Plains Energy’s basic and diluted earnings

(loss) per common share calculation:

income Shares ERPS
2002 (thousands except per share amounts)
Income before cumulative effect $ 129,188
Less: Preferred stock dividend requirement 1,646
Basic EPS
Income available to common stockholders 127,542 62,623 $ 2.04
Add: effect of dilutive securities 1
Diluted EPS $ 127,542 62,624 $ 2.04
Income (Loss) Shares EPS
2001 (thousands exceptpershare amounts)
Loss before extraordinary item $ (40,043)
Less: Preferred stock dividend requirement 1,647
Basic ERPS
Income available to common stockholders {41,690) 81,864 $ (0.68)
Add: effect of dilutive securities -
Diluted EPS $ (41,690) 61,864 $ (0.68)
income Shares EPS
2000 (thousands exceptpershare amounts)
Income before cumulative effect $ 128,631
Less: Preferred stock dividend requirement 1,649
Basic EPS
Income available to common stockholders 126,982 61,864 $ 2.05
Add: effect of dilutive securities 19
Diluted EPS $ 126,082 61,883 $ 2.05

Options to purchase 384,723 shares of common stock as of December 31, 2002, were excluded from
the computation of diluted earnings per share because the option exercise prices were greater than the
average market price of the common shares at the end of the respective periods. Options to purchase
277,802 shares of common stock as of December 31, 2001, were exciuded from the diluted earnings
calculation because the Company had a net loss from operations; therefore no potential common
shares are inciuded in the calcuiation because the effect is always anti-diiutive.
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2. SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Great Pﬂ@iws Energy @mer Opefating Activities

2002 2001 2000

Cash flows affected by changes in: (thousands)
Receivables $ (43,858) $ (32,680) $§ (42,565)
Fuel inventories 1,339 (1,444) 1,787
Materials and supplies (104) (4,294) (118)
Accounts payable 1,591 9,495 65,765
Accrued taxes and current income taxes 45,964 (31,133) 13,430
Accrued interest 3,145 667 (2,865)
W olf Creek refueling ocutage accrual (4,687) 11,089 (5,166)
Pension and postretirement benefit obligations 3,774 (22,577) (12,653)
Other 20,858 30,622 217
Total other operating activities $ 28,022 $ (40,255) $ 18,837

Cash paid during the period:
Interest
ncome taxes

83,818 § 84,807 $§ 76,385
17,709 § 21,614 § 80,445

@ &

During November 2002, Great Plains Energy indirectly acquired an additional 8% ownership in
Strategic Energy through its recently created subsidiary, IEC. The $15.1 million consideration paid for
the 6% ownership consisted of $8.0 million in Great Plains Energy common stock and promissory notes
of $4.7 million (issued by Great Piains Energy) and $2.4 miilion (issued by IEC). The promissory notes
were paid in January 2003. This transaction had no effect on Great Piains Energy’s consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2002. See Note 9 for additional information
regarding this transaction.

On February 8, 2001, KLT Telecom increased its equity ownership in DTI to a majority ownership. On
December 31, 2001, DTI filed voluntary petitions in Bankruptcy Court. As a result, DTl was
consolidated and its operations were included in KLT Telecom’s results of operations from February 8,
2001, through December 31, 2001, prior to the bankruptey filings at which time DTi was de-
consoiidated. See Note 19 for additional information concerning the bankrupfcy filings.
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The table below reflects a recenciliation of DTI's effect on Great Plains Energy's consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2001, to the cash invested in DTI during 2001.

2001
Cash Flows from Operating Activities {thousands)
Amounts included in net income (loss) $(248,437)
Depreciation 17,907
Goodwill amortization 2,481
Loss on property (net impairment) 195,835
Other ¢perating activities
Accretion of Senior Discount Notes and
amortization of the discount 16,364
Other 1,719
DTl adjustment to operating activities 234,308
Net cash from operating activities $ (14,131)
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Purchase of additional ownership in DT (35,855)
Purchase of nonutility property (33,648)
Loans to DTI prior to consolidation (94,000)
Other investing activities 3,002
DTI effect on cash from investing activities (164,501)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
DTl effect on cash from financing activities 2,223

Cash flows from DTl investment

LI RS

Cash invested in DTl

Leoan to DT! holdings $ (94,000
Operating loans to Digital Teleport, Inc. (47,000)
Purchase of additional ownership in DTl (39,885)
Cash used for DT investment $(180,855)
Consolidated KCP&L Other Opemi?ing;@_ ctivities
2002 2001 2000
Cash flows affected by changes in: (thousands)
Receivables $ (7,659) $ (43,604) $ (42,565)
Fuel inventories 1,339 (1,444) 1,787
Materials and supplies (104) (4,294) (113)
Accounts payable (35,411) (14,878) 66,765
Accrued taxes and current income taxes 49,560 (1,995) 13,430
Accrued interest 4,135 810 (2,865)
W olif Creek refueling outage accrual (4,687) 11,089 (5,168)
Pension and postretirement benefit obligations 3,774 {22,577) (12,653)
Other 8,257 41,771 4,593
Total other operating activities $ 19,204 $ (35,322) $ 23,213

Cash paid during the period:
Interest
Income taxes

75,754 $§ 82,867 $ 76,395
11,330 $ 21,470 $ 80,445

@8 &+
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As described in Note 1, KCP&L distributed, as a dividend, its ownership in KLT Inc. and GPP to Great
Plains Energy on October 1, 2001. The effect of this transaction on KCP&L's consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2001, is summarized in the table that follows.

Effect of dividend to Great Plains Energy: October 1, 2001

Assels {thousands)
Cash $ 19,115
Equity securities 283
Receivables 101,539
Nonutility property and investment 529,121
Goodwill 75,534
Other assets 8,542
Total assets $734,134
Liabilities and Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income
Notes payable $ 3,077
Accounts payable 67,853
Accrued taxes (1,050)
Accrued interest 1,878
Deferred income taxes (23,868)
Deferred telecommunications revenue 45,585
Cther liabilities and deferred credits 54,340
Long-term debt 329,788
Accumulated other comprehensive income (13,455)
Total liabilities and accumulated other
comprehensive income 464,158
Equity dividend of KLT Inc. and GPP to Great Plains Energy $2€9,976

During the first quarter of 2001, KLT Telecom increased its equity ownership in DT! to a majority
ownership and HSS increased its equity ownership in RSAE to a majority ownership. The effect of
these transactions is summarized in the tables that follow. The initial consolidation of DTl (February 8,
2001) and RSAE (January 1, 2001) are exciuded from both Great Plains Energy and KCP&L's
consolidated statement of cash fiows for the year December 31, 2001. See Note 19 for information
concerning of DTI's bankruptcy filings.
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DTl RSAE

(thousands)
Cash peaid to obtain majority ownership $ (39,855) $ (560)
Subsidiary cash 4,557 1,053
Purchase of DTland RSAE, netof cashreceived ~ $ (35298) § 493
Initial consolidation of subsidiaries:
Assets
Cash $ 4,557 $ 1,053
Receivables 1,012 4,078
Other nonutility property and investmenis 363,825 6,267
Goodwill 62,974 24,496
Other assets 5,143 3,919
Eiiminate equity investment (67,680) (7,200)
Total assets $ 369,851 $ 32,613
Liabilities
Notes payable $ 5,300 $ 10,057
Accounts payable 31,299 6,219
Accrued taxes 2,414 24
Deferred income taxes 7,437 -
Other liabilities and deferred credits 48,531 13,418
Loan from KLT Telecom © 94,000 -
Long-term debt 182,870 2,895
Total liabilities $ 369,851 $ 32,613

@ KLT Telecom provnded a $24 million loan to DTI forthe com pletlon of the tender offer of 50.4
percent of DTI's Senior Discount Notes prior to increasing its DT! investment to a m ajority ownership.

Sales of KLT Gas properties
KLT Gas sold producing natural gas properties during 2000. The transactions are summarized in the
tabie below.

T —

2000

(thousands)

Cash proceeds $ 125,858
Preferred stock redeemed @ 100,000
Total cash proceeds 225,958
Equity securities 10,000
Receivable 1,243
Total proceeds 237,201
Cost basis in property sold (87,785)
Accounts payable © (23,168)
Other assets and liabilities ® (15,670)
Gain on sale before income tax 110,578
Income tax (42,608)
Gain on sale, net of income tax $ 67, 872

@ The preferred stock received in September 2000 was redeemed in December 2000.
® Includes $7.9 million of incentive compensation.
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3. RECEIVABLES

The Company’s accounts receivables are comprised of the following:

December 31

2002 2001
(thousands)

Customer accounts receivable sold to

Receivables Company $ 19,168 $ 25,723
KCP&L other receivables 51,002 36,788

Consolidated KCP&L receivables 70,170 62,511
Creat Plains Energy other receivables 130,802 89,603

Great Plains Energy receivables $ 200,972 $ 152,114

KCP&L has entered into a revolving agreement, which expires in October 2003, to sell all of its right,
title and interest in the majority of its customer accounts receivable to Receivables Company, which in
turn sells most of the receivables to outside investors. KCP&L expects the agreement to be renewed
annually. Accounts receivable sold under this revolving agreement totaled $89.2 million at December
31, 2002, and $95.7 miliion at December 31, 2001. These sales included unbilled receivables of $27.2
million and $28.9 million at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. As a result of the sales to
outside investors, Receivables Company received $70 million in cash, which was forwarded to KCP&L
as consideration for its sale. The agreement is structured as a true sale under which the creditors of
Receivabies Company are entitied to be satisfied out of the assets of Receivables Company prior to
any vaiue being returned to KCP&L or its creditors.

KCP&L sells its receivables at a fixed price based upon the expected cost of funds and charge-offs.
These costs comprise KCP&L'’s lcss on the sale of accounts receivable. KCP&L services the
receivables and receives an annual servicing fee of 0.25% of the outstanding principal amount of the
receivables sold and retains any late fees charged to customers.

Information regarding KCP&L'’s sale of accounts receivable is reflected in the foillowing table.

For the years ended December 31 2002 2001 2000
(thousands)
Gross proceeds on sale of
accounts receivable $957,222 $049,045 $972,436
Collections 974,669 952,122 942,612
Loss on sale of accounts receivable 4,558 8,778 13,032
Late fees 2,572 3,045 2,474

KCP&L other receivables at December 31, 2002 and 2001, consist primarily of receivables from
partners in jointly-owned electric utility plants, wholesale sales receivables and accounts receivable
held by RSAE and Worry Free. Great Plains Energy other receivables at December 31, 2002 and
2001, are primarily the accounts receivable held by Strategic Energy including unbiiled revenues held
by Strategic Energy of $57.3 miliion and $48.5 million December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.
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&. REGULATORY MATTERS

Regulatory Assets and Liabilities

As discussed in Note 1, KCP&L is subject to the provisions of SFAS No. 71. Accordingly, KCP&L has
recorded assets and liabilities on its balance sheet resulting from the effects of the ratemaking process,
which would not be recorded under GAAP for non-regulated entities. Regulatory assets represent
incurred costs that have been deferred because they are probable of future recovery in customer rates.
Reguiatory liabilities generally represent probable future reductions in revenue or refunds to customers.
KCP&L's continued ability to meet the criteria for application of SFAS No. 71 may be affected in the
future by competitive forces and restructuring in the eleciric industry. In the event that SFAS No. 71 no
longer applied to ali, or a separable portion, of KCP&L'’s operations, the related regulatory assets and
liabiiities would be written off unless an appropriate regulatory recovery mechanism is provided.

Amortization

ending December 31 December 31
period 2002 2001
Regulatory Assets {millions)
Taxes recoverable through future rates $ 100.0 $ 108.0
Coal contract termination costs 2003 1.6 6.4
Decommission and decontaminate federal
uranium enrichment facilities 2007 3.3 3.9
Loss on reaquired debt 2023 4.7 5.1
January 2002 incremental ice storm costs 2007 18.6 -
Other ® 2006 0.7 1.0
Total Regulatory Assets $ 128.8 $ 124.4
Regulatory Liabilities
Taxes recoverable through future rates $ (100.0) $ (108.0)
Emission allowances ® (3.6) (3.5)
Total Regulatory Liabilities $ (103.6) $ (111.5)

@ $05 million earns a refurn on investmentin the rate making process.
® Consistent with the MPSC order establishing regulatory treatment, no amortization is being recorded.

Retail Rate Malters

At the end of January 2002, a severe ice storm occurred throughout large portions of the Midwest,
including the greater Kansas City metropolitan area. At its peak, the storm caused over 300,000
customer outages throughout the KCP&L territory. Costs related to the January ice storm were
approximately $51.3 million of which $14.7 million were capital expenditures and therefore recorded to
utility plant. KCP&L expensed $16.5 million for the Kansas jurisdictional portion of the storm costs and
deferred as a regulatory asset $20.1 miliion of the storm costs applicable to Missouri.

In the secend quarter of 2002, the KCC approved the stipulation and agreement that KCP&L had
reached with the KCC staff and the Citizens Utility Ratepayers Board with regard to treatment of the
Kansas portion of the ice storm costs. Under this stipulation and agreement, KCP&L received a rate
moratorium until 2008 in exchange for KCP&L's agreement to not seek recovery of the $16.5 million
expense for the Kansas jurisdictional portion of the storm costs and to reduce rates by $12 - $13 million
in 2003. Additionally, KCP&L agreed to determine depreciation expense of Wolf Creek using a 60 year
life instead of a 40 year life effective January 2003, which resulis in a reduction of expense by
approximately $8 million in 2003. KCP&L wiil record a regulatory asset for the reduction in depreciation
expense. KCP&L also agreed to file a rate case by May 15, 2006. In December 2002, the KCC
approved tariffs impiementing the stipulation and agreement, which resulted in a reduction of $12.4
million in annual Kansas retail revenues, effective January 1, 2003.
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Effective August 2002, the MPSC approved KCP&L'’s application for an accounting authority order
related to the Missouri jurisdictional porticn of the storm costs. The order allowed KCP&L to defer and
amortize $20.1 million, representing the Missouri impact of the storm, through January 2007. The
amortization began in Septemibber 2002 and totaled $1.5 million in 2002. KCP&L will amortize
approximately $4.6 million annually for the remainder of the amortization pericd. In October 2002, the
Staff of the MPSC concluded its review of the Missouri jurisdictional earnings for KCP&L and
determined that the current rate levels do not warrant action.

5. EQUITY METHOD INVESTMENTS
See Note 19 for information regarding 2001 activity in KLT Telecom's investment in DTI.

Sale of KLT Investments [l ’s Ownership of Downtown Hotel Group
On May 31, 2001, KLT Investments Il sold its 25% ownership of Kansas City Downtown Hotel Group,
L.L.C. for total proceeds of $3.8 million resulting in a $1.4 million after tax gain.

Sale of KLT Gas Properties
On June 28, 2001, KLT Gas sold its 50% ownership in Patrick KLT Gas, LLC for total preceeds of
$42.3 million resulting in a $12.0 million after tax gain.

After the acquisition of majority cwnership in RSAE (see Note 2 for additional information) and the sales
of the equity method investments discussed above, the Company has no remaining equity method
investments other than affordable housing limited partnerships held by KLT Investments.

6. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE PROPERTY

SFAS No. 142, "Geodwill and Other Intangible Assels”

The Company adopted SFAS No. 142 on January 1, 2002. Under the new standard, gocdwili is no
longer amortized, but rather is tested for impairment upon adeption and at least annually thereafter.
The annual test may be performed anytime during the year, but must be performed at the same time
each year.

Strategic Energy's transition and 2002 annua! impairment tests have been completed and there was no
impairment of the Strategic Energy goodwill. Goodwill reported on Great Plains Energy’s consolidated
balance sheets associated with the Company’s ownership in Strategic Energy totaled $26.1 million and
$14.1 million at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. The 2002 increase in goodwill was a result
of IEC’s acquisition of a 5.8% indirect ownership interest in Strategic Energy.

After the transition impairment test of RSAE goodwill, the Company recorded a $3.0 million write-down
of goodwill. The goodwiil write-down is reflected as a cumulative effect to January 1, 2002, of a change
in accounting principle. RSAE completed its first annual impairment test in September 2002. The test
indicated nc impairment. Goodwill reported on Great Plains Energy’s and consclidated KCP&L's
balance sheets associated with HSS' ownership interest in RSAE totaled $20.0 million and $23.0
million at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.
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The foliowing table adjusts the reported 2001 and 2000 Great Plains Energy and consolidated KCP&L
income statement information to add back goodwili amortization as if the non-amortization provisions of
SFAS No. 142 had been applied during all periods presented.

ﬁ}r@aﬁ Plains Energy

2001 2000 @
(thousands except per share amounts)

Income (loss) before extraordinary item and cumulative

effect, as reported $ (40,043) $ 128,631
Add back: Goodwill amortization 3,713 412
Income (loss) before extraordinary item and cumulative effect (36,330) 129,043
Early extinguishment of debt, net of income taxes 15,872 -
Cumulative effect to January 1, 2000, of changes in

accounting principles, net of income taxes - 30,073
Net income (loss), as adjusted {20,458) 159,116
Preferred stock dividend reguirements 1,847 1,64¢
Earnings (loss) available for common stock, as adjusted $ (22,105) $ 157,467

Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per common share before

extraordinary item and cumulative effect, as reported $ (0.68) $ 2.05
Add back: Goodwill amortization 0.06 0.01
Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per common share before

extraordinary item and cumulative effect, as adjusted (0.62) 2.06
Early extinguishment of debt 0.26 -

Cumulative effect to January 1, 2000, of changes in
accounting principles - 0.49
Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per common share, as adjusted $ (0.36) $ ___2.55

@ Great Plains Energy and consolidated KCP&L are the same for 2000.

Consolidated KCP&L
T 2001
(thousands)
Income before extraordinary item, as reported $ 103,819
Add back: Goodwill amortization 2,879
Income before extraordinary item 106,698
Early extinguishment of debt, net of income taxes 15,872
Net income, as adjusted 122,570
Preferred stock dividend requirements 1,088
Earnings available for common stock, as adjusted $ 121,472

Other Intangible Assets

KCP&L electric utility plant on the consolidated baiance sheets included intangible computer software
of $41.6 million, net of accumulated amortization of $42.4 million, in 2002 and $48.2 million, net of
accumulated amortization of $33.0 million, in 2001.

Other intangible assets on the consolidated KCP&L balance sheets include intangible computer
software, the Worry Free service mark, and an RSAE trademark, logo and non-compete agreement
totaling $4.7 million, net of accumulated amortization of $0.4 million, in 2002 and $0.6 miltion, net of
accumulated amortization of $0.2 million, in 2001.

KLT Gas’ gas property and investments on the consolidated balance sheets included intangible drilling
costs of $20.8 million in 2002 and $17.7 miliion in 2001.
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Other intangible assets on the Great Plains Energy consolidated balance sheets include other
intangible computer software of $1.8 million, net of accumulated amortization of $0.6 million, in 2002
and $1.2 million, net of accumulated amortization of $0.1 million, in 2001.

7. PENSION PLANS AND OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Changes In Pension Accounting Principles
Effective January 1, 2000, KCP&L changed its methods of amortizing unrecognized net gains and
losses and determination of expected return related {0 its accounting for pension expense. These
changes were made to reflect more timely in pension expense the gains and losses incurred by the
pension funds. KCP&L'’s current method is to recognize gains and losses by amortizing over a five-
year pericd the rolling five-year average of unamortized gains and losses and determine the expected
return by multiplying the assumed iong-term rate of return times the fair value of plan assets.
Accounting principles required KCP&L to record the cumulative effect of these changes by increasing
2000 earnings by $30.1 million or $0.49 per share. Adoption of the new methods of accounting for
pensions has led and will continue to lead to greater fluctuations in pension expense in the future.

Pension Plans and Other Employee Benefits
KCP&L has defined benefit pension plans for its employees, including officers and Welf Creek
employees. Benefits under these plans reflect the employees’ compensation, years of service and age
at retirement. KCP&L satisfies the minimum funding requirements under the ERISA.

There were ne significant amendments to the plans in 2002. During 2001, the plans, other than those
at Wolf Creek, were amended resuiting in an increase to the benefit cbligation of $6.8 million. The
increase was due primarily to an amendment to the non-management plan, which improved benefits to
employees with at least thirty years of service who elected lump sum distributions.

During 2000, the plans were amended, except for those of Wolf Creek, which resulted in a $42.0 million
increase in the benefit obligation. The amendments changed the mertality tables used and added
enhanced benefit options. The enhancements include improved early retirement benefits for
employees who retire after their age plus their years of service equals at least 85. The options also
include lump sum distributions. During 2001, the plans experienced lump sum distributions related to
these enhancements in excess of $33.0 million.

Primarily as a result of the significant decline in the market vaiue of plan assets, in 2002 the Company
had a minimum pension liability of $63.1 million offset by an intangible asset of $198.2 million and OCI of
$43.9 million ($26.8 miltion net of tax). In 2001, the Company’s minimum pension liability was $20.0
million offset by an intangible asset of $18.3 millicn and OCI of $1.7 million ($1.0 million net of tax).
Because these adjustments were non-cash, their effect has been exciuded from the Consolidated
Statements of Cash Flows.

In agdition to providing pension benefits, KCP&L provides certain postretirement health care and life
insurance benefits for substantially all retired employees. KCP&L accrues the cost of postretirement
health care and life insurance benefits during an employee's years of service and recovers these
accruals through rates. KCP&L funds the portion of net periodic postretirement benefit costs that are
tax deductible. Beginning in 2001, management employees who resign with 25 years or more of
service are eligible for life insurance benefits. ‘

The projected benefit obligation, accumulated benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets for

pension plans with accumulated benefit obligations in excess of plan assets were $219.1 million,
$185.8 million, and $121.8 million, respectively, as of December 31, 2002 and $207.7 million, $176.6
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million, and $160.7 million, respectively, as of December 31, 2001. Net periodic benefit costs refiect
total pian benefit costs prior to the effects of capitalization and sharing with joint-owners of power
plants. The pension benefits table below provides information relating to the funded status of all
defined benefit pension plans on an aggregate basis.

’ Pension Benefits Other Benefits
2002 2001 2002 2001
Change in projected benefit obligation (thousands)
PBO at beginning of year $ 421,126 $411,960 $ 41,224 $ 36,858
Service cost 13,360 11,152 757 729
Interest cost 30,272 31,905 2,951 2,918
Contribution by participants - - 785 458
Amendments - 6,790 247 860
Actuarial loss 29,174 22,853 7,181 3,185
Benefits paid (42,482) (28,807) (3,715) (3,432)
Benefits paid by KCP&L (934) (1,381) (494) (454)
Settlements 284 (33,348) - -
PBO at end of year @ $ 450,800 $421,126 $ 48,936  § 41,223

Change in plan asssts
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year $ 395,015 $ 564,947 $ 09,459 $ 8,096

Actual return on plan assets (29,983) (112,397) 321 601
Contributions by employer and participants 1,619 1,017 5,032 4,193
Benefits paid (42,482) {28,807) (3,758) (3,432)
Settlements - (29,745) - -
Fair value of plan assets at end of year $ 324,169 $ 395,015 $ 11,054 $ 9,458
Prepaid (accrued) beneflt cost
Funded status $(126,631) & (26,111) $(37,882) $(31,765)
Unrecognized actuarial loss 157,438 58,686 11,847 4,649
Unrecognized prior service cost 44,769 47,296 1,344 1,282
Unrecognized transition obligation 512 (230) 11,744 12,819
Net prepaid (accrued) benefit cost $ 76,088 $ 79,641 $(12,847) $(12,915)
Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheetls
Prepaid benefit cost $ 85,845 $ 88,337 $ - $ -
Accrued benefit cost (2,857) (8,698) (12,847) (12,215)
Minimum pension liability adjustment (63,142) (19,994) .- -
Intangible asset 19,233 18,303 - -
Accumulated other comprehensive income 43,909 1,681 - -
Net amount recognized in balance sheets $ 76,088 $ 79,641 $(12,847) $(12,915)

@ Based on weighted-average discount rates of 6.75%, 7.25%, and 8.0% in 2002, 2001 and 2000,
respectively; and increases in future salary levels of4.1% in 2002, 2001 and 2000.
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Pension Benefits Other Benefits
2002 2001 2000 2002 2001 2000

Components of net periodic benefit cost " (thousands)

Service cost $ 13,360 $ 11,152 $ 9,384 $ 757 § 729 $ 547

Interest cost 30,272 31,805 26,538 2,951 2,918 2,543

Expected return on plan assets (34,144) (48,967) (39,571) (503) (403) (361)

Amortization of prior senice cost 4,313 3,884 488 194 78 78

Recognized net actuarial loss {gain) (7,237) (11,333) (5,213) 100 32 2

Transition obligation (742)  (2,023) (2,072) 1,174 1,174 1,174

Net settlements 284 (1,738) - - - -

Net periodic benefit cost $ 6,106 $(17,120) $(i1,146) $4,673 $4,528 $3,083
'Long-term rates of return on pension asseis of 9.0% t0 9.25% were used. -

Actuarial assumptions include an increase in the annual health care cost trend rate for the year 2002
and thereafter of 9.8%. The health care plan requires retirees to share in the cost when premiums
exceed a certain amount. A 1% point change in the assumed health care cost irend rate would have
the following effects as of December 31, 2002:

Increase Decrease

(thousands)
Effect on total sernvice and interest component  $ 297 $ (216)
Effect on postretirement benefit obligation § 2926 $(2,222)

ul

Employee Savings Plans

Great Plains Energy has defined contribution savings plans that cover substantially all employees. The
Cempany matches employee contributions, subject to limits. The annuai cost of the plans was $3.2
million in 2002 and $2.9 million for both 2001 and 2000.

Strategic Energy Phantom Stock Plan

Strategic Energy has a phantom stock plan that provides incentive in the form of deferred
compensation based upon the award of performance units, the value of which is related to the increase
in financial growth and performance of Strategic Energy. Strategic Energy’s annual cost for the plan
was $5.9 million in 2002 and $3.4 million in 2001. There was no expense recognized in 2000.

Stock Options

The Company has one equity compensation plan, which has been approved by its shareholders. The
equity compensation plan is a long-term incentive plan that permits the grant of restricted stock, stock
options, limited stock appreciation rights and performance shares to officers and other employees of
the Company and its subsidiaries. The maximum number of shares of Great Plains Energy common
stock that may be issued under the plan is 3.0 million with 2.1 miilion shares remaining available for
future issuance.

Stock Options Granted 1992 — 71996

The exercise price of stock options granted equaled the market price of the Company’s common stock
on the grant date. One-half of all options granted vested one year after the grant date, the other haif
vested two years after the grant date. An amount equal to the quarterly dividends paid cn Great Plains
Energy’s common stock shares (dividend equivalents) accrues on the opticns for the benefit of option
holders. The option holders are entitled to stock for their accumulated dividend equivalents only if the
options are exercised when the market price is above the exercise price. At December 31, 2002, the
market price of Great Plains Energy’s common stock was $22.88, which exceeded the grant price for
one of the three years that options granted were still cutstanding. Unexercised options expire ten years
after the grant date.

page 76




Great Plains Energy foliows APB Opinion 25, "Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees" and related
interpretations in accounting for these options. Great Plains Energy recognizes annuai expense equal
to accumulated and reinvested dividends plus the impact of the change in stock price since the grant
date. Great Plains Energy expensed $0.1 million in 2002, $(0.3) million in 2001 and $1.1 million in
2000.

For options outstanding at December 31, 2002, grant prices range from $20.6250 to $26.1875 and the
weighted-average remaining contractual life is 2.9 vears.

Stock Options Granted 2007 and 2002

Stock options were granted under the plan at the fair market value of the shares on the grant date. The
options vest three years after the grant date and expire in ten years if not exercised. Exercise prices
range from $24.80 to $25.98 and the remaining contractual life is 8.7 years. Great Plains Energy
follows APB Opinion 25 to account for these options. No compensation cost is recognized because the
option exercise price is equal to the market price of the underlying stock on the date of grant.

All stock option activity for the last three years is summarized below:

2002 2001 2000
Shares Price” Shares Price” Shares Price*
Outstanding at January 1 250,375 $§ 25.14 88,500 $ 23.57 89,875 $ 23.57
Granted 181,000 24.90 193,000 25.56 - -
Exercised (34,375) 23.00 (31,125)  23.27 (1,375)  23.88
Qutstanding at December 31 397,000 $ 25.21 250,375 $ 25.14 88,500 $ 23.57
Exercisable as of December 31 23,000 $§ 24.81 57,3756 $§ 23.73 88,500 $ 23.57

* weightéd—;\ferage price

Pro forma information regarding net income and earnings per share is required by SFAS No. 123,
“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation”. Under this statement, compensation cost is measured at
the grant date based on the {air vaiue of the award and is recognized over the vesting period. The pro
forma amounts have been determined as if the Company had accounted for its stock options under
SFAS No. 123. The stock opticns granted in 1892 ~ 1996 were all 100% vested prior to the year 2000
and therefore would have no compensation cost in the years 2000 — 2002 under SFAS No. 123. The
fair value for the stock options granted in 2001 and 2002 was estimated at the date of grant using the
Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following weighted-average assumptions:

2002 2001
Risk-free interest rate 457 % 553 %
Dividend vield 7.68 % 6.37 %
Stock volatility 27.503 % 25.879 %
Expected option life (in years) 10 10
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The option valuation model requires the input of highly subjective assumptions, primarily stock price
volatility, changes in which can materially affect the fair value estimate. Compensation cost would have
been $0.4 million and $0.2 miilion in 2002 and 2001, respectively under SFAS No. 123. The pro forma
information is as follows:

2002 2001 2000
(thousands except per share amounts)
Net income (loss), as reported $126,188 $ (24,171) $ 158,704
Pro forma net income (loss) as if fair
value method were applied $125,990 $ (24,479) $ 159,366
Basic and diluted earnings {loss)
per common share, as reported $ 1.99 $ (0.42) $ 254
Basic and diluted earnings (loss)
per common share, pro forma $ 1.99 $ (0.42) $ 255

=

The effects of applying SFAS No. 123 in this pro forma disclosure may not be representative of effects
on net income for future years due to the timing and number of options granted under the equity
compensaticn plan.

Performance Shares

In 2001, 144,500 performance shares were granted. The issuance of performance shares is contingent
upen achievement, over a four-year period, of company and individual performance goals.
Performance shares have an intrinsic value equal to the market price of a share on the date of grant.
Pursuant to APB Opinion 25, expense is accrued for performance shares over the period services are
performed if attainment of the performance goals appears probable. No compensation expense was
recorded in 2002 or 2001.

8. INCOME TAXES

Income tax expense consisted of the following:

Great Plains Energy 2002 2001 2000
Current income taxes: (thousands)
Federal $ 27,505 $ (32,628) $ 76,076
State 9,369 1,304 10,928
Total 36,874 (31,324) 87,004
Deferred income taxes:
Federal 13,915 9,785 (9,848)
State 1,679 (943) (469)
Total 15,594 8,842 {10,315)
Investment tax credit amortization (4,183) (4,289) (4,296)
Total income {ax expense 48,285 (26,771) 72,323
Less: Deferred taxes on the cumulative effect
of changes in accounting principies - - 19,227
Deferred taxes on early extinguishment
of debt - 9,143 -
Total $ 48,285 $ (35,914) $ 53,166
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Conegolidated KCP&L 2002 2001 2000

Current income taxes: (thousands)
Federal $ 47,027 $ 17,601 $ 76,076
State 8,668 4,109 10,928
Total 55,695 21,710 87,004
Deferred income taxes:
Federal 9,391 18,968 (S,846)
State 1,964 3,042 (469)
Total 11,355 22,010 (10,315)
Investment tax credit amortization (4,183) (4,289) (4,296)
Total income tax expense 62,867 39,431 72,393

Less: Deferred taxes on the cumulative effect

of changes in accounting principles - - 19,227
Deferred taxes on early extinguishment

of debt - 9,143 -

Total $ 62,867 $ 30,288 $ 53,166

The effective income tax rates differed from the statutory federal rates mainly due to the foilowing:

Great Plains Energy 2002 2001 2000
Federal statutory income tax rate 35.0 %  (35.0) % 35.0 %
Differences between book and tax

depreciation not normalized 1.8 1.4 0.7
Proposed IRS Adjustment (see Note 10) - - 4.6
Amortization of investment tax credits (2.4) (8.4) (1.9)
Federal income tax credits (11.3) (41.8) (8.2)
State income taxes 4.1 0.5 2.9
Valuation allowance - 31.0 -
Other 0.4 (0.5) (0.8)

Effective income tax rate 277 % (52.6) % 31.3 %
Consolidated KCP&L 2002 2001 2000
Federal statutory income tax rate 35.0 % 35.0 % 35.0 %
Differences between book and tax

depreciation not normalized 2.1 0.5 0.7
Proposed IRS Adjustment (see Note 10) - - 4.6
Amortization of investment tax credits (2.8) (2.7) (1.9)
Federal income tax credits ® - (10.8) (.2)
State income taxes 4.4 2.9 2.9
Other 0.7 (0.3) (0.8)

Effective income tax rate 39.6 % 24.8 % 31.3 %

@ KLT Investments and KLT Gas generated the federal income tax credits in 2001 and 2000.
Great Plains Energy and consolidated KCP&L are the same prior to the October 1, 2001,
formation of the holding company.
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The tax effects of major temporary differences resuiting in deferred tax assets and liabilities in the
balance sheets are as follows:

Great Plains Energy Consolidated KCP&L
December 31 2002 2001 2002 2001
(thousands)

Plant related $ 521,979 $ 533,521 $ 521,979 $ 533,521
Recoverable taxes 39,000 42,000 39,000 42,000
Pension and postretirement benefits 6,194 21,474 6,194 21,474
Tax credit carryforwards (21,150) (19,183) - -
Gas properties related 6,230 (9,535) - -
Nuclear fuel outage (3,233) (5,061) (3,233) (5,061)
AMT credit (4,093) (4,258) - -
Other 29,230 14,906 48,794 33,704

Net deferred tax liability before

valuation allowance 574,157 573,864 612,734 625,638

Valuation allowance (See Note 19) 15,779 15,779 - -

Net deferred tax liability $ 589,236 $ 589,643 $ 612,734 $ 625,638

The net deferred income tax liability consisted of the following:

Creat Plains Energy Consolidated KCP&L
December 31 2002 2001 2002 2001
(thousands)
Gross deferred income tax assets $ (129,741) $ (125,413) $ (91,000) $ (73,640)
Gross deferred income tax liabilities 719,677 715,056 703,734 699,278
Net deferred income tax liability $ 589,936 $ 582,643 $ 612,734 $ 625,638

9. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND RELATIONSHIPS

In January of 1997, KLT Energy Services acquired approximately 71% of Custom Energy from ELC. In
February of 1999, Custom Energy acquired 100% of the cutstanding ownership interest in Strategic
Energy from SE Holdings, L.L.C. (SE Holdings) in exchange for 25% of the ownership interest in
Custom Energy. In a December 1999 reorganization, Custom Energy changed its name to Custom
Energy Holdings and transferred all of its operations to a new wholly owned subsidiary called Custom
Energy. After the reorganization, Custom Energy Holdings’ assets consisted of its ownership interests
in Strategic Energy and Custom Energy. Through a series of transactions, KLT Energy Services had
increased its indirect ownership position in Strategic Energy to approximately 83% as of December 31,
2001. In a July 2002 transaction, Custom Energy was distributed to KLT Energy Services and a third-
pary investor, resulting in Strategic Energy being the sole subsidiary of Custom Energy Holdings. ELC
continued to cwn a 6% indirect ownership interest in Strategic Energy, while SE Holdings owns an 11%
interest in Strategic Energy. Richard Zomnir, President and Chief Executive Officer of Sirategic
Energy, holds a 56% interest in SE Holdings. Gregory Orman, former Executive Vice President —
Corporate Development and Strategic Planning cf Great Plains Energy and fermer President and CEO
of KLT Inc., held a 87% interest in ELC. The other 33% interest in ELC was held by an employee of
CGreat Plains Energy. Both perscons were officers and sharehclders of ELC before they became officers
or employees of the Company.

On November 5, 2002, the Board of Directors of the Company approved the merger of ELC into IEC, a
recently created wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. The merger was consummated on

November 7, 2002, with [EC being the surviving company after the merger. In exchange for their entire
ownership interest in ELC, the two shareholders received $15.1 million in Great Plains Energy common
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stock and notes issued by Great Piains Energy and IEC. Great Plains Energy issued 387,596 common
shares of Great Plains Energy common stock, valued at $8.0 million, which was distributed to the ELC
shareholders in proportion to their interests in that company. Great Plains Energy also issued a
promissory ncte to Mr. Crman in the principal amount of approximately $4.7 million, and [EC issued a
promissory note ¢ the other shareholder of ELC in the principal amount of approximately $2.4 million.
Both notes were paid in January 2003.

As a result of the merger, Great Plains Energy now holds an 89% indirect ownership interest in
Strategic Energy through KLT Energy Services and IEC. Certain employees of Strategic Energy,
including Mr. Zomnir, indirectly hold through SE Holdings the remaining ownership interest in Strategic
Energy.

Custom Energy Holdings' business and affairs are controlled and managed by a three member
Management Commitiee composed of one representative designated by KLT Energy Services, one
representative designated by IEC and one representative designated by SE Holdings. Certain actions
(including amendment of Custom Energy Holdings' operating agreement, approval of actions in
contravention of the operating agreement, approval of a dissoiution of Custom Energy Holdings,
additional capital contributions and assumption of recourse indebtedness) require the unanimous
consent of ali the members of Custom Energy Holdings. Cenrtain other actions (inciuding mergers with
Custom Energy Holdings, acquisitions by Custom Energy Holdings, assumption of non-recourse
indebtedness, sales of substantial assets, approval of distributions, filing of registration statements,
partition of assets, admission of new members and transfers of interests in Custom Energy Holdings)
can be approved by the Management Committee, but to the extent they affect the rights, obiigations,
assets or business of Strategic Energy, the approval of the Strategic Energy Management Committee is
aiso required.

Strategic Energy's business and affairs are controlled and managed exclusively by a four member
Management Commitiee composed of two representatives designated by KLT Energy Services, one
representative designated by {EC and one representative designated by SE Holdings. Certain actions
(including amendment of Strategic Energy's operating agreement, approval of actions in contravention
of the operating agreement, approval of transactions between Strategic Energy and affiliates of its
members, approvai of a dissolution of Strategic Energy, and assumption of recourse indebtedness)
require the unanimous consent of all the Management Commitiee representatives of Strategic Energy.

On September 30, 2000, KLT Energy Services exercised an option to purchase 1,411,765 shares of

- Bracknell common stock owned by Reardon. KLT Energy Services received 1,138,789 common
shares of Bracknell at $4.25 per share and a warrant to purchase the remaining 274,976 shares at an
exercise price of $4.25 per share. In May 2001, KLT Energy Services exercised the warrant for
274,976 shares at $4.25 per share and sold 278,800 shares of Bracknell common stock in June 2001
at $4.48 per share. In November 2001, Bracknell common stock ceased trading at a last sale price of
$0.13 per share and KLT Energy Services wrote off its investment in Bracknell. Bracknell common
stock is no longer traded. Gregory Orman, former Executive Vice President — Corporate Development
and Strategic Planning of Great Plains Energy and former President and CEO of KLT Inc., owned 55%
of the membership interests of Reardon and approximately 1% of Bracknell.

10. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Nuclear Liability and Insurance
Liability Insurance

The Price-Anderson Act currently limits the combined public liability of nuclear reactor owners to $9.4
billion for claims that could arise from a single nuclear incident. The owners of Wolf Creek, a nuclear
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generating station, (the Owners) carry the maximum available commercial insurance of $C.2 billion.
Secondary Financial Protection, an assessment plan mandated by the NRC, provides insurance for the
$9.2 billion balance.

Under Secondary Financial Protection, if there were a catastrophic nuclear incident involving any of the
nation's licensed reaciors, ihe Owners wouid be subject to a maximum refrospectlive assessment per
incident of up to $88 million ($41 million, KCP&L's 47% share). The Owners are jointly and severally
liable for these charges, payable at a rate not to exceed $10 miilicn ($5 million, KCP&L's 47% share)
per incident per year, excluding applicable premium taxes. The assessment, most recently revised in
1988, is subject to an inflation adjustment based on the Consumer Price Index and renewal of the
Price-Anderson Act by Congress.

Property, Decontamination, Premature Decommissioning and Extra Expense Insurance

The Owners also carry $2.8 billion ($1.3 billion, KCP&L's 47% share) of property damage,
decontamination and premature decommissioning insurance for loss resuiting from damage to the Wolf
Creek facilities. NEIL provides this insurance.

In the event of an accident, insurance proceeds must first be used for reactor stabilization and NRC
mandated site decontamination. KCP&L's share of any remaining proceeds can be used for further
decontamination, property damage restoration and premature decommissioning costs. Premature
decommissioning coverage applies only if an accident at Wolf Creek exceeds $500 million in property
damage and decontamination expenses, and only after trust funds have been exhausted.

The Owners also carry additional insurance from NEIL to cover costs of replacement power and other
extra expenses incurred in the event of a prolonged outage resulting from accidental property camage
at Wolf Creek.

Under all NEIL policies, KCP&L is subject to retrospective assessments if NEIL losses, for each policy
year, exceed the accumulated funds available to the insurer under that policy. The estimated maximum
amount of retrospective assessments to KCP&L under the current pclicies could total about $24.5
million.

In the event of a catastrophic loss at Wolf Creek, the insurance coverage may ncot be adequate tc cover
propernty damage and exira expenses incurred. Uninsured losses, to the extent not recovered through
rates, would be assumed by KCP&L and could have a maierial, adverse effect on its financial condition,
results of operations and cash flows.

Low-Level Waste

The Low-Level Radioactive Waste Policy Amendments Act of 1985 mandated that the various states,
individually or through interstate compacts, develop alternative low-level radioactive waste disposal
facilities. The states of Kansas, Nebraska, Arkansas, Louisiana and Oklahoma formed the Central
Interstate Low-Level Radioactive Waste Compact and selected a site in northern Nebraska to locate a
disposal facility. WCNOC and the owners of the other five nuclear units in the Compact provided most
of the pre-construction financing for this project. KCP&L's net investment in the Compact was $7.4
miilion at December 31, 2002 and 2001.

Significant opposition to the project has been raised by Nebraska officials and residents in the area of
the proposed facility and attempts have been made through litigation and proposed legisiation in
Nebraska tc slow down or stop development of the facility. On December 18, 1928, the application for
a license to construct this project was denied. After the license denial, WCNOC and cthers filed a
lawsuit in federal court contending Nebraska officials acted in bad faith while handiing the license
application. In September 2002, the U.S. Disfrict Court Judge presiding cver the Central interstate




Compact Commission's federal "bad faith” lawsuit against the State of Nebraska issued his decision in
the case finding clear evidence that the State of Nebraska acted in bad faith in processing the license
application for a low-level radioactive waste disposal site in Nebraska and rendered a judgment in the
amount of $151.4 million against the staie. The state has appealed this decision to the 8" Circuit, U.S.
Court of Appeals. Based on the favorable outcome of this trial, in KCP&L'’s opinion, there is a greater
possibility of reversing the state’s license denial once the decision in this case is final.

In May 1998, the Nebraska legislature passed a biil withdrawing Nebraska from the Compact. In
August 1999, the Nebraska Governor gave official notice of the withdrawal {o the other member states.
Withdrawal will not be effective for five years and will not, of itself, nullify the site license proceeding.

Environmental Matters

KCP&L's operations are subject to regulation by federal, state and local authorities with regard to air
and other environmental matters. The generation and transmission of electricity produces and requires
disposal of certain hazardous products which are subject to these laws and regulations. In addition to
imposing continuing compliance obligations, these laws and regulations authorize the imposition of
substantial penalties for noncompliance, including fines, injunctive relief and other sanctions. Failure to
comply with these laws and regulations could have a material adverse effect on KCP&L.

KCP&L coperates in an environmentally responsible manner and seeks to use current technology o
avoid and treat contamination. KCP&L reguiarly conducts environmental audits designed to ensure
compliance with governmental regulations and to detect contamination. Governmental bodies,
however, may impose additional or more restrictive environmental regulations that could require
substantial changes to operations or facilities at a significant cost. At December 31, 2002 and 2001,
KCP&L had $1.9 million accrued for environmental remediation expenses covering water monitoring at
one site and unasserted claims for remediation at a second site. The amounts accrued were
established on an undiscounted basis and KCP&L does not currently have an estimated time frame
over which the accrued amounts may be paid out. Expenditures to comply with environmental laws
and regulations have not been material in amount during the periods presented and are not expected 0
be material in the upcoming years with the exception of the issues discussed below.

Certain Alr Toxic Substances

In July 2000, the National Research Council published its findings of a study under the Clean Air Act
which stated that power plants that burn fossil fuels, particularly coal, generate the greatest amount of
mercury emissions. As a result, in December 2000, the EPA announced it would propose MACT
requirements by December 2003 to reduce mercury emissions and issue final rules by December 2004.
Until the rules are proposed, KCP&L cannot predict the likelihood or compliance costs of such
regulations.

Alr Particulate Watter

In July 1997, the EPA revised ozone and particulate matier air quality standards creating a new eight-
hour ozone standard and establishing a new standard for particulate matter less than 2.5 microns (PM-
2.5) in diameter. These standards were challenged in the U. S. Court of Appeals for the District of
Columbia (Appeals Court) that decided against the EPA. Upon further appeal, the U. S. Supreme
Court reviewed the standards and remanded the case back to the Appeals Court for further review,
including a review of whether the standards were arbitrary and capricious. On March 28, 2002, the
Appeals Court issued its decision on challenges to the 8-hour ozone and PM-2.5 national ambient air
quality standards (NAAQS). This decision denies all state, industry and environmental groups petitions
for review and thus upheld as valid the EPA’s new 8-hour ozcne and PM-2.5 NAAQS. [n so doing, the
court held that the EPA acted consistently with the Clean Air Act in setting the standards at the levels it
chose and the EPA’s actions were reasonable and not arbitrary and capricious, and cited the deference
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given the EPA’s decision-making authority. The court stated that the extensive records established for
each rule supported the EPA’s actions in both rulemakings.

This decision by the Appeals Court removed the last major hurdie to the EPA's implementation of
stricter ambient air quality standards for ozone and fine particles. The EPA has not yet issued
regulations incorporating the new standards. Until new regulations are issued, KCP&L is unable to
estimate the impact of the new standards. However, the impact on KCP&L and all other utilities that
use fossil fuels could be substantial. In addition, the EPA is conducting a three-year study of fine
particulate ambient air levels. Until this testing and review pericd has been completed, KCP&L cannot
determine additional compliance costs, if any, associated with the new particulate reguiations.

Nitrogen Oxide

The EPA announced in 1998 regulations implementing reductions in NO, emissions. These regulations
initially called for 22 states, including Missouri, to submit plans for controlling NO, emissions. The
regulations require a significant reduction in NO, emissions from 1980 levels at KCP&L's Misscuri coal-
fired plants by the year 2003.

In December 1988, KCP&L and several cther western Missouri utilities filed suit against the EPA over
the inclusion of western Missouri in the NO, reduction program based on the 1-hour NOy standard. Cn
March 3, 2000, a three-judge panel of the District of Columbia Circuit of the U.S. Court of Appeals sent
the NO, rules related to Missouri back to the EPA, stating the EPA failed to prove that fossil plants in
the western part of Missouri significantly contribute to czone formation in downwind states. On March
5, 2001, the U.S. Supreme Court denied certiorari, making the decision of the Court of Appeals final.

in February 2002, the EPA issued proposed Phase Il NO, SIP Cali regulation which specifically
excludes the fossil plants in the western part of Missouri from the NO, SIP Call. To date, the EPA has
net issued its final Phase Il NO, SIP Call regulation.

If fossil plants in western Missouri are required t¢ implement NO, reductions, KCP&L would need to
incur significant capital costs, purchase power or purchase NO, emission allowances. Preliminary
analysis of the regulations indicates that selective catalytic reduction technology, as well as other
changes, may be required for some of the KCP&L units. Currently, KCP&L estimates that additional
capital expenditures to comply with these regulations could range from $40 million to $60 million.
Cperations and maintenance expenses couid aliso increase by more than $2.5 million per year. KCP&L
continues to refine these preliminary estimates and explore alternatives. The ultimate cost of these
regulations, if any, could be significantly different from the amounts estimated above.

Carbon Dioxide

At a December 1897 meeting in Kyoto, Japan, delegates from 167 nations, including the United States,
agreed to a treaty (Kyoto Protocol) that would require a seven percent reduction in United States
carbon dicxide (CO,) emissions below 1920 levels. Althcugh the United States agreed to the Kycto
Protocol, the treaty has not been sent to Congress for ratification. The financial impact on KCP&L of
future requirements in the reduction of CO, emissions cannct be determined until specific regulations
are adopted.

Clean Alr Legislation

Congress has debated numerous bills that would make significant changes to the current federal Clean
Ajr Act including potential establishment of nationwide limits on power plant emissions for severail
specific pollutants. These bilis have the potential for a significant financial impact on KCP&L through
the installation of new pollution control equipment to achieve compliance with the new nationwide limits.
The financial consequences to KCP&L cannot be determined until the final legisiation is passed.
KCP&L will continue to menitor the progress of these bills.
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Proposed Water Use Regulations

In February 2002, the EPA issued proposed rules related to certain existing power producing facilities
that employ cooling water intake structures that withdraw 50 million gallons or more per day and use
25% or more of that water for cooling purposes. The proposed rules establish national minimum
performance reguirements designed to minimize adverse environmental impact. The EPA must take
final action by August 2003. KCP&L will continue to monitor the progress of this rulemaking. The
impact of these proposed rules has not yet been quantified, however, KCP&L'’s generating stations
would be affected.

Nuclear Fuel Commitments

As of December 31, 2002, KCP&L's 47% share of Wolf Creek nuclear fuel commitments included $21.5
million for enrichment through 2006, $57.5 million for fabrication through 2025 and $5.7 million for
uranium and conversion through 2003.

Coal Contracts

KCP&L's share of coal purchased under existing contracts was $49.5 million in 2002, $44.6 million in
2001, and $31.1 million in 2000. Under these coal contracts, KCP&L'’s remaining share of purchase
commitments totals $105.1 million. Obligaticns for the years 2003 through 2005 based on estimated
prices for those years total $46.0 million, $28.5 million and $30.6 million, respectively. The remainder
of KCP&L’s coal requirements will be fulfilled through additional contracts or spot market purchases.

Purchased Capacity Commitments

KCP&L purchases capacity from other utilities and nonutility suppliers. Purchasing capacity provides
the option to purchase energy if needed or when market prices are favorable. This can be a cost-
effective alternative to new construction. KCP&L capacity purchases totaled $18.5 million, $17.7 million
and $25.4 million in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. As of December 31, 2002, contracts to
purchase capacity totaied $90.5 million through 2016. These commitments average $19 million in 2003
and 2004, $10 million in 2005 and $4 million in 2008 and 2007. Capacity sales contracts to supply
municipalities in the years 2003 through 2007 average $12 million per year. For the next five years, net
capacity coniracts average under 1% of KCP&L's estimated 2003 total available generating capacity.

Strategic Energy Purchased Power Energy Commitments

Strategic Energy has entered into agreements to purchase electricity at various fixed prices to meet
estimated supply requirements. Commitments at December 31, 2002, under these agreements total
$1,092.3 million through 2010. Commitments for the years 2003 through 2007 total $500.4 million,
$299.5 million, $222.1 million, $50.1 million, and $8.6 million, respectively. See Note 17 for further
discussion.

Leases

Great Plains Energy’s iease expense, excluding DTI, was about $27.4 million, $30.6 million and $27.9
million during 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. The remaining rental commitments under leases
total $266.7 million ending in 2028. Obligations for the years 2003 through 2007 average $30.4 million
per vear. These amounts exclude possible termination payments under the synthetic lease
arrangement discussed beiow.

Consolidated KCP&L Leases

Consolidated KCP&L's lease expense, excluding DTI, was $25.7 million, $28.6 million and $27.3 million
during 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. The remaining rental commitments under leases iotal
$263.4 million ending in 2028. Obligations for the years 2003 through 2007 average $29.8 million per
year. These amounts exclude possible termination payments under the synthetic lease arrangement
discussed below.
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KCP&L has a transmission line lease with another utility through September 2025 whereby, with the
FERC's approval, the rental payments can be increased by the lessor. [f this occurs and KCP&L is
able to secure an aiternative transmission path, KCP&L can cancel the lease. Commitments under this
iease total $1.8 million per year and $43.0 million over the remaining life of the iease, assuming it is not
canceled.

KCP&L's expense for other leases, including railcars, computer equipment, buildings, transmission line
and other items, approximated $25 million annually for the last three years. The remaining rental
commitments under these leases total $1886.6 million through 2028. Obligations for the years 2003
through 2007 average $21 miliion per year. Capital leases are not material and are included in these
amounts.

As the managing partner of three jointly-owned generating units, KCP&L has entered into leases for
railcars to serve those units. KCP&L has reflected the entire lease commitment in the abcove amounts
although about $1.9 million per year ($24.4 million total) will be reimbursed by the other owners.

In 2001, KCP&L entered into a synthetic lease arrangement with a Trust (Lessor) {o finance the
purchase, installation, assembly and construction of five combustion turbines and related property and
equipment that will add 385 MWs of peaking capacity (Project). The Trust is a special-purpose entity
and has an aggregate financing commitment from third-party equity and debt participants of $176
million, amended during the third quarter 2002 to adjust the amount financed from the previously
estimated $200 million to reflect a reduction in the estimated cost for the purchase, installation,
assembly and construction of the five combustion turbines. In accordance with SFAS No. 13
"Accounting for Leases,” and related EITF issues (inciuding EITF Issue No. 90-15, "impact of Non-
substantive Lessors, Residual Value Guarantees, and Other Provisions in Leasing Transactions" and
EITF issue No. 97-10, "The Effect of Lessee [nvolvement in Asset Construction"), the Project and
related lease obligations are not included in KCP&L's consolidated balance sheet. The Lessor has
appointed KCP&L as supervisory agent responsible fcr completing construction of the Project by no
later than June 2004. The initial lease term is approximately three and one quarter years, beginning at
the date of construction completion, which is expecied to be June 2003. At the end of the lease term
(October 2008), KCP&L may choose to sell the Project for the Lessor, guaranteeing to the Lessor a
residual vaiue for the Project in an amount which may be up to 83.21% of the project cost. If KCP&L
does not elect the sale option, KCP&L must either extend the lease, if it can obtain the consent of the
Lessor, or purchase the Project for the outstanding project cost. KCP&L also has contingent
obligations to the Lessor upon an event of a default during both the construction pericd and iease
period. Upon a defauit in the construction pericd, KCP&L's maximum obligation to the Lessor equals (i)
in the circumstances of bankruptcy, fraud, illegal acts, misapplication of funds and willful misconduct,
100% of then-incurred project costs, and (ii) in all other circumstances, an amount which may be up to
89.9% of then-incurred project costs that are capitalizable in accordance with GAAP. At December 31,
2002, cumulative project costs were approximately $127.4 million. Upon a default during the lease
period, KCP&L's maximum obligation to the Lessor equals 100% of project costs. KCP&L's rentai
obligation, which reflects interest payments only, is expected to be approximately $28.2 miilion in the
aggregate.

In January 2003, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 46. The Interpretation clarifies the application of
ARB No. 51, “Consolidated Financial Statements”, to certain entities in which equity investors do not
have the characteristics of a controliing financial interest or do not have sufficient equity at risk for the
entity to finance its activities without additional subordinated financial support from other parties
(Variable Interest Entities). The Trust, acting as Lessor in the synthetic lease arrangement discussed
above, is considered a Variable Interest Entity under the Interpretation. Because KCP&L has variable
interests in the Trust, including among other things, a residual value guarantee provided to the Lessor,
KCP&L is the primary beneficiary of the Trust. Accordingly, KCP&L will be required to consolidate the




Trust at July 1, 2003. Great Plains Energy's and consolidated KCP&L's utility plant and long-term debt
will increase $176 million upon consolidation of the Trust.

Other Consolidated KCP&L Lezses

RSAE has entered into capital leases for vehicles, office equipment and software. Lease expense was
about $1 million per year in 2002 and 2001. Obligations average about $2 million per year for the years
2003 and 2004, $1 million in 2005 and $0.5 million in 2006 and 2007.

Other Great Plains Energy Leases

Great Plains Energy’s other subsidiaries have entered operating leases for buiidings, compressors,
communications equipment and other items. Lease expense was about $1.7 miilion in 2002 and about
$1 million per year during 2001 and 2000. Obligations average about $1 million per year for the years
2003 and 2004 and $0.5 miliion per year for the years 2005 through 2007.

Put Optlion Held by Minority Interests in Strategic Energy

As of November 7, 2002, Great Plains Energy indirectly owns 89% of Strategic Energy. SE Holdings
has a put option to sell all or part of its 11% interest in Strategic Energy to Custom Energy Holdings at
any time within the 80 days following January 31, 2004, under certain circumstances, at fair market
value. Fair market value would be determined by the mutuat agreement of the parties, or if an
agreement cannot be reached, by third party appraisal.

internal Revenue Service Seltlement — Corporate-Owned Life Insurance

During 2000, KCP&L recorded a $12.7 million charge for the federal and states income tax impact of
the proposed disallowance of interest deductions on COLI loans and assessed interest on the
disallowance for tax years 1994 to 1998. In November 2002, KCP&L accepted a settlement offer
related to COLI from the IRS. The offer allows 20% of the interest originally deducted and taxes only
20% of the gain on surrender of the COLI policies. KCP&L surrendered the policies in February 2003.
Acceptance of the offer had an immaterial impact on earnings. KCP&L will make cash payments to the
IRS in 2003 of approximately $11.2 million to satisfy the liability. KCP&L paid $1.5 million to the IRS in
2001 related to the disallowance of the COLI deduction.

11. GUARANTEES

In the normal course of business, Great Plains Energy and certain of its subsidiaries enter into various
agreements providing financial or performance assurance to third parties on behalf of certain
subsidiaries. Such agreements include, for exampie, guarantees, stand-by letters of credit and surety
bonds. These agreements are entered into primarily to suppon or enhance the creditworthiness
otherwise atiributed to a subsidiary on a stand-alone basis, thereby facilitating the extension of
sufficient credit to accomplish the subsidiaries’ intended business purposes.

As prescribed in FASB Interpretation No. 45, the Company will begin recording a liability for the fair
value of the obligation it has undertaken for guarantees issued after December 31, 2002. The liability
reccgnition requirements of FASB Interpretation No. 45 are to be applied on a prospective basis to
guarantees issued or modified after December 31, 2002, while the disclosure requirements are to be
applied to all guarantees. The interpretation does not encompass guarantees of the Company’s own
future performance. KCP&L believes it will record an immaterial amount for the fair value of guarantees
expected to be issued in 2003 for the residual value of vehicles and heavy equipment under an
operating lease.
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The following table reflects Great Plains Energy’s and consolicated KCP&L's maximum potential
amount of future payments that could be required under guarantees and describes those guarantees:

—

Maximum potential
amount of future
payments under

Guarantor guarantee Nature of Guarantee
(millions)
KCP&L $ 12.8 Guaranteed energy savings under agreements with several

customers that expire over the next 8 years. In most cases, a
subcontractor would indemnify KCP&L for any payments made
by KCP&L under these guarantees.

KCP&L 8.1 Guarantees for residual value of vehicles and heavy equipment
under an operating lease. Guaranteed residual values average
approximately $0.7 million per year through 2012.

Total consolidaied KCP&L 20.9

KLT Inc. 0.9 KLT Inc. issued a letter of credit related to the sale of demand
side management credits by Custom Energy, L.L.C. which
renews annually and has 5 years remaining.

KLT Energy Senices 3.0 Custom Energy, L.L.C. has indemnified construction performance
bonds totaling $9.7 million, which are secured by KLT Energy
Senvices' $3.0 million ownership interest in Custom Energy, L.L.C.
These bonds are expected to expire in 2003.

Total Great Plains Energy $ 24.8

KCP&L has also entered into a synthetic lease arrangement with a Trust (Lessor). At the end of the
lease term (October 2008), KCP&L may choose to sell the project for the Lessor, guaranteeing to the
Lessor a residual value for the Preject in an amount which may be up to 83.21% of the project cost. As
a result of the new consolidation requirements of FASB Interpretation No. 46, the synthetic lease
arrangement will be consolidated in the third quarter of 2003. See Ncte 10 for additicnal information
regarding KCP&L'’s synthetic lease arrangement.

12. ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATIONS

During 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 143. SFAS No. 143 provides accounting requirements for the
recognition and measurement of liabilities associated with the retirement of tangible long-lived assets.
Under the standard, these liabilities are recognized at fair value as incurred and capitalized as part of
the cost of the related long-lived asset. Accretion of the liabilities due to the passage of time is
recorded as an operating expense. Effective January 1, 2003, the Company adopted the provisicns of
SFAS No. 143.

The adoption of SFAS No. 143 required KCP&L te recognize an estimated liability for its 47% share of
the estimated cost to decommission Wolf Creek. The liability to decommission Wcif Creek was
incurred when the plant was placed in service in 1985. The estimated liability is based on a third party
nuclear decommissicning study conducted in 2002, that is updated every three years for filing with the
MPCS and the KCC. To calcuiate the retirement obligation, KCP&L used a credit-adjusted risk free
discount rate of 6.42%. This rate is based on the rate KCP&L could issue 3C-vear bonds, adjusted
downward to reflect the portion of the anticipated costs in current year dollars that have been funded to
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date through the tax-qualified trust fund. The cumulative impact of prior decommissioning accruals
recorded consistent with rate orders from its regulatory commissions has been reversed and a new
regulatory contra-asset for such amounts has been established. Amounts collected through these rate
orders have been deposited in a legally restricted external trust fund, the fair market value of which was
$63.3 million at December 31, 2002.

KCP&L alsc must recognize, where possible to estimate, the future costs to settle other legal liabilities
including the removal of water intake structures on rivers, cappingffilling of piping at levees following
steam power plant closures and capping/closure of ash landfills. Estimates for these liabilities are
based on internal engineering estimates of third party costs to remove the assets in satisfaction of legal
obligaticns and have been discounted using credit adjusted risk free rates ranging from 5.25% to 7.50%
depending on the anticipated seftlement cate.

KLT Gas has estimated liabilities for gas weli piugging and abandonment, facility removal and surface
restoration. These estimates are based upon internal estimates of third party costs to satisfy the legal
obligations and have been discounted using credit adjusted risk free rates ranging from 6.00% to
7.25%, depending upon the anticipated settlement date.

Revisions to the estimated liabilities of KCP&L and KLT Gas could occur due to changes in the
dgecommissioning or other cost estimates, extension of the nuclear operating license or changes in
federal or state regulatory requirements.

in conjunction with the adoption of SFAS No.143 in January 2003, KCP&L recorded an asset retirement
obligation of $92.2 million and increased property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation, by
$18.3 million. KCP&L is a regulated utility subject to the provisions of SFAS No. 71. As a result, the
$80.9 million cumulative effect of the adoption of SFAS No. 143 was recorded as a regulatory asset
and therefore, had no impact on net income.

As a result of its adoption of SFAS No. 143, KLT Gas recorded an asset retirement obligation of $1.3
million, increased property and equipment by $1.0 million and increased operating expense by $0.3
million. KLT Gas did not reflect the $0.2 miliion ($0.3 million of operating expense reduced by $0.1
million of income tax) as a cumulative effect due to its immateriality.

If the provisions of SFAS No. 143 had been applied to the consolidated balance sheets presented,
Consclidated KCP&L's fiability for asset retirement obligations would have been $22.2 million and $93.1
million at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Great Plains Energy’s liability for asset
retirement obligations would have aiso included the KLT Gas liabilities of $1.3 million and $1.1 miilion at
December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

KCP&L has legal asset retirement obligations for certain other assets where it is not possible to
estimate the time period when the obligations will be settled. Consequently, the retirement obligations
cannot be measured at this time. For transmission easements obtained by condemnation, KCP&L
must remove its transmission iines if the line is de-energized. 1t is extremely difficult to obtain siting for
new transmission lines. Consequently, KCP&L does not anticipate de-energizing any of its existing
lines. KCP&L also operates, under state permits, ash iandfills at several of its power plants. While the
life of the ash landfill at one plant can be estimated and is included in the estimated liabilities above, the
future life of ash landfilis at other permitted landfills cannot be estimated. KCP&L can continue to
maintain permits for these landfills after the adjacent piant is closed.
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13. SEGMENT AND RELATED INFORMATION

Great Plains Energy

Great Plains Energy has three reportable segments based on its method of internal reporting, which
generally segregates the reportable segments based on products and services, management
responsibility and regulation. During 2002, the Company’s management revised its corporate business
strategy focusing on the following three reportable business segments: (1) KCP&L, an integrated
electric utility, generates, transmits and distributes electricity; (2) Strategic Energy delivers electricity to
retail customers under long-term contracts for whelesale power purchased under long-term contracts,
operating in several retail choice electricity markets; and (3) KLT Gas expiores for, develops, and
produces unconventional natural gas resources, inclucing coalbed methane properties. “Other”
includes the operations of HSS and GPP, all KLT Inc. operations other than Strategic Energy and KLT
Gas, unallocated corporate charges and intercompany eliminations. The summary of significant
accounting policies applies to all of the reportable segments. Segment performance is evaluated based
on net income.

The tables below reflect summarized financial infermation concerning Great Plains Energy's reportable
segments. Prior year information has been restated to conform to the current presentation.

Strategic Great Plains
2002 KCP&L Energy KLT Gas Other Energy
(millions)
Operating revenues $1,009.9 $ 789.5 $ 1.1 $ 6i.4 $1,861.9
Depreciation and depletion (144.3) {0.9) (2.5) (3.9) (151.6)
Loss from equity investments - - - (1.2) (1.2)
Interest charges (80.3) (0.3) (0.3) (8.2) (89.1)
income taxes (63.4) (25.2) 10.3 30.0 (48.3)
Cumuiative effect of a change
in accounting principle - - - (3.0) (3.0)
Net income {loss) 102.9 29.7 - (6.4) 126.2
Strategic Great Plains
2001 KCP&L Energy KLT Gas Other Energy
(millions)
Operating revenues $ ©67.5 $ 411.9 $ 0.3 $ 822 $1,461.9
Depreciation and depletion (136.3) (0.3) (1.8) (20.4) (158.8)
Income (loss) from equity investments - - 1.0 (1.4) (0.4)
Interest charges (78.1) (0.5) - (24.7) (103.3)
Income taxes (51.6) (15.2) 0.1 102.6 35.9
Early extinguishment of debt - - - 15.9 15.9
Net income (loss) 98.0 21.8 14.3 (158.3) (24.2)
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Strategic Great Plains

2000 KCP&L Energy KLT Gas Other Energy
(millions)

Operating revenues $ 952.0 $ 129.6 $ 305 $ 3.8 $1,115.9

Depreciation and depletion (124.3) (0.4) (6.0) (1.7) (132.4)

Income (loss) from equity investments - - 3.6 (23.0) (18.4)

Interest charges (62.8) (0.2) (3.5) (2.2) (75.7)

Income taxes (52.9) (3.6) (36.3) 39.6 (53.2)

Cumulative effect of a change

in accounting principle 30.1 - - - 30.1

Net income (loss) 88.1 5.9 79.2 (14.5) 158.7

Strategic KLT Great Plains
KCP&L Energy Gas Other Energy

2002 (millions)

Assets $ 3,084.5 $ 226.0 $ 498 $ 146.4 $ 3,506.7

Capital and investment expenditures @ 135.5 2.1 8.7 4.6 150.9

2001

Assets® $ 3,089.4 $ 1291 $ 576 $ 188.3 $ 3,4684.4

Capital and investment expenditures @ 265.8 1.5 25.0 82.0 374.3

2000

Assets $2,980.9 $ 477 $ 236 ¢ 257 $ 3,293.¢

Net equity method investments ©) - - 21.7 8.6 30.3

Capital and investment expenditures 406.1 0.2 45.2 30.5 482.0

@ Capital and investment expenditures reflect annual amounts for the periods presented.

® KCP&L assets do not match the KCP&L assets in the consolidated KCP&L segment table due to the
reclassification of accrued taxes to currentincome taxes during consolidation with Great Plains Energy.

9 Excluding affordable housing limited partnerships.

Consolidated KCP&L

On Cctober 1, 2001, consolidated KCP&L distributed, as a dividend, its ownership interest in KLT Inc.
and GPP to Great Plains Energy. As a result, those companies are direct subsidiaries of Great Plains
Energy and have not been included in consolidated KCP&L's results of operations and financial
position since October 1, 2001.

The table below reflects summarized financial information for the years 2002 and 2001 concerning
consolidated KCP&L's reportable segment. For the year 2000, consolidated KCP&L's segment
information is identical to the Great Plains Energy segment information presented above. Other
includes the operations of HSS and immaterial intercompany eliminations.

Consolidated

2002 KCP&L Other KCP&L
{millions)

Operating revenues $1,009.9 $ 61.4 $1,071.3
Depreciation and depletion (144.3) (3.6) (147.9)
Interest charges (80.3) (1.7) (82.0)
Income taxes (63.4) 0.5 (62.9)
Cumulative effect of a change

in accounting principle - (3.0) (3.0)
Net income (loss) 102.9 (7.2) 95.7
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Subsidiaries

transferred to Consolidated
2001 KCP&L Other Great Plains Energy KCP&L
{millions)

Operating revenues $967.5 $ 66.2 $317.2 $1,350.9
Depreciation and depletion (136.3) (2.4) (14.3) (153.0)
Loss from equity investmenis - (0.1) (0.4) (0.5)
interest charges (78.1) (1.7) (17.8) (87.8)
Income taxes {51.6) 0.3 20.8 {30.4)
Early extinguishment of debt - - 15.9 15.9
Net income (loss) 88.0 (5.6) 27.3 119.7

Subsidiaries

transferred to Consolidated

KCP&L Other Great Plains Energy KCP&L

2002 (millions)
Assets $ 3,084.5 $ 547 $ - $ 3,189.2
Capital and investment expenditures @ 135.5 1.2 - 136.7
2001
Assets $ 3,0925 $ 53.1 $ - $ 3,145.8
Capital and investment expenditures @ 265.8 1.1 85.9 352.8

@ Capital and investment expenditures reflect annual amounts for the periods presented.

14. SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS AND SHORT-TERM BANK LINES OF CREDIT

During the first quarter of 2002, Great Plains Energy terminated its $129 million bridge revolving credit
facility. Great Plains Energy replaced the bridge facility with a $205 million syndicated 364-day,
revolving credit facility with a group of banks. During June 2002, Great Plains Energy entered into a
separate $20 million 364-day revoiving credit facility with a bank. At December 31, 2002, Great Plains
Energy had $14.0 million of outstanding borrowings, at an average interest rate of 2.27%, under the
facilities. At December 31, 2001, Great Plains Energy had $124 miilion of outstanding borrowings
under its $129 million bridge revolving credit facility with a weighted-average interest rate of 3.0%.

Both facilities require a ratio of Great Plains Energy indebtedness to consolidated capitalization of not
more than 0.65 to 1.0. At December 31, 2002, the total indebtedness to consolidated capitalization
calculated in accordance with the covenant was 0.55 to 1.0; therefore, the Company was in compliance
with the covenant. A default by Great Plains Energy or any of its significant subsidiaries on more than
$25 million of indebtedness is also a default under both facilities. Both facilities alsc require the ratio of
consolidated EBITDA for the four quarters ending on such date to consolidated interest charges be less
than 2.0 to 1.0. At December 31, 2002, the ratio was 5.99; therefore, the Company was in compliance
with the covenant.

Strategic Energy has a $30 million shori-term bank credit agreement that expires in March 2003. At
December 31, 2002 and 2001, Strategic Energy had no short-term borrowings cutstanding.

KCP&L's short-term borrowings consist of funds borrowed from banks or through the sale of
commercial paper as needed. As of December 31, 2002, there was no commercial paper outstanding.
The weighted-average interest rate on the $62.0 million of commercial paper outstanding as of
December 31, 2001, was 3.2%. Under minimal fee arrangements, KCP&L's short-term bank lines of
credit totaled $126.0 million as of December 31, 2002, and $196.0 million with $134.0 million unused as
of December 31, 2001.
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A default by KCP&L on other indebtedness is a default under these bank line agreements. Under the
terms of certain bank line agreements, KCP&L is required to maintain a consolidated indebtedness to
consolidated capitalization ratio not greater than 0.65 to 1.0 at all times. At December 31, 2002, the
consoiidated indebtedness to consolidated capitalization ratio calculated in accordance with the
covenant was 0.60 to 1.0; therefore, the Company was in compliance with the covenant.

RSAE has a $25.0 million short-term bank credit agreement that increased from $22.0 million at
December 31, 2001. Great Plains Energy has entered into a support agreement with RSAE and the
lender that ensures adequate capital io operate RSAE. At December 31, 2002, RSAE had $23.6
million of outstanding borrowings under the agreement with a weighted-average interest rate of 4.75%.
At December 31, 2001, RSAE had $20.4 million of outstanding borrowings under the agreement with a
weighted-average interest rate of 6.8%.

15. LONG-TERWM DEBT AND EIRR BONDS CLASSIFIED AS CURRENT LIABILITIES

KCP&L General Mortgage Bonds

KCP&L has issued mortgage bonds under the General Mortgage Indenture and Deed of Trust dated
December 1, 1986, as supplemented. The Indenture creates a mortgage lien on substantially all utility
plant. Mortgage bonds secure $337.8 million and $364.8 million of medium-term notes and EIRR
bonds (see discussion below) at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

In December 2002, KCP&L secured bond insurance policies as a credit enhancement to its Series
1993A and 1993B EIRR bonds, which aggregate $79.5 million. The insurance agreement between
KCP&L and XL Capital Assurance Inc. (XLCA), the issuer of the bond insurance policies, provides for
reimbursement by KCP&L for any amounts that XLCA pays under the bond insurance policies. The
insurance agreement contains a covenant that the indebtedness to total capitalization ratio of KCP&L
and its consolidated subsidiaries will not be greater than 0.68 to 1.0. KCP&L is also restricted from
issuing additional bonds under its General Mortgage indenture if, after giving effect to such additional
bonds, the proportion of secured debt to total indebtedness would be more than 75%, or more than
50% if the long term rating for such bonds by Standard & Poor’s or Moody’s investors Service would be
at or below A- or A3, respectively. In the event of a default under the insurance agreement, XLCA may
take any available legal or equitable action against KCP&L, including seeking specific performance of
the covenants.

The EIRR bonds are subject to mandatory redemption within 120 to 180 days of a final determination
by the RS or a court that, as a result of KCP&L failing to perform any of its agreements relating to the
bonds, interest paid or payable on the bonds is or was includable in the bondholders’ gross income for
Federal tax purposes.

KCP&L EIRR Bonds Classified as Current Liabilities

A $31.0 million variable-rate, secured EIRR bond with a final maturity in 2017 is remarketed on a
weekly basis, with full liquidity support provided by a 364-day credit facility with one bank. This facility
requires KCP&L to represent, as both a condition to renewal and prior to receiving any funding under
the facility, that no MAC has occurred. KCP&L's available liquidity under this credit line is not impacted
by a decline in credit ratings unless the downgrade occurs in the context of a merger, consolidation, or
sale.

The 4.50% interest rate on KCP&L’s $50.0 million Series C unsecured EIRR bonds expires on August
31, 2003. If the bonds could not be remarketed, KCP&L would be obligated to either purchase or retire
the bonds. The $50.0 million Series C unsecured EIRR bonds and the $31.0 million discussed
previously totaled $81.0 million and were classified as current liabiiities at December 31, 2002.
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In 2001, KCP&L remarketed three series of unsecured EIRR bonds at a fixed rate of 3.25% through
August 29, 2002: its Series A and B, $108.5 million due 2015, and Series D, $40.0 million due 2017.
The Series A, B and D EIRR bonds and the $31.0 million discussed previously totaled $177.5 million
and were classified as current liabilities at December 31, 2001. In 2002, KCP&L remarketed its Series
A, B and D EIRR bonds totaling $146.5 million to a five-year fixed interest rate of 4.75% ending October
1, 2007.

KCP&L Unsecured Notes

At December 31, 2002, KCP&L had a total of $200.8 million of unsecured EIRR bonds outstanding.
The Series C EIRR bonds, $50.0 million due 2017, have a fixed rate of 4.50% through August 31, 20083,
and are classified as current liabilities at December 31, 2002. In 2002, KCP&L remarketed its 1998
Series A, B and D EIRR bonds totaling $146.5 million to a five-year fixed interest rate of 4.75% ending
October 1, 2007. The final maturity for Series A and B bonds is 2015 and the final maturity for Series D
is 2017. At the end of the fixed interest rate period, the bonds will be subject to mandatory redemption
or purchase and KCP&L anticipates remarketing the bonds at which time a new interest rate period and
mode will be determined. KCP&L has classified the 1988 Series A, B and D EIRR bonds as long-term
debt consistent with the five-year term of the remarketing. Under the previous one-year remarketing
term, these three series were classified as current liabilities.

Simultaneously with the remarketing, KCP&L entered into an interest rate swap for the $146.5 million
based on LIBOR to effectively create a floating interest rate obligation. The transaction is a fair value
hedge with the assumption of noc ineffectiveness under SFAS No. 133. The fair value of the swap is
recorded on KCP&L’s balance sheet as an asset with an offset to the respective debt balances and has
no impact on earnings. Future changes in the fair market value of the swap will be similarly recorded
on the balance sheet with no impact on earnings. At December 31, 2002, the fair value of the swap
was $4.3 million. See Note 17 for additicnal discussion of the interest rate swap.

KCP&L has a total of $625.0 million of cutstanding unsecured senior notes at December 31, 2002. In
2002, KCP&L issued $225.0 million of 8.0% unsecured senior notes, maturing in 2007. The proceeds
from the issuance were primarily used to refinance maturing unsecured medium-term notes.

Other Consolidated KCP&L Long-Term Debt
RSAE's long-term debt consists mainly of loans for buildings, leasehold improvements and equipment.

Ofther Great Plains Energy Long-Term Delbt

KLT Investments' affordable housing nctes are collateralized by the affordable housing investments.
Most of the notes also require the greater of 15% of the outstanding note balances or the next annual
installment to be held as cash, cash equivalents or marketable securities. The equity securities held as
collateral for these notes, included in other investments and nonutility property on the consolidated
baiance sheets, were $9.3 million at December 31, 2002 and $12.0 million at December 31, 2001.

Scheduled Maturities

Great Plains Energy's icng-term debt maturities for the years 2003 through 2007 are $134.1 million,
$60.6 million, $254.2 million, $2.6 million and $227.0 miilion, respectively. These amounts include
consclidated KCP&L's long-term debt maturities for the years 2003 through 2007, of $124.9 miilion
(including $104.0 million of medium term notes called in early 2003), $55.8 million, $250.9 millicn, $0.9
million and $226.5 million, respectively. In early 2003, KCP&L received a total of approximately $100
million as an equity contribution from Great Plains Energy, which was used to repay the $104.0 million
of medium-term notes included in current maturities at December 31, 2002.
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18. COMMON STOCK EQUITY, PREFERRED STOCK, REDEEMABLE PREFERRED STOCK AND
MANDATORILY REDEEMABLE PREFERRED SECURITIES

Common Stock Equity

in 2002, Great Plains Energy filed a registration statement for the issuance of an aggregate amount up
to $300 million of any combination of senior debt securities, subordinated debt securities, trust
preferred securities, convertible securities or common stock. During November 2002, Great Plains
Energy issued 6.9 million shares of common stock at $22 per share under this registration with $151.8
million in gross proceeds to be used for repayment of debt at Great Plains Energy and KCP&L and for
general corporate purposes. Issuance cosis of $6.1 million are reflected in Great Plains Energy’s
capital stock premium and expense line in the December 31, 2002, consolidated statement of
capitalization.

Also during November 2002, Great Piains Energy issued 0.4 miliion shares of common stock valued at
$8.0 million in conjunction with the purchase of an additiona! indirect ownership interest in Strategic
Energy. See Note 9 for additional information concerning this transaction.

As of December 31, 2002 and 2001, the Company held 152 shares and 35,216 shares, respectively, of
its common stock. The cost of these shares is included in treasury stock on the consolidated
statements of capitalization. The shares are held for future distribution upon exercise of options issued
in conjunction with the Company’s equity compensation plan.

Great Plains Energy has 3.0 million shares of common stock registered with the SEC for a Dividend
Reinvestment and Direct Stock Purchase Pian (Pian). The Plan ailows for the purchase of common
shares by reinvesting dividends or making opticnal cash payments. Great Plains Energy currently
purchases shares for the Pian on the open market.

Great Plains Energy has 8.3 million shares of common stock registered with the SEC for a defined
contribution savings plan. The Company maiches employee coniributions, subject to limits.

Under the 35 Act, Great Plains Energy and KCP&L can pay dividends only out of retained or current
earnings, unless authorized to do so by the SEC. Under stipulations with the MPSC and KCC, Great
Piains Energy and KCP&L have committed to maintain consolidated common equity of not less than
30% and 35%, respectively. In their appiication under the 35 Act to establish a registered holding
company structure, GPE and KCP&L committed to maintain a consolidated common equity
capitalization of at least 30%.

Great Plains Energy's Articies of Incorporation contain a restriction related to the payment of dividends
in the event common equity falls to 25% of total capitalization. [f preferred stock dividends are not
declared and paid when scheduled, Great Plains Energy could not declare or pay common stock
dividends or purchase any common shares. If the unpaid preferred stock dividends equal four or more
full quarteriy dividends, the preferred shareholders, voting as a single class, could eiect the smaliest
number of Directors necessary to constitute a majority of the full Board of Directors.

Under the indenture relating to KCP&L's 8.3% Junior Subordinated Deferrable Interest Debentures, due
2037 (Debentures), which are held by KCP&L Financing I, KCP&L may not deciare or pay any
dividends on any shares of its capital stock if at the time (i) there is an event of default (as defined in
the indenture), (i) KCP&L is in default with respect to its payment of any obligations under its guarantee
of preferred securities issued by KCP&L Financing [, or (iii) KCP&L has elected to defer payments of
interest on the Debentures.
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In March 2002, Great Plains Energy made a $36.0 million capital contribution to KCP&L increasing
capital stock premium and expense to $75.0 million, which is reflected in common stock in the KCP&L
consolidated statement of capitalization. [n early 2003, Great Plains Energy made an additional capital
contribution to KCP&L of approximately $700 million, which was used tc pay down long-term debi.

Preferred Stock

As of December 31, 2002, 1.6 million shares of Cumulative No Par Preferred Stock and 11 million
shares of no par Preference Stock were authorized under Great Plains Energy’s Articles of
incorporation. Great Plains Energy has the option to redeem the $39.0 million of issued Cumulative
Preferred Stock at prices approximating par or stated value.

Mandatorily Redeemable Preferred Securities

in 1897, KCP&L Financing | (Trust) issued $150,000,000 of 8.3% preferred securities. The scle asset
of the Trust is the $154,640,000 principal amount of 8.3% Junior Subordinated Deferrable Interest
Debentures, due 2037, issued by KCP&L. The terms and interest payments on these debentures
correspond to the terms and dividend payments on the preferred securities. KCP&L deducts these
payments for tax purposes. KCP&L may elect to defer interest payments on the debentures for a
period up to 20 consecutive quariers, causing dividend payments on the preferred securities to be
deferred as well. In case of a deferral, interest and dividends will continue to accrue, along with
quarterly compounding interest on the deferred amounts. KCP&L may redeem all or a portion of the
debentures at anytime but has not elected to redeem any at this time. If KCP&L redeems all or a
portion of the debentures, the Trust must redeem an equal amount of preferred securities at face value
pius accrued and unpaid distributions. The back-up undertakings in the aggregate provide a full and
unconditional guaraniee of amounts due on the preferred securities.

17. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

On January 1, 2001, the Company adopted SFAS No. 133. SFAS No. 133 requires that every
derivative instrument be recorded on the balance sheet as an asset or liability measured at its fair value
and that changes in the fair value be recognized currently in earnings unless specific hedge accounting
criteria are met.

SFAS Ne. 133 requires that as of the date of initial adoption, the difference between the fair market
value of derivative instruments recorded on the balance sheet and the previcus carrying amount of
those derivatives be reported in net income or other comprehensive income, as appropriate, as a
cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle. The adoption of SFAS No. 133 on January 1,
2001, required the Company to record a $0.2 million expense, net of $0.1 million of income tax. The
Company did not reflect this immaterial amount as a cumulative effect. This entry increased interest
expense by $0.6 million and reduced purchased power expense by $0.3 million. The Company also
recorded $17.4 million, net of $12.6 miliion of income tax, as a cumulative effect of a change in
accounting principle applicable to comprehensive income for its cash flow hedges. Cash flow hedges
are derivative instruments used to mitigate the exposure to variability in expected future cash fiows
attributable to a particular risk.

Derlvative Instruments and Hedging Activities

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of market risks including interest rates and commaodity
prices. Management has established risk management policies and strategies to reduce the potentially
adverse effects that the volatility of the markets may have on its operating results.

The Company's interest rate risk management strategy uses derivative instruments to adjust the
Company's liability portfolio to optimize the mix of fixed and floating rate debt within an established
range. The Company maintains commodity-price risk management strategies that use derivative




instruments to minimize significant, unanticipated esarnings fluctuations caused by commedity price
volatifity.

The Company'’s risk management activities, including the use of derivatives, are subject to the
management, direction and control of internal Risk Management Commitiees.

Interest Rate Risk Management
KCP&L utilizes interest rate management derivatives to adjust the Company’s liability portfolio to
optimize the mix of fixed and floating rate debt within an established range.

In 2002, KCP&L remarketed its 1998 Series A, B, and D EIRR bonds totaling $146.5 million to a 5-year
fixed interest rate of 4.75% ending October 1, 2007. Simultaneousiy with the remarketing, KCP&L
entered into an interest rate swap for the $146.5 million based on LIBOR {o effectively create a floating
interest rate obligation. The transaction is a fair value hedge with the assumption of no ineffectiveness
under SFAS No. 133. The fair value of the swap is recorded on KCP&L's balance sheet as an asset
with an offset to the respective debt balances and has no impact on earnings. Future changes in the
fair market value of the swap will be similarly recorded on the balance sheet with no impact on
earnings. At December 31, 2002, the fair value of the swap was $4.3 million.

KCP&L has two interest rate swap agreements in place to fix the interest rate on $30 miliion of floating-
rate long-term debt. These swaps do not meet the criteria to qualify for hedge accounting. The swap
agreements terminate in 2003 and effectively fix the interest at a weighted-average rate of 3.88%. The
fair market values of these agreements are recorded as current assets or liabilities and changes in the
fair market value of these instruments is recorded as interest expense in the income statement.

In 2000, KCP&L issued $200 million of unsecured, floating rate medium-term notes. Simultaneously,
KCP&L entered into interest rate cap agreements o hedge the interest rate risk on the notes. The cap
agreements were designated as cash flow hedges. The difference between the fair market value of the
cap agreements recorded on the balance sheet at initial adoption and the unamortized premium was
reported in interest expense. Both the notes and the cap agreements have matured.

Commodity Risk Management

KCP&L's risk management policy is to use derivative hedge instruments to mitigate its exposure to
market price fluctuations on a portion of its projected gas generation reguirements for retail and firm
wholesale sales. These hedging instruments are designated as cash flow hedges. The fair market
value of these instruments is recorded as current assets or current liabilities. When the gas is
purchased and to the extent the hedge is effective at mitigating the impact of a change in the purchase
price of gas, the amounts in other comprehensive income are reclassified to the consolidated income
statement. To the extent that the hedges are not effective, the ineffective portion of the changes in fair
market value are recorded directly in fuel expense.

Strategic Energy maintains a commodity-price risk management strategy that uses forward physical
energy purchases and derivative instruments to minimize significant, unanticipated earnings
fiuctuations caused by commaodity-price volatility. An option that was designated as a cash flow hedge
expired on December 31, 2001. The option aliowed Strategic Energy to purchase up to 270 MWs of
power at a fixed rate of $21 per MWh. The fair market value of this option and swap agreements
designated as cash flow hedges at January 1, 2001, was recorded as a current asset and a cumulative
effect of a change in accounting principle in comprehensive income.

As a result of supplying electricity to retail customers under fixed rate contracts, Strategic Energy’s

policy is to match customers' demand with fixed price purchases. [n certain markets where Sirategic
Energy operates, entering into forward fixed price contracts is cost prohibitive. By entering into swap
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contracts for a porticn of its forecasted purchases in these markets, the future purchase price of
electricity is effectively fixed under these swap contracts protecting Strategic Energy from price
volatility. The swap contracts limit the unfavorable effect that price increases will have on electricity
purchases. Under SFAS No. 133, the majority of the swap agreements are designated as cash flow
hedges resuiting in the difference between the market value of energy and the hedge value being
recorded as comprehensive income (loss). To the extent that the hedges are not effective, the
ineffective portion of the changes in fair market value will be recorded directly in purchased power.

At January 1, 2001, Strategic Energy alse had five swap agreements that did not qualify for hedge
accounting. The fair market value of these swaps at January 1, 2001, was recorded as an asset or
liability on the consolidated balance sheet and an adjustment to the cost of purchased power. The
change in the fair market vaiue was recorded in purchased power. All of these swaps expired in 2002.

KLT Gas' risk management policy is to use firm sales agreements or financial hedge instrumenis to
mitigate its exposure to market price fluctuations on up to 85% of its daily natural gas production.
These hedging instruments are designated as cash flow hedges. The fair market value of these
instruments at January 1, 2001, was recorded as current assets or current liabitities, as applicable, and
the cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle in comprehensive income. When the gas is
sold and to the extent the hedge is sffective at mitigating the impact of a change in the sales price of
gas, the amounts in other comprehensive income are reclassified to the consolidated income
statement. To the extent that the hedges are not effective, the ineffective portion of the changes in fair
market value are recorded directly in gas revenues. KLT Gas is currently developing gas properties;
therefore, no production was hedged in 2002.

The amounts recorded related to the cash flow hedges in OCl are summarized in the following tables:

LGreat Plains Energy activity for 2002

]

Increase
December 31  (Decrease) in December 31
2001 OCl Reclassified 2002

Assets {millions)

Other current assets $ (0.2) $ 27 $ 05 $ 3.0
Liabilities and capitalization

QOther current liabilities (12.7) 6.1 5.0 (1.8)

Accumulated OCI 12.1 (10.4) {2.6) (0.9)

Deferred income taxes 8.5 {7.2) (2.0) (0.7)

Other deferred credits 7.7) 8.8 (0.9) 0.2
Consolidated KCP&L activity for 2002
’ increase

December 31  (Decrease) in December 31
2001 OCi Reclassified 2002

Assets (millions)

Other current asseis $ (0.2) $ 0.6 $ (0.1) $ 03
Liabilities and capitalization

Cther current liabilities (0.1) 0.1 - -

Accumulated OCI 0.2 (0.4) - (0.2)

Deferred income taxes 0.1 {0.3) 0.1 {0.1)
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Great Plains Energy activity for 2001

Cumulative
Effect to Increase
January 1, (Decrease) in December 31
2001 OCli Reclassified 2001
Assets {millions)
Other current assets $ 44.5 $ (20.6) $ (24.1) $ (0.2)
Liabilities and capitalization
Other current liabilities (6.8) (20.8) 14.8 (12.7)
Accumulated OCI (17.4) 25.6 3.9 12.1
Deferred income taxes (12.7) 18.1 3.1 8.5
Other deferred credits (7.6) (2.3) 2.2 (7.7)
Consolidated KCP&L activity for 2001
, Cumulative B Transferred
Effect to Increase to Great
January 1, (Decrease) in Plains  December 31
2001 QCl Reclassified Energy 2001
Assets (millions)
Other current assets $ 44.5 $ (20.6) $ (24.1) $ - $ (0.2)
Liabilities and capitalization
Other current liabilities (6.8) (15.7) 7.4 15.0 0.1)
Accumulated OC! (17.4) 23.4 7.6 (13.4) 0.2
Deferred income taxes (12.7) 16.6 5.6 (°.4) 0.1
Other deferred credits (7.6) (3.7) 3.5 7.8 -

Reclassified to earnings

Great Plains Energ)}

Consolidated KCP&L

2002 2001 2002 2001
(millions)
Gas revenues $ (0.2) $ (8.9 $ - $ (3.7)
Fuel expense 0.1 - 0.1 -
Purchased power expense (5.4) 13.1 - 20.4
Minority interest 0.8 (2.2) - (3.5)
Income taxes 2.0 (3.1) (0.1) (5.6)
CCi $ (2.6) $ 3.9 $ - $ 7.6

18. JOINTLY-OWNED ELECTRIC UTILITY PLANTS

KCP&L's share of jointly-owned electric utility plants as of December 31, 2002, is as follows (in millions

of dollars):
Wolf Creek  LaCygne latan
Unit Units Unit
KCP&L's share 47% 50% 70%
Utility plant in senice $ 1,360 $ 324 $ 260
Estimated accumulated depreciation 584 218 170
Nuclear fuel, net 22 - -
KCP&L's accredited capacity--MWs 550 681 489

Each owner must fund its own portion of the plant's operating expenses and capital expenditures.
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KCP&L’s share of direct expenses is included in the appropriate operating expense classifications in
the Great Plains Energy and Consolidated KCP&L Statements of Income.

19. OT! HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

On December 31, 2001, a subsidiary of KLT Telecom, Holdings and its subsidiaries, Digital Teleport
and Digital Teleport of Virginia, Inc., filed separate voluntary petitions in Bankruptcy Court for the
Eastern District of Missouri for recrganization under Chapter 11 of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code which
cases have been procedurally consolidated. Holdings and its two subsidiaries are collectively cailed
“DTI". The filings enable DTI to continue o conduct its business operations while attempting to resolve
its financial obligations. DT!is a telecommunications company headquartered in St. Louis that focuses
on providing access and connectivity t¢ secondary and tertiary markets. KLT Telecom agreed {o
provide up to $5 million in DIP Loan to Digital Teleport for a term of 18 months during the bankruptcy
process if it achieves certain financial goals. If KLT Telecom provides loans under the DIP Loan
agreements, it will have priority repayment over most other Digital Teleport obligations to the extent of
such DIP loan advances. The Bankruptcy Court approved the DIP Loan on February 18, 2002, but no
advances have been made under the DIP Loan fo date.

KLT Telecom originally acquired a 47% interest in DTl in 1997. On February 8, 2001, KLT Telecom
acquired control of DTI by purchasing shares frem the majority shareholder, Richard D. Weinstein
(Weinstein), increasing its ownership to 83.6%. In connection with the February 8, 2001, Purchase
Agreement, KLT Telecom granted Weinstein a put option. The put option aliows Weinstein to seli his
remaining shares to KLT Telecom during a period beginning September 1, 2003, and ending August
31, 2005. The put option provides for an aggregate exercise price for these remaining shares equal o
their fair market value with an aggregate floor amount of $15 mitlion. The floor amount of the put option
was fully reserved during the fourth quarier of 2001, as discussed below.

Prior to the DT! bankruptcy filings, KLT Telecom's $175.2 million book value of its investment in, and
loans to, DTI included a February 1, 2001, $94 million loan to Holdings, the proceeds of which were
used by Holdings to repurchase a portion of its Senior Discount Notes, and $47 million in principal
amount of loans to Digital Teleport under various arrangements. The $47 million of loans are secured,
to the extent permitted by law or agreement, by Digital Teleport Inc.'s assets. In December 2001, KLT
Telecom converted $84 million of the $24 million loan to Holdings, plus accrued interest of
approximately $8.5 million, to an equity contribution to Holdings.

The Company obtained from lega! counsel an opinion which stated that, based upon and subject to the
analysis, limitations and qualifications set forth in the opinion, a court applying Missouri law and acting
reasonably in a properly presented and argued case would hold that the corporate veil of DTI would not
be pierced with respect to Great Plains Energy and its subsidiaries and therefore neither Great Plains
Energy nor its subsidiaries would be required to fund, beyond KLT Telecom's current equity investment
in or loans to DTI, directly, indirectly or through guarantees, any of the present, past or future liabilities,
commitments or obligations of DT, except for the DIP Loan and certain performance bonds.

In December 2002, Digital Teleport entered into an agreement to sell substantially alt of its assets
(Asset Sale) to CenturyTei Fiber Company I, LLC (Century Tel), a nominee of CenturyTel, inc. (Asset
Purchase Agreement). The Asset Sale was approved by the Bankrupicy Court on February 13, 2003,
but the Asset Purchase Agreement contains conditions to closing, which include among other items the
receipt of all necessary regulatory approvals, which must either be satisfied or waived by July 15, 2003.
The Asset Sale, if it is consummated, will produce $38 miilion of gross sale proceeds, subject to certain
closing adjustments, $3.8 miilion of which wiil be escrowed (Escrow Funds). The Escrow Funds will be
disbursed 180 days following the closing of the Asset Sale, subject to any reduction for the amount of
claims by Century Tel for breaches of representations and warranties of Digital Teleport under the
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Asset Purchase Agreement. Assuming full release of that escrow, the proceeds of the Asset Sale
together with Digital Teleport's cash on hand are expected to total approximately $47 million
(Anticipated Assets).

The Company believes that KLT Telecom has a valid and perfected security interest in virtually all of
Digital Teleport’'s assets to secure repayment of approximately $50 million (including accrued interest)
of indebtedness which would entitle KLT Telecom to receive all of the Anticipated Assets, leaving no
distribution to other creditors of Digital Teleport. The Bankruptcy Court, however, has not ruled on the
validity of KLT Telecom’s security interest in Digital Teleport’s assets, and there is a possibility that the
Bankruptcy Court would disallow this security interest or otherwise subordinate KLT Telecom’s claims
to other Digital Teleport creditors’ claims. To expedite the Digital Teleport bankrupicy case process,
including the resolution of creditors’ claims and possible claims against the Company, KLT Telecom,
KLT inc., KCP&L, Great Plains Energy, Digital Teleport and the Official Unsecured Creditors
Committee of Digital Teleport entered into a Settlement Agreement as of December 23, 2002 (Teleport
Settlement Agreement). The Teleport Settlement Agreement does not resolve any claims that Holdings
or its creditors may have against the Company; however, as discussed below, settiement discussions
have commenced in the Hoidings bankruptcy case. The Teleport Settlement Agreement, if approved
by the Bankruptcy Court, resolves all material issues and disputes among the parties to that
agreement. Under the Teleport Settlement Agreement, Digital Teleport, the Creditors Committee and
three members of the Creditors Committee holding claims against Digital Teleport will release claims
and possible causes of action against the Company and any other entity currently or previously a
member of the Great Plains Energy or KCP&L consolidated tax group, and creditors receiving
payments wiil be deemed to receive such payments in full satisfaction of their claims against Digital
Teleport. In addition, the Teleport Settlement Agreement provides for the receipt by KLT Telecom of an
assignment of claims of Digital Teleport, the Creditors Commitiee and the bankrupicy estate of Digital
Teleport against Weinstein, any officer or director of Digital Teleport, or any other person or entity.

The Teleport Setilement Agreement does not purport to resolve (i) three priority proofs of claim by the
Missouri Department of Revenue in the aggregate amount of $2,848,4486 (collectively, the MODOR
Claim); (ii) an unsecured proof of claim by Gary Douglass, the former Chief Financial Officer of DT, in
the amount of $2,055,800 (Douglass Claim); or (i) any claims by Holdings against KLT Telecom, KLT
inc., KCP&L and Great Plains Energy, or by creditors of Holdings, including the holders of $265 million
of Senior Discount Notes of Holdings as to which no proof of claim has been filed in the Digital Teleport
bankruptcy proceeding. Digital Teleport has filed objections to the Douglass Claim and MODOR Claim
asserting that each claim should be disallowed in full. The Teleport Settlement Agreement provides for
a pro rata distribution from the Anticipated Assets ranging from 82.5% to 80% of the sum of (i) the non-
priority unsecured claims of approximately $10.3 million held by Digital Teleport's trade creditors (Trade
Claims), (ii) an amended claim of $1 million by Union Electric Co. d/b/a Ameren UE (Amended Ameren
Ciaim), and (iii) the ailowed, non-priority unsecured portions, if any, of the Douglass Claim and the
MODOR Ciaim, with the exact percentage being determined by the extent to which the MODOR Claim
and the Douglass Claim are resolved in the Cigital Teleport bankrupicy proceeding and are not
disallowed. Upon approval of the Teleport Settlement Agreement by the Bankruptcy Court, after the
payment of administrative, secured and priority claims (which claims, excluding the MODOR Claim, are
estimated to total approximately $3 million) the balance of the Anticipated Assets is expected to be
distributed to KLT Telecom, subject to the resolution of the MODOR Claim and the Douglass Claim,
and subject, further, to a possible payment to the creditors of Holdings as described below.

Upon closure of the proposed Asset Sale, KLT Telecom will pay a base sum of $1.6 million to certain
executives of Digital Teleport for entering into employment agreements required as a condition
precedent o the proposed Asset Sale. This sum will be increased based upon the amount of Escrow
Funds released to Digital Teleport, but the sum is not anticipated to exceed $2.5 million.
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Digital Teleport and Digital Teleport of Virginia have prepared a Chapter 11 plan (Chapter 11 Plan) and
disclosure statement reflecting the Asset Sale and Teleport Settlement Agreement and expect that a
confirmation hearing will be heid by the Bankruptcy Court in May 2003. While confirmation of the
Chapter 11 Plan is subject to a vote of creditors and the approval of the Bankruptcy Court, it is currently
expected that, if the Bankrupicy Court approves the Teleport Settlement Agreement, the Chapter 11
Plan will be confirmed due to the level of support for the plan by certain members of the Creditors
Committee. The Chapter 11 Plan contemplates that Digital Teleport and Digital Teleport of Virginia wiil
be liquidated after distribution of those companies’ assets to their creditors pursuant to the Chapter 11
Plan and the Teleport Settlement Agreement.

In an objection to a motion by Digital Teleport for an extension of time in which o propcse a Chapter 11
plan, the largest creditor of Holdings (the Creditor) asserted that Holdings, Digital Teleport and their
creditors have claims against KLT Telecom, KLT Inc., KCP&L and Great Plains Energy based on
theories of breach of contract, fraudulent conveyance, recharacterization of debt, subordination and
breach of fiduciary duty. Among other things, the Creditor asserted that certain tax benefits should
have been paid to Holdings and Digital Teleport, rather than to KLT Telecom as provided in the October
1, 2001, Great Plains Energy tax allccaticn agreement. The Creditor has not otherwise pursued these
ciaims at this time, and the Company believes that it has meritcrious defenses {o these claims. Further,
Holdings, the principal creditors of Holdings (including the Creditor), KLT Telecom, KLT Inc., KCP&L,
and Great Plains Energy are in the process of negotiating a separate setilement agreement which, i
finalized and approved by the Bankruptcy Court, is anticipated to resolve the Holdings bankruptcy case
and any claims that might be asserted in the Holdings bankruptcy case against the Company, and to
provide payment to the creditors of Holdings from a portion of the proceeds KLT Telecom otherwise
would receive from the Asset Sale. If the separate setllement agreement is finalized, it is anticipated
that the Chapter 11 Plan will be modified to add Holdings as a proponent and to include the terms of
the Holdings Settiement Agreement.

The ultimate impact of the Asset Sale, the Teleport Setllement Agreement and/or the potential separate
settlement agreement in the Hoidings bankrupicy case will not be determined until final resolution of the
mafters set forth above.

The operating results of DT! have been included for the pericd February &, 2001 (date of acquisition)
through September 30, 2001, for consolidated KCP&L and through December 31, 2001, for Great
Plains Energy. Because of DTI's filing for bankruptcy protection under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code, KLT
Telecom no longer has control over nor can it exert significant control ocver DTI. As a consequence, as
of December 31, 2001, DT was de-consolidated and is presented on the cost basis. Conseguently,
KLT Telecom did not inciude in its financial results the ongoing resulis of operations, earnings or losses
incurred by DTI during 2002 and will not do so during the remaining period of the DT bankruptcy.

During the fourth quarter of 2001, the following were recognized in the financial statements of the
Company reiated to the activities of DTI:

o Wrote off $60.8 million of goodwili related to the purchase of DTI in February 2001.

o Recorded a $342.5 million impairment of DTI's assets resulting in a negative KLT Telecom
investment of $228.1 million.

o The Company recorded a reduction in the negative investment of $207.5 miilion. This reduction
resulied in a net impairment charge of $195.8 million ($342.5 million impairment of DTI’s assets
plus the $60.8 million write-off of goodwill less the $207.5 miilion adjustment of KLT Telecom’s
investment) and a remaining negative investment of $20.6 million. This remaining negative
investment represents the possible commitments and guarantees relating to DTl including the
$5 million for DIP financing and the $15 million aggregate floor of the Weinstein put option. The
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$20.8 million is included in Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities — Other on Great Plains
Energy’'s consolidated balance sheet at both December 31, 2001 and 2002.

The net of the above items resuited in Great Piains Energy recording in 2001 a $195.8 million loss on
property and $55.8 million of related income tax benefits. The $55.8 million income tax benefits
applicable to this net write-off is net of a $15.8 miilion tax valuation allowance due to the uncertainty of
recognizing future tax deductions while in the bankruptcy process. The $55.8 million income tax benefit
reflects the impact of DTI's 2001 abandonment of $104 million of its long-haul assets in addition to
other expected tax deductions. If additional assets of DTl are soid or abandoned during the bankruptcy
process, or additional tax losses not already reflected are incurred by DTI, KLT Telecom will record tax
benefits associated with these additional tax deductions at that time. The amount of additional tax
deductions will be limited by KLT Telecom’s tax basis in DTl. DTl's tax losses have continued o be
included in Great Plains Energy's consolidated tax return. In accordance with the tax allocation
agreement with DTI, cash tax savings are shared with DTi only to the extent DTI generates taxable
income to utilize such losses. The Company will reconsider the $15.8 million tax valuation allowance at
the conclusion of the bankruptcy process.

The foliowing are condensed DTi consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31,
2001:

Net Assets
De-consolidated
DT Consolidated Balance Sheet Decamber 31, 2001 by KLT Telecom
(millions)
Assetls
Property and equipment, net $ 468
Other 8.1
Total assets $ 53.0 $ (53.0)
Liabilities
Current liabilities not subject to compromise $ 02 0.2
Liabilities subject to compromise
Loans from KLT Telecom 57.0
Deferred revenue 45.8 45.8
Interest payable to KLT Teiecom 3.0
Other 31.9 31.8
Senior discount notes
Held by KLT Telecom 8.5
Held by others 203.2 203.2
Total liabilities subject to compromise 349.4
Stockholders' equity (deficit) (298.6)
_Total liabilities and stockholders' equity (deficit) $ 53.0 _$ 228.1
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DTl Consolidated Statement of Income for the Year Ended December 379, 2001

(millions)
Telecommunications service revenues $ 174
Operating expenses

Provision for impairment of long-lived assets @ (342.5)
Other (44.2)
Interest expense net of interest income {31.9)
Loss before income tax benefit and extraordinary item (401.2)

Income tax benefit 37.9

Gain on early extinguishment of debt 57.2
Net loss _ $ (306.1)

@  The write-down of assets was determined by DTl in accordance with SFAS No. 121, "Accounting
for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets tc Be Disposed Of". The write-
down reflects the abandonment of $104 million of long-haul assets and the impairment of the rest of
the telecommunication network and equipment. The impairment is primarily a result of the
downward trends in certain segments of the economy, particularly with respect to previously
expected growth of demand in technoiogy and telecommunications, the accompanying deterioration
in value of DTI's operating assets and its Chapter 11 filing. The fair value used in the impairment
analysis was derived primarily from the discounted cash flows from continued future operations.

DT Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for ihe Year Ended December 31, 2001

(millions)
Net cash used in operating activities $ (10.8)
Net cash used in investing activities (41.2)
Cash provided by financing activities 42.9
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents $ 8.1

=

“Reconciliation of DT consolidated financial statements to DTI financlal results included
in Great Plains Energy consolidated financial statements

{millions}
Loss before income tax benefit and extracrdinary item $ (401.2)
Loss before consolidation on February 8, 2001 7.1
Goodwill write-off (60.8)
Reduction to KLT Telecom's negative investment in DTI 207.5
Total _ $(2474)
Net DTI write-off $ (195.8)
DT! operational loss, excluding net write-off (561.6)
Tofal equal to the above (247 .4)
Cther (1.0)
Total included in loss before income taxes (248.4)
Income tax benefits recorded by KLT Telecom 74.8
Loss before extraordinary item (173.8)
Early extinguishment of debt 15.8
DTI loss included in Great Plains Energy
consolidated net loss $ (157.9)
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Extracrdinary ltem — Early Extinguishment of Debt

The KLT Telecom gain on early extinguishment of debt resulted from DTI's completion of a successful
tender offer for 50.4 percent of its outstanding Senior Discount Notes prior to KLT Telecom acquiring a
majority ownership in DTI. The $15.2 million early extinguishment of debt has been reduced by the
losses previously recorded by DTI but not reflected by KLT Telecom, and is net of $9.1 million of
income fax.

20. QUARTERLY OPERATING RESULTS (UNAUDITED)

Quarterly operating resulis for Great Plains Energy and consolidated KCP&L are identical prior to the
October 1, 2001, formation of a holding company.

Great Plains Energy

Quarter
ist 2nd 3rd 4th

2062 (millions)
Operating revenue $ 358.8 $ 4654 $ 5850 $ 4527
Operating income 15.3 78.4 135.9 62.1
income (loss) before cumulative effect (2.9) 36.0 68.8 27.3
Net income (loss) (5.9) 35.0 68.8 27.3
Basic and diluted eamning (loss) per common

share before cumulative effect $ (.05 % 057 $ 1.1 $  0.41
Basic and diluted earning (loss) per common

share $ (010) §$& 0.57 $ 1.11 $ 0.41
2007
Cperating revenue $ 280.2 $ 3465 $ 480.9 $ 354.3
Operating income (loss) 7.4 75.8 131.7 (157.7)
income (loss) before extraordinary item (3.0) 36.2 55.6 (128.8)
Net income (loss) i2.8 36.2 55.8 (128.9)
Basic and diluted earning (loss) per common

share before extraordinary item $ (0.068) $ 0.58 $ 0.8 $ (2.09)
Basic and diluted earning (loss) per common

share $ 020 $ 0.58 $ 0.8 $ (2.09)

Net income (loss) in the fourth quarter of 2001 includes a loss of $140.0 million due to the net write-off
of the invesiment in DTI.

COnsoHidai;ed K@P&{L

Quarter
ist 2nd 3rd 4th

2002 (millions)
Operating revenue $ 2122 $ 264.2 $ 351.5 $ 2434
Operating income 6.7 66.9 124.6 50.5
income (loss) before cumulative effect (8.0) 27.1 62.3 17.3
Net income (loss) (11.0) 27.1 62.3 17.3
2001
Operating revenue $ 280.2 $ 346.5 $ 480.9 $ 2433
Operating income 7.4 75.8 131.7 392.8
Income (loss) before cumulative effect (3.0) 36.2 55.6 15.0
Net income 12.9 36.2 55.6 15.0
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First quarter 2002 income statement information as reported in the March 31, 2002, Form 10-Q has
been restated to refiect the cumulative effect to January 1, 2002, of a change in accounting principle for
the $3.0 million RSAE goodwill write-down. Certain reclassifications have been made to previously
reported amounts in the 2001 Form 10-Q's, reflecting reclassifications of revenues and purchased
power recorded by Strategic Energy. There is no impact tc net income as a resuit of these
adjustments. Revenues reported in the 2001 Form 10-Q's were $281.8 million, $354.3 million and
$492.6 million for the first, second and third quarters of 2001, respeciively. The quarterly data is
subject to seasonal fluctuations with peak periods occurring during the summer months.

CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE

None.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Great Plains Energy Incorporated

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet and consolidated statement of
capitalization of Great Plains Energy Incorporated and subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of December
31, 2002, and the related consolidated staiements of income, comprehensive income, retained
earnings and cash flows for the year then ended. Our audit also included the 2002 financial statement
schedules listed in the Index at ltem 15. These financial statements and financial statement schedules
are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements and financial statement schedules based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe
that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated
financial position of Great Plains Energy incorporated and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2002, and
the resulis of their operations and their cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also, in our opinion, such financial
statement schedules, when considered in relation 1o the 2002 basic consolidated financial statements
taken as a whole, present fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein.

As discussed in Note 6 to the consolidated financial statements, on January 1, 2002, the Company
adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, “Gooawill and Other Intangible Assets.”

/s/DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Kansas City, Missouri
February 27, 2003
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Beard of Directors and Shareholder of
Kansas City Power & Light Company

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet and consolidated statement of
capitalization of Kansas City Power & Light Company and subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of
December 31, 2002, and the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income,
retained earnings and cash flows for the year then ended. Our audit also included the 2002 financial
statement scheduies listed in the Index at ltem 15. These financial statements and financial statement
schedules are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Cur responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements and financial statement schedules based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonabie
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstaiement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit aiso includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe
that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such financia! statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated
financial position of Kansas City Power & Light Company and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2002,
and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also, in cur opinion, such
financial statement schedules, when considered in relation to the 2002 basic consolidated financial
statements taken as a whole, present fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein.

As discussed in Note 6 to the consolidated financial statements, on January 1, 2002, the Company
adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, “Goodwill and Other intangible Assets.”
/s/DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Kansas City, Missouri
February 27, 2003
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Repert of Independent Accountants

To the Shareholders and the Board of Directors of
Great Plains Energy Incorporated:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet and statement of capitalization of
Great Plains Energy Incorporated and Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2001, and the related
consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, retained earnings, and cash flows for each
of the two years in the period ended December 31, 2001. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audits. We did not audit the consolidated financial statements of DTI
Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiaries (Debtors-in-Possession) (an 83.6 percent owned entity), as of and for
the year ended December 31, 2001, which statements reflect total assets of $53.0 million as of
December 31, 2001 and total revenues of $17.4 miliion and a net loss of $306.1 million for the year
ended December 31, 2001. Those statements were audited by other auditors whose report thereon
has been furnished to us, and our opinion expressed herein, insofar as it relates to the amounts
included for DTl Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiaries is based solely on the report of the other auditors.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonabie
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe
that our audits and the report of other auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, based on our audits and the report of other auditors, the consolidated financial
statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Great Plains
Energy Incorporated and Subsidiaries at December 31, 2001, and the resulis of their operations and
their cash flows for each of the two years in the period ended December 31, 2001 in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

As discussed in Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company adopted SFAS No. 133
“Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Aclivities”, as amended on January 1, 2001. As
discussed in Note 7 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed its method of
accounting for pensions in 2000.

[s/PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Kansas City, Missouri

February 5, 2002, except with respect to Note 13,

as to which the date is May 22, 2002, and except with

respect to the 2001 and 2000 transitional disclosures relating to
the adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting

Standards No. 142 as described in Note 6,

as to which the date is February 21, 2003
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Report of Independent Accountants

To the Shareholder and the Board of Directors of
Kansas City Power & Light Company:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet and statement of capitalization of
Kansas City Power & Light Company (a wholly-owned subsidiary of Great Plains Energy Incorporated)
and Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2001, and the related consolidated statements of income,
comprehensive income, retained earnings and cash flows for each of the two years in the period ended
December 31, 2001. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We did
not audit the consolidated financial statements of DT! Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiaries (Debtors-in-
Possession) (an 83.6 percent owned entity), as of and for the year ended December 31, 2001, which
statements refiect total assets of $53.0 million as of December 31, 2001 and totai revenues of $17.4
million and a net loss of $306.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2001. Those statements were
audited by other auditors whose report therecn has been furnished to us, and our opinion expressed
herein, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for DTI Hoidings, Inc. and Subsidiaries is based
solely on the report of the other auditors.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit inciudes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates 1
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financia! statement presentation. We believe |
that our audits and the report of other auditors provide a reasonabie basis for our opinion. ‘

In our opinion, based on our audits and the report of other auditers, the consolidated financial
statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Kansas City
Power & Light Company and Subsidiaries at December 31, 2001, and the results of their operations
and their cash flows for each of the two years in the period ended December 31, 2001 in conformity
with accounting principies generaliy accepted in the United States of America.

As discussed in Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company adopted SFAS No. 133
“Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities”, as amended on January 1, 2001. As
discussed in Note 7 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed its method of
accounting for pensions in 2000.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consclidated financial statements, on October 1, 2001 the Company
completed its corporate reorganization creating a holding company structure.

[s/PricewaterhcuseCoopers LLP
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Kansas City, Missouri

February 5, 2002, except with respect tc Note 13,

as to which the date is May 22, 2002, and except with
respect to the 2001 transitional disclosures relating to
the adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 142 as described in Note 6,

as to which the date is February 21, 2003
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORY

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of DT! Holdings, Inc.

We have audited the balance sheets of DT! Holdings, Inc. and subsidiaries {Debtors-in-Possession)
{the “Company”) as of December 31, 2001, and the related statements of operations and stockholder’s
equity {deficit) and of cash flows for the year ended June 30, 2000, the six-month period ended
December 31, 2000 and the year ended December 31, 2001. These financial statements (which are
not included herein) are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepied in the United States
of America. Those standards require that we pian and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principies used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overali financial statement presentation. We believe
that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

in our opinion, such financiai statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
DTi Hoidings, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2001, and the results of their operations and
their cash flows for the year ended June 30, 2000, the six-month period ended December 31, 2000 and
the year ended December 31, 2001 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

As discussed in Note 1 to those financial statements, the Company has filed for reorganization under
Chapter 11 of the Federal Bankruptcy Code. The financial statements do not purport to reflect or
provide for the consequences of the bankrupicy oroceedings. In pariicular, such financial statements
do not purport to show (a) as to assets, their realizable value on a liguidation basis or their availability to
satisfy liabilities; (b) as to prepetition liabilities, the amounts that may be allowed for claims or
contingencies, or the status and priority thereof; (¢) as to stockhoider accounts, the effect of any
changes that may be made in the capitalization of the Company; or (d) as to operations, the effect of
any changes that may be made in its business.

The financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a going
concern. As discussed in Note 1 to those financial statements, the Company’s recurring losses from
operations, negative working cepital, and stockholders’ capital deficiency raise substantial doubt about
its ability to continue as a going concern. Management's plans concerning these matters are also
discussed in Note 1 to those financial statements. The financial statements do not include adjustments
that might resuit from the cutcome of this uncertainty.

As discussed in Note 3 to those financial statements, the Company determined that the carrying value
of its long-lived assets had been impaired during the year. In accordance with Financial Accounting
Standards No. 121, Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-lived Assets to
be Disposed of, the Company recorded an impairment charge of approximately $342 million at
December 31, 2001.

s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

St. Louis, Missouri
January 30, 2002
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CERTIFICATION

I, Bernard J. Beaudoin, certify that:

1.

2.

| have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Great Plains Energy Incorporated;

Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact
or cmit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the
circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period
covered by this annual report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial infermation included in this
annual report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, resulis of operations and
cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the pericds presented in this annual report;

The registrant's other certifying officers and | are responsibie for establishing and maintaining
disclosure contrels and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the
registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures tc ensure that material information relating to
the registrant, including its consclidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within
those entities, particularly during the period in which this annual report is being prepared;

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures as of a date
within 80 days prior to the filing date of this annual report (the "Evaluation Date"); and

c) presented in this annual report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure
controis and procedures based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;

The registrant's other certifying officers and [ have cisclosed, based on our most recent evaluation,
to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of registrant's board of directors (or persons
performing the equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could adversely
affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data and have
identified for the registrant's auditors any material weaknesses in internal controls; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant's internal controls; and

The registrant's other certifying officers and | have indicated in this annua! report whether there
were significant changes in internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal
controls subsequent to the date of our most recent evaluation, including any corrective actions with
regard to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses.

Date: February 28, 2003

By: /s/Bernard J. Beaudoin

Bernard J. Beaudoin

Chairman of the Board, President and
Chief Executive Officer
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CERTIFICATION

[, Andrea F. Bielsker, cerify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Great Plains Energy Incorporated;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact
or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the
circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period
covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
annual report, fairly present in ail materia! respects the financial condition, results of operations and
cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual repor;

4. The registrant's other certifying officers and [ are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the

registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information reiating to
the registrant, inciuding its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within
those entities, particularly during the period in which this annual report is being prepared;

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures as of a date
within 9C days prior to the filing date of this annuai report (the "Evaluation Date"); and

¢) presented in this annual report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disciosure
controls and procedures based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;

5. The registrant's other certifying officers and | have disclosed, based on our mest recent evaluation,
to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of registrant's board of directors (or persons
performing the equivaient functions):

a) all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could adversely
affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data and have
identified for the registrant's auditors any material weaknesses in internal controls; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant's internal controis; and

6. The registrant's other certifying cfficers and | have indicated in this annual report whether there
were significant changes in internal contrels or in other factors that could significantly affect internai
controls subsequent to the date of our most recent evaluation, including any corrective actions with
regard to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses.

Date: February 28, 2003
By: /s/Andrea F. Bielsker
Andrea F. Bielsker

Senior Vice President — Finance, Chief
Financial Officer and Treasurer
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CERTIFICATION

[, Bernard J. Beaudoin, certify that:

1.

2.

| have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Kansas City Power & Light Company;

Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact
or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the
circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the pericd
covered by this annual report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and cother financial information included in this
annual report, fairly present in all materia! respects the financial condition, results of operations and
cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report;

The registrant's other centifying officers and [ are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the
registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information relating to
the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within
those entities, particularly during the period in which this annual report is being prepared;

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures as of a date
within 90 days pricr to the filing date of this annual report (the “Evaluation Date"); and

c) presented in this annual report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure
controls and procedures based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;

The registrant's other certifying officers and [ have disclosed, based on cur most recent evaluation,
to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of registrant's board of directors (or persons
performing the equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could adversely
aftect the regisirant's abiiity to record, process, summarize and report financial data and have
identified for the registrant's auditors any material weaknesses in internal controls; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or cther employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internai controls; and

The registrant's other certifying officers and | have indicated in this annua! report whether there
were significant changes in internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal
controls sulbsequent to the date of cur most recent evaluation, including any corrective actions with
regard to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses.

Date: February 28, 2003

By: /s/Bernard J. Beaudoin
Bernard J. Beaudcin
Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer
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1.

2.

CERTIFICATION

I, Andrea F. Bielsker, certify that:

} have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Kansas City Power & Light Company;

Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact
or omit to state a material fact necessary o make the statements made, in light of the
circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period
covered by this annual report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
annual report, fairly present in all material respects the financiai condition, results of operations and
cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report;

The registrant's other certifying officers and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the
registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information relating to
the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within
those entities, particularly during the period in which this annual report is being prepared;

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures as of a date
within 80 days prior to the filing date of this annuai report (the "Evaluation Date"); and

c) presented in this annual report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure
controls and procedures based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;

The registrant's other certifying officers and [ have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation,
to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of registrant's board of directors (or persons
performing the equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could adversely
affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and repori financial data and have
identified for the registrant's auditors any material weaknesses in internal controls; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
~ significant role in the registrant's internal centrols; and

The registrant's other certifying officers and | have indicated in this annual report whether there
were significant changes in internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal
controls subseguent to the date of our most recent evaluation, including any corrective actions with
regard to significant deficiencies and maiterial weaknesses.

Date: February 28, 2003

By: /s/Andrea F. Bielsker

Andrea F. Bielsker

Senior Vice President — Finance, Chief
Financial Officer and Treasurer
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION FORM 10-K

ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

Additional copies of Great Plains Energy’s 2002 annual
report filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
on Form 10-K will be provided at no charge to any share-
holder or beneficial owner of shares in the Company's stock
upon written request to:

Corporate Secretary

Great Plains Energy Inc.

P.O. Box 418679

Kansas City, Missouri 64141-9679

STOCK DATA

Great Plains Energy stock is traded on the New York Stock
Exchange under the ticker symbol GXP. Shareholders of
record as of December 31, 2002: 17,131

All dividends paid by Great Plains Energy in 2002 were
determined to be ordinary income and no portion was
considered a return of capital.

WORLD WIDE WEB SITE

The Company has a site on the World Wide Web at
www.greatplainsenergy.com. Information available includes
Company news releases, stock quotes, customer account
information, community and environmental efforts, and
information of general interest to investors and customers.

COMMON STOCK DIVIDENDS PalD

Quarter 2003 2002 2001
First $0.415 $0.415 $0.415
Second $0.415 $0.415
Third $0.415 $0.415
Fourth $0.415 $0.415

PREFERRED STOCK DIVIDENDS

Quarterly dividends on preferred stock were declared in
each quarter of 2002 and 2001 as follows:

Cumulative Preferred Stock

Series Amount
3.80% $0.95
4.20% 1.05
4.35% 1.0875
4.50% 1.125

Two-YEaArR CoMMON STocCk HISTORY

Great Plains Energy's common stock price range was as follows:

2002 2001
Quarter High  Low High Low
First $26.98 $24.40 $27.56 $23.60
Second 25.07 2035 26.75  23.63
Third 2245  15.69 26,13 23.70
Fourth 23.59  17.66 27.35 2319

All shareholders will receive proxy materials and
information about Great Plains Energy’s annual meeting
of shareholders to be held at 10:00 a.m. on May 6, 2003,
at The Discovery Center, 4750 Troost in Kansas City,
Missouri. Any questions may be directed to Investor
Relations at 800-245-5275.

DIVIDEND REINVESTMENT AND DIRECT
STock PURCHASE PLAN

Great Plains Energy offers the opportunity to purchase
common shares directly from the Company with an initial
investment of $500 through our Dividend Reinvestment and
Direct Stock Purchase Plan. The Plan offers shareholders
several choices, including reinvestment of all or some of their
common stock quarterly dividends and the option of investing
additional cash monthly. Shareholders may choose to deposit
their certificate(s) with the transfer agent for safekeeping in
their Plan account. For more information or an enrollment
form, contact Investor Relations or UMB Bank, n.a. or visit
Great Plains Energy's website at www.greatplainsenergy.com.

DIRECT DEPOSIT OF DIVIDENDS AND
AUTOMATIC MONTHLY INVESTMENT

Shareholders may elect the convenience of having dividends
deposited directly to their checking, savings or other accounts.
Shareholders can also choose to authorize automatic monthly
deductions from checking or savings accounts to purchase
additional shares. Electing direct deposit or automatic
deduction changes only the manner of dividend payment.
Annual report and proxy materials, year-end tax information
and other correspondence will be mailed to shareholder’s
address of record. For more information, please contact
Investor Relations or UMB Bank, n.a. or visit Great Plains
Energy’s website at www.greatplainsenergy.com.

REGISTERED SHAREHOLDER INQUIRIES

For account information or assistance, including change
of address, stock transfers, dividend payments, duplicate
accounts or to report a lost certificate, please contact
Investor Relations at 8§00-245-5275.

FinaNciaL COMMUNITY INQUIRIES

Securities analysts and investment professionals seeking
information about Great Plains Energy may contact
Investor Relations at 816-556-2312.

TRANSFER AGENT AND STOCK REGISTRAR

UMB Bank, n.a.

Securities Transfer Division

P.O. Box 410064

Kansas City, Missouri 64141-0064
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